
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for May 22, 2014 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

 
 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 
 

II. Previous Minutes 

Approval of Minutes of the April 21, 2014, Special and April 24, 2014, Regular Council  

Meeting ............................................................................................................................................1 
 

III. Persons to Be Heard 

a. Proclamation: Declaring Emergency Medical Services Week ..........................................16 

b. Proclamation: Declaring Older Americans Month ............................................................18 

c. Public Hearing on Resolution No. 2014–22, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Sewer),     

of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs ...................................................................20 

d. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 
 

IV. Unfinished Business 

a. Authorization of Purchase of Replacement Chlorine Storage Tanks Tank Liner, Project 

No. 7030/11-08 ..................................................................................................................26 

b. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1316, Authorizing a Lease to 

Afognak Native Corporation of a 17,727 Square Foot (0.407 Acre) Portion of USS    

4947 Located Adjacent to Tract D-1B ...............................................................................44 

c. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1318, Establishing Supplemental 

Appropriation No. 2 to the Budget for the Fiscal Year Commencing on the First Day of 

July 2013 and Ending on the Thirtieth Day of June 2014 .................................................64 
 

V. New Business 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1319, Levying Taxes and Appropriating Funds for the 

Expenses and Liabilities of the City of Kodiak for the Fiscal Year Commencing on the 

First Day of July 2014 and Ending on the Thirtieth Day of June 2015 .............................82 

b. Resolution No. 2014–22, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Sewer), of the Schedule of 

Fees, Charges, and Tariffs .................................................................................................94 

c. Authorization of Bid Award of Bid Package B for the Construction of the New  

Monashka Pumphouse, Project No. 11-05/7029..............................................................120 

d. Authorization of Change Order No. 1 for Aleutian Homes Phase 5, Segment B, Project 

No. 10-03/7026 ................................................................................................................132 

e. Authorization of Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services Contract for 

Construction Management Services for the New Monashka Pumphouse, Project No. 11-

05/7029 ............................................................................................................................142 
 

VI. Staff Reports 

a. City Manager 

b. City Clerk 
 

VII. Mayor’s Comments 
 

VIII. Council Comments 

 

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

X. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 



7815 

 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

  

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER   
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:50 p.m. Councilmembers Charles E. Da-

vidson, Gabriel T. Saravia, and Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were present and con-

stituted a quorum. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop and Terry J. Haines were absent. Finance 

Director Mary Munk, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, Harbormaster Marty Owen, and Deputy Har-

bormaster Lon White were also present. 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

None 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 a. Discussion of Horizon Lines Contract Negotiations 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to enter into executive session pursuant to AS 44.62.310(c)(1) 

to discuss matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the 

finances of the City, specifically negotiation of new contracts with Horizon Lines. 
 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Haines were absent. The motion passed. 

 

The Council entered into Executive Session at 7:51 p.m. 

 

The regular meeting reconvened at 8:10 p.m. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

  

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Haines were absent. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

1



 APRIL 21, 2014  7816 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 

Minutes Approved:  

2



  7817 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD THURSDAY, APRIL 24, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop, 

Charles E. Davidson, Gabriel T. Saravia, and Richard H. Walker were present and constituted a 

quorum. Councilmembers Terry J. Haines and John B. Whiddon were absent. City Manager 

Aimée Kniaziowski, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson 

were also present. 

 

After the Pledge of Allegiance, Salvation Army Sergeant Major Dave Blacketer gave the invoca-

tion. 

 

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to approve the minutes of the April 10, 2014, regular meeting 

as presented. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 
Councilmember Davidson MOVED to suspend the rules to reverse the order of New Business 

items g and h by re-lettering item h as item g and item g as item h. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

 

a. Interim Report of the Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee 

 

In July 2013 the Council established the Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee, 

Chaired by Mayor Branson, to focus on community concerns pertaining to safety, security, eco-

nomic development, and aesthetic appeal of downtown Kodiak. Mayor Branson appointed three 

subcommittees to address economic development, social issues and public safety, and beautifica-

tion and public space improvements. The Special Committee and subcommittees have met sev-

eral times during the past eight months to identify short-term and long-term priorities. 

 

Beautification and Public Space Improvements Sub-Committee Chair Katie St. John thanked the 

Mayor and Council for having her speak on behalf of the sub-committee. She commented there 

has been grass root support in the community for the beautification of downtown including peo-

ple who have volunteered their time and resources. She stated their main priority is to have an 

improved pocket park area, and she stated there are grant opportunities due in May 2014 that can 

help fund some of the improvements identified. 

 

3



 APRIL 24, 2014 7818 

 

Economic Development Sub-Committee Chair Trevor Brown shared the enthusiasm the commit-

tee has demonstrated to make downtown a beautiful and safe place to attract the public. He said a 

priority by the sub-committee is for the Chamber of Commerce to survey the current businesses 

downtown during this fall. He shared that the sub-committee feels it is important to monitor the 

parking downtown, clean up the graffiti, and work with the Rotary Club to get a “Welcome to 

Kodiak” sign.  

 

Social Issues and Public Safety Sub-Committee Chair Monte Hawver said the snow removal, 

garbage cans, clean-up, and removal of junk vehicles are short term priorities. He said the pocket 

park needs to be revisited and potentially removed. He suggested bicycle racks be installed. He 

said the long-term priorities are a day shelter in Kodiak and shower and laundry facilities at the 

harbor. 

 

Mayor Branson thanked the sub-committee chairs and requested the report be posted on the City 

website. 

 

b. Public Hearing on Proposed Fee Schedule Amendments 

The City sets its fees and charges for various services by a resolution of the Council. The public 

hearing on proposed fee schedule amendments, which are contained in Resolution No. 2014–20, 

pertain to the Harbor Department, Library, and Parks & Recreation departments. The Harbor fee 

changes are proposed to take effect on May 1, 2014, and the other changes will be effective July 

1, 2014.  

 

Mayor Branson closed the regular meeting and opened the public hearing. 

 

Judi Kidder commented an enforcement fee for junk vehicles should be added to the fee sched-

ule. 

 

There being no further public testimony, the Mayor closed the public hearing and reopened the 

regular meeting. 

 

c. Proclamation: Declaring Child Abuse Prevention Month 

Councilmember Walker read the proclamation, which urges all citizens to increase their partici-

pation in efforts to prevent child abuse, thereby strengthening the communities in which we live. 

 

Sandra Wilkins from Kodiak Women’s Resource and Crisis Center accepted the proclamation. 

She thanked Mayor Branson and Councilmembers for supporting the prevention of child abuse 

and she thanked the Child Advocacy Center for their service. 

 

d. Proclamation: Declaring Sexual Assault Awareness Month 

Councilmember Bishop read the proclamation, which encourages all Alaskans to support local 

activities and programs that assist victims of sexual assault and to learn more about the perva-

siveness of sexual assault in Alaska in an effort to eliminate this crime. 

 

Sandra Wilkins from Kodiak Women’s Resource and Crisis Center accepted the proclamation. 

She thanked Mayor Branson and Councilmembers for supporting the awareness of sexual assault 

4



 APRIL 24, 2014 7819 

 

and she gave statistics regarding sexual assault to educate the community to reduce sexual as-

sault in Alaska. 

 

e. Proclamation: Declaring Month of the Military Child 

 

Councilmember Saravia read this proclamation, which encourages all citizens to show apprecia-

tion and understanding to the military children in our communities and recognize their commit-

ment, courage, sacrifice, and continued resilience. 

 

USCG Commanding Officer White, of the Alex Haley, and his family accepted the proclama-

tion. He thanked the Mayor and Council for recognizing all children including military children 

in the community. He stated Kodiak is a wonderful place to call home and it is a pleasure to 

serve the community. 

 

f. Proclamation: Declaring Municipal Clerks Week 

 

Mayor Branson read this proclamation, which recognizes our Municipal Clerks for the vital ser-

vices they perform and their dedication to our community. 

 

Clerk Marlar accepted the proclamation and thanked the Mayor and Councilmembers for recog-

nizing the work the Clerk’s Office performs and stated it was a pleasure to serve them and the 

community. 

 

g. Proclamation: Declaring Police Officers Memorial Day and Police Week 

 

Councilmember Davidson read this proclamation, which urges all citizens and patriotic, civic, 

and educational organizations to recognize police officers, past and present, who by their faithful 

and loyal devotion to their responsibilities, have rendered a dedicated service to their community 

and, in so doing, have established a reputation for preserving the rights and security of all citi-

zens. 

 

Chief of Police Wallace accepted the proclamation. She said in 1962 President Kennedy declared 

National Police Officer Memorial Week, and she remembered Officer Gordon Bartel who ended 

his watch on January 15, 1983, in Kodiak. She asked the community to thank a police officer if 

they have the opportunity, because they work diligently to protect and serve the community. 

 

h. Public Comments 

 

Jeremiah Gardner, a local business owner and a member of the Parks and Recreation Advisory 

Board, said the advisory board will request funding for the skate park during the City’s upcom-

ing budget in the amount of $130,000. He commented some of the funds are carryover from 

FY2014, and he does not feel the funds compete with other projects. He said the park will help 

support the at-risk children by providing a place for them to participate in activities. 

 

Robin Gardner called in and said she supports the skate park.  

 

Jill Bunting, a mother of a scooter rider and a parole officer, said she supports the skate park. 

 

5



 APRIL 24, 2014 7820 

 

Carma Shay called in and stated she supports the skate park and promotes confidence building 

activities. She urged the community to be proactive. 

 

Kim Bunch said she came to ask for support of the skate park, because there is currently a lot of 

use at the park. 

 

Timothy Howland called in and stated he is a former business owner and resident of Kodiak for 

35 years and emphasized that skating is a sport and it should be funded. 

 

Richard and Sandra Thummel called in to support the skate park. 

 

Levi Bunting said he has been skating since he was six or seven and is thankful for the new 

wood on the ramps. He said there needs to be a safe place to skate that keeps skaters from the 

downtown area. 

 

Gavin Fitzgerald said he has been going to the skate park since he moved to Kodiak four years 

ago and it would be nice to have a new skate park. 

 

Dawson Bunch said he has been going to the skate park since he was in the second grade and he 

thought it was time for a new skate park and he supports the funding. 

 

Dana Carros said his son is a skater, and he supports the funding of a skate park. 

 

Josh Fitzgerald called in and said he is retired USCG, and he supports the restoration and im-

provement of the skate park. 

 

Leah Chopek said she supports the skate park because her children have used the park. She said 

it is an important investment. 

 

Lindsey Cassidy called in and said she works at the middle school and supports funding a new 

skate park. 

 

Judi Kidder said she supports the skate park and feels is it is vital in Kodiak. She said she sup-

ports an off-leash dog park. She shared information regarding a volunteer cleanup group in Ko-

diak that has been removing junk around town. She commented that the volunteer group took 

1,100 pounds of garbage to the landfill and encouraged people to participate in the volunteer 

group. She said she supports the Beautification committee. 

 

Dylan Shay called in to voice his support of the skate park. He said it is an important asset to the 

community. 

 

Mayor Branson commented the skate park was not on the agenda but will be discussed during 

the budget process. She thanked those who made public comments. 

 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

6



 APRIL 24, 2014 7821 

 

a. Continued First Reading, Ordinance No. 1316, Authorizing a Lease to Afognak Native 

Corporation of a 15,00017,727 Square Foot (0.34.407 Acre) Portion of USS 4947 Locat-

ed Adjacent To Tract D-1B  

 

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1316 by title. The Afognak Native Corporation has ex-

pressed interest in purchasing City–owned land adjacent to their property on Near Island since 

2009. With Council’s decision to not sell additional City land until a land plan was developed, 

the discussions with Afognak turned to the idea of leasing property for viewshed protection. This 

ordinance was postponed in the first reading at the February 13, 2014, regular meeting because 

of a discrepancy in the lease survey. The discrepancy has been resolved.  

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to amend Ordinance No. 1316 by striking 15,000 square feet 

and inserting 17,727 square feet and striking 0.34 acre and inserting 0.407 acre; and amending 

the lease document by substituting Section 4.2, which includes the updated lease amount, and 

Exhibits A and B, which include the corrected exhibits.  

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The amendment passed. 

 

The roll call vote on the amended main motion to pass Ordinance No. 1316 in the first reading 

and advance to second reading and public hearing at the next special or regular meeting was 

Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Councilmembers Haines and 

Whiddon were absent. The main motion as amended passed. 

 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1318, Establishing Supplemental Appropriation No. 2 to 

the Budget for the Fiscal Year Commencing on the First Day of July 2013 and Ending 

on the Thirtieth Day of June 2014 

 

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1318 by title. The Supplemental Appropriation No. 2 to the 

FY2014 budget is in the amount of $8,941,941. It is customary for the City Council to approve at 

least one supplemental budget annually to authorize the adjustments of current revenues and ex-

penses as detailed in the packet. These adjustments are for the operating funds, as well as addi-

tions to project funds for grant revenues received and additional expenditures needed that were 

not known at the time the original budget was adopted, nor at the time the first supplemental 

amendment was made in January 2014. This is the second budget amendment of FY2014.  

 

Councilmember Saravia MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1318 in the first reading and advance to 

second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

b. Resolution No. 2014–20, Amending Sections 9.16, 11, and 12 of the Schedule of Fees, 

Charges, and Tariffs  

 

7



 APRIL 24, 2014 7822 

 

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–20 by title. The City sets its fees and charges for vari-

ous services by a resolution of the Council. The City Council identified the importance of an an-

nual review and update of the schedule of fees and charges by including this as a budget goal 

since FY2011. Staff completed the review and submitted a list of proposed changes to fees per-

taining to the Harbor Department, Library, and Parks & Recreation departments. The Harbor fee 

changes are proposed to take effect on May 1, 2014, and the other changes will be effective July 

1, 2014.  

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–20.  

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

c. Resolution No. 2014–21, Authorizing the Borrowing From the Alaska Drinking Water 

Fund of an Aggregate Amount Not to Exceed $6,000,000 to Pay for the Construction of 

the Monashka Pump House and Repealing Resolution 2014–10 

 

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2014–21 by title. City staff began the process to replace the 

Monashka pumphouse in October 2010. The design for the new facility is complete, and the pro-

ject went out to bid in March. During the project development, staff worked to acquire funds to 

move the project through to bid award and construction. The City used local funds, Alaska De-

partment of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) grants, and a State of Alaska legislative grant 

for the project. The Alaska Municipal Matching Grant program through ADEC requires a 30 

percent match by the City. Staff submitted an Alaska Drinking Water Fund loan questionnaire 

for this project to cover the City’s match and to allow for additional funds, if needed. The City 

was determined to be eligible to apply for the loan and made an application to borrow up to $2.5 

million via Resolution No. 2014–10, which was submitted to ADEC in February. 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–21. 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to substitute Resolution No. 2014–21 with Resolution No. 

2014–21(SUB). 

 

The roll call vote on the amendment by substitution was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, 

Saravia, and Walker in favor. Councilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The substitu-

tion passed. 

 

The roll call vote on the substituted resolution was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, 

and Walker in favor. Councilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

d. Authorization of Bid Award for Bid Package A and Pumps and Motors for Construc-

tion of the New Monashka Pumphouse, Project No.11-05/7029 

 

The Monashka Reservoir and Pumphouse are the primary sources of water for the City of Kodi-

ak’s public water system. The City started evaluation of the pumphouse in 2010 and due to the 

age of the equipment and building and the structural and seismic issues, the pumphouse was slat-

ed for replacement. The project was designed and advertised for bid in March 2014, and two bids 

were received in April. Because of the timing of Alaska Municipal Matching Grant program and 

8



 APRIL 24, 2014 7823 

 

the loans, the City bid the project in two packages. Bid package A is for the yard piping work 

and package B is for the pumphouse.  

 

Councilmember Saravia MOVED to award bid package A, including yard piping and pumps and 

motors, to ASRC SKW Eskimos for the construction of the new Monashka Pumphouse project 

in the amount of $1,190,671, with funds coming from Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project 

No. 11-05/7029. 

  

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker, in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

e. Authorization of Amendment No. 4 to the Professional Services Contract for Construc-

tion Management Services for the New Monashka Pumphouse, Project No. 11-05/7092 

 

The bids for construction of the City’s new Monashka Pumphouse were opened on April 11, 

2014, with ASRC/SKW Contractors as the apparent low bidder. Due to current project funding 

limitations, City staff recommends that Council award the construction management services in 

two phases. The packet information discusses both phases of construction management services 

for the new Monashka pumphouse project. Construction management is critical to ensure the 

project is built in a timely manner without interruption of water service to the community and to 

ensure that the project meets all regulatory requirements, including receipt of the Certificate to 

Operate by the regulatory agency.  

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize Amendment No. 4 to the Professional Services 

Contract with CH2MHill for construction management services during the initial phase of con-

struction for the new Monashka Pumphouse in the amount of $194,000, with funds coming from 

Water Capital Improvement Fund Project No.11-05/7029 and authorize the City Manager to exe-

cute the documents on behalf of the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmember Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

  f. Authorization of Sole Source Purchase of Yard Piping for Construction of the New 

 Monashka Pumphouse, Project No. 11-05/7029 

 

On March 12, 2014, the City advertised a separate bid for the purchase of yard piping for the 

new Monashka pumphouse facility. This was done because of the long lead time for certain pipe 

and fittings as well as the American Iron and Steel (AIS) requirement of the Alaska Drinking 

Water Fund (ADWF) loan. Bids were to be opened on Friday, April 11, 2014, at 2:15 p.m. No 

bids were received. One supplier told staff their bid was sent by express mail on April 9, and it 

was supposed to be delivered by April 11, but did not arrive until April 14. After discussion with 

the City Attorney on April 11, it was determined that since no bids were received, the City could 

accept a sole source bid per KCC 3.12.070 (d), which allows for such process. Staff also checked 

with the state grant and loan administrator who concurred with the City's sole source recommen-

dation.  

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize the sole source purchase of yard piping for the 

Construction of the New Monashka Pumphouse from HD Fowler in the amount of $58,000, with 

9



 APRIL 24, 2014 7824 

 

funds coming from the Monashka Pumphouse Project No. 11-05/7029, and authorize the City 

Manager to execute the documents for the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

g. Authorization of Bid Award for Aleutian Homes Phase 5, Segment B, Project No. 10-

03/7026 

 

Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement Phase V, Segment B is a continuation of the up-

grade of utilities, pavement, and sidewalks in the Aleutian Homes Area. Segment A was con-

structed during the summer of 2013. The higher project bid amounts and the current budget for 

Segment B result in a recommendation from staff to award the construction bid in two parts. The 

majority of the work can be awarded at this time and does not include sidewalk, curb, gutter, re-

taining walls and asphalt paving items. Additional funds are requested in the second FY2014 

supplemental budget amendment to cover those items. Staff’s request to authorize the second 

part of the project bid would come to Council following approval of the FY2014 Supplemental 

No. 2.  

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to award the bid for the Aleutian Homes Phase V Segment B, 

Project No. 10-03/7026 to Brechan in the amount of $2,994,895.50, with funds coming from the 

Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 10-03/7026 and authorize the City Manager to 

execute the documents on behalf of the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

h. Authorization of Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Contract for Construc-

tion Management Services for the Aleutian Homes Phase 5, Segment B, Project No. 10-

03/7026 

 

Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement Phase V, Segment B is a continuation of the up-

grade of utilities, pavement, and sidewalks in the Aleutian Homes area. Council is scheduled to 

review and approve the construction contract for this project at this meeting. If the award is au-

thorized, City staff will issue a Notice of Award for construction to Brechan Enterprises, Inc. on 

April 25. This memorandum discusses the construction management services for the Phase V, 

Segment B project. Staff recommends Council authorize Amendment No.1 to the professional 

services contract with DOWL HKM to perform construction management services for $321,890. 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services 

Contract with DOWL HKM for Construction Management Services for the Aleutian Homes 

Phase 5, Segment B, Project No. 10-03/7026, in the amount of $321,890, with funds coming 

from the Water Capital Improvement Project No. 10-03/7026, and authorize the City Manager to 

execute the necessary documents for the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

10



 APRIL 24, 2014 7825 

 

 

VI. STAFF REPORTS 

 

a. City Manager 

 

Manager Kniaziowski commented the Department of Transportation bid process for Pier I, the 

ferry dock, closes on May 9, 2014. She said the Monashka pumphouse and Aleutian Homes pro-

ject are still in the legislative budget and the E911 system will be funded by various unused pro-

ject funds in the area. Manager Kniaziowski stated the PERS and TRS funding passed through 

both houses unanimously. She commented that she is currently working on the budget summary.  

She said the reception for the Alaska Energy Authority is scheduled for May 13, which will be 

hosted by Senator Gary Steven’s office, the City, and the KIB. She said the meeting with De-

partment of Transportation to discuss replacement of the Tustemena is scheduled for May 21, 

2014; currently, Port Lions, Old Harbor, and Ouzinkie are scheduled to participate. The meeting 

will be held at the Kodiak Public Library multi-purpose room and is open to the public. She stat-

ed the retirement party for Harbormaster Marty Owen will be on May 9 from 6 to 7:30 p.m. at 

the Fisheries Research Center, and it is open to the public. Manager Kniaziowski said the budget 

meeting will begin the morning of May 10. Manager Kniaziowski announced the hiring of Depu-

ty Harbormaster Lon White as the new Harbormaster; she indicated he has been with the City for 

32 years. She said she has received two resignations effective in May – Finance Director Mary 

Munk and Parks and Recreation Director Charlie Powers, and she will be acting in those capaci-

ties until the positions are filled. She stated the emergency response management training for 

Council is scheduled for June 19. She congratulated Chief Wallace and the police department for 

their recent drug arrests. She indicated she is working with department heads to review the rec-

ommendations from the Downtown Kodiak Revitalization Special Committee, and they will 

make their suggestions back to the committee and Council. Manager Kniaziowski said she will 

be in Washington DC for lobbying until May 1 and said there is a grand opening on May 2 for 

American Fast Freight. She said she appreciated the feedback for the skate park and commented 

that the skate park is in the CIP budget for approximately $130,000. She clarified the FY2015 

does have some of the FY2014 carryover funds. 

 

b. City Clerk 

 

City Clerk Marlar thanked Finance Director Munk for her years of financial assistance and con-

gratulated Deputy Harbormaster Lon White on his appointment as Harbormaster. She informed 

the public of the next scheduled Council work session and regular meeting.  

 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

Mayor Branson thanked the Downtown Kodiak Revitalization sub-committee chairs and the full 

committee for their work. She congratulated Chief of Police Wallace for sending the message 

that dealing drugs is not tolerated in Kodiak. She thanked those that made public comments for 

the skate park. She congratulated Lon White as the new Harbormaster. She stated the Council 

approved big projects during this meeting, and she was pleased the legislature voted to support 

the Governor’s three billion dollar infusion into PERS, TRS, and the E911 system. She thanked 

Senator Alan Austerman for changing his vote and proposed the City consider hosting a recep-

tion for his retirement and years of service. She said there is a meeting in June with the Marine 

11



 APRIL 24, 2014 7826 

 

Highway Transportation Advisory Board to discuss the Tustemena. She said she went to the Ma-

rine Science Symposium and said the sea grant representatives did a great job. 

 

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Walker thanked and congratulated Lon White for his role as the new Harbor-

master, and he wished Harbormaster Marty Owen good luck in his retirement. He said he was 

disappointed in the resignations, and those individuals will be hard to replace; he congratulated 

the police department. He commented he was pleased with the legislature for the work they are 

doing including the E911. He said he was pleased to receive comments from the kids regarding 

the skate park. He said he supports the reception for Alan Austerman and he encouraged the pub-

lic to attend the Alaska Energy Association reception. He commented the upcoming weekend 

was prom, the serendipity auction, and a track meet. 

 

Councilmember Davidson congratulated Chief of Police Wallace and the police department for 

their recent drug arrest and commented this is the first step to protect the youth in the communi-

ty. He congratulated Lon White, stating he will do a great job and said he will miss Harbormaster 

Marty Owen. He said he will miss Finance Director Mary Munk and commented she has done a 

great job. He said he hopes to see the snack shack on the fast track and appreciates all the work 

done behind the scenes at the City to get funding for the projects that were approved earlier in 

the evening. 

 

Councilmember Saravia thanked Chief Wallace for removing drugs from the streets. He congrat-

ulated Lon White as the new Harbormaster, and he wished Harbormaster Marty Owen well and 

commented he will be out of town during his retirement party. He said he supports the kids for 

the skate park and gave an update on fishing. 

 

Councilmember Bishop congratulated Chief of Police Wallace and KPD for cleaning up the 

streets in Kodiak. He congratulated Lon White as the new Harbormaster and said the camarade-

rie for the skate park was nice to see. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 

None 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, and Walker in favor. Coun-

cilmembers Haines and Whiddon were absent. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:44 p.m. 

 

 

12



 APRIL 24, 2014 7827 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

    MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

  CITY CLERK   

 

Minutes Approved:  

13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

15



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item III. a. Memo Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: May 22, 2014 

Agenda Item: III. a. Proclamation: Declaring Emergency Medical Services Week 

 

SUMMARY: This proclamation urges residents to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 

emergency medical services providers. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A: Proclamation: Declaring Emergency Medical Services Week 

16



  

 PROCLAMATION 
Declaring Emergency Medical Services Week 

May 18 – May 24, 2014 
 

 WHEREAS, emergency medical services are a vital public service; and 
  

 WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are 
ready to provide lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week; and 
  

 WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves 
the survival and recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or 
injury; and 
  

 WHEREAS, the emergency medical services system consists of 
emergency physicians, emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, 
paramedics, firefighters, first responders, educators, administrators and 
others; and 
  

 WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams, 
whether career or volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized 
training and continuing education to enhance their lifesaving skills; and 
  

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize the value and the 
accomplishments of emergency medical services providers by designating 
Emergency Medical Services Week. 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pat Branson, do hereby proclaim the week 
of May 18 through May 24, 2014, as 

  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK 
  

in Kodiak and with the theme, “EMS: Dedicated. For Life.” I encourage the 
community to observe this week with appropriate programs, ceremonies, and 
activities. 
  

 Dated this 22nd day of May 2014. 
        City of Kodiak 
 
         
        Pat Branson, Mayor 

17

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item III. b. Memo Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: May 22, 2014 

Agenda Item: III. b. Proclamation: Declaring Older Americans Month 

 

SUMMARY: This proclamation urges every citizen to recognize this year’s theme focusing on injury 

prevention, “Safe Today. Healthy Tomorrow,” and take time this month to celebrate older adults and the 

people who serve and support them as powerful and vital citizens who greatly contribute to the 

community. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A: Proclamation: Declaring Older Americans Month 

18



PROCLAMATION 
Declaring Older Americans Month 

 
 WHEREAS, Kodiak is committed to helping all individuals maintain their 
health and independence in later life; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the older adults in Kodiak have an important role in sharing 
knowledge, wisdom, and understanding of the history of our community through 
interactions with children, youth, and adults from other generations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kodiak’s older adults play an important role by continuing to 
contribute experience, knowledge, wisdom, and accomplishments; and  
 
 WHEREAS, our older adults are active community members involved in 
volunteering, mentorship, arts and culture, and civic engagement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, our community can provide opportunities to allow older citizens 
to continue to flourish by:  

 Emphasizing the importance of elders and their leadership by publicly 
recognizing their continued achievements;  

 Presenting opportunities for older Americans to share their wisdom, 
experience, and skills; and  

 Recognizing older adults as a valuable asset in strengthening American 
communities. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pat Branson, Mayor of the City of Kodiak, do 
hereby proclaim May 2014 as 
 

OLDER AMERICANS MONTH 
 

in Kodiak and urge every citizen to recognize this year’s theme focusing on injury 
prevention, “Safe Today. Healthy Tomorrow,” and take time this month to celebrate 
older adults and the people who serve and support them as powerful and vital 
citizens who greatly contribute to the community. 
 
 Dated this 22nd day of May 2014. 
 

        City of Kodiak 
 
         
        Pat Branson, Mayor 

19

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item III. c. Memo Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: May 22, 2014 

Agenda Item: III. c.  Public Hearing on Resolution No. 2014–22, Amending Section 14, Utilities 

(Sewer), of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs  

 

SUMMARY: The City sets its fees and charges for various services by a resolution of the Council. The 

public hearing on proposed fee schedule amendments is scheduled prior to New Business item V. b, 

Resolution No. 2014–22, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Sewer) of the Schedule of Fees, Charges and 

Tariffs. The proposed changes to fees pertain to the sewer rate increases. The sewer rate fee changes are 

proposed to take effect on July 1, 2014. 

 

The Council has requested a public hearing prior to amending fees. 

 

NOTES/ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A: Resolution No. 2014–22 

20



 

Resolution No. 2014–22 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–22 
     

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 

SECTION 14, UTILITIES (SEWER), OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES, CHARGES, AND 

TARIFFS 
 

 

WHEREAS, in 2014, the City contracted with CH2MHill to complete a review and to 

recommend an updated rate structure for the sewer system; and 

  

WHEREAS, the purpose of the update was to determine revenue requirements related to 

sewer system operation and maintenance and capital improvement needs for the next ten years; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the study shows existing sewer fees are not sufficient to fund operation and 

maintenance and capital improvements for the sewer system into the future; and 

  

 WHEREAS, at the May 20, 2014, work session the ten-year rate study was presented to 

the Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, at the May 22, 2014, regular meeting the Council held a public hearing on 

the proposed sewer rate increases. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that Section 14, Utilities (sewer) of the City’s Schedule of Fees, Charges and Tariffs, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference, is hereby amended. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the changes to the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and 

Tariffs herein shall be effected on July 1, 2014, unless subsequently amended by the City 

Council. 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

CITY OF KODIAK 

 MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

  

  

 CITY CLERK 

 
 

 

Adopted:  

 

 
 

21

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
0

1
4
–

2
2
 

P
a

g
e 

2
 o

f 
4

 

 C
ity

 o
f K

od
ia

k 
S

ew
er

 R
at

e 
S

tu
dy

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 S

ew
er

 R
at

es
, 

F
Y

20
14

/1
5 

– 
F

Y
 2

01
8/

19
 

  In
si

d
e 

C
it

y 
 

  
  

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
P

ro
je

ct
e

d
 

  
  

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
C

la
ss

 
B

as
is

 f
o

r 
C

h
ar

ge
 

FY
 2

0
1

3
-

1
4

 
FY

 2
0

1
4

-
1

5
 

FY
 2

0
1

5
-

1
6

 
FY

 2
0

1
6

-
1

7
 

FY
 2

0
1

7
-

1
8

 
FY

 2
0

1
8

-
1

9
 

Se
rv

ic
e

 C
h

ar
ge

 -
 In

si
d

e
 C

it
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
ar

tm
e

n
ts

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 d

w
el

lin
g 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

 
o

n
 u

n
it

 p
er

 3
,5

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

fl
o

o
r 

ar
ea

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

B
ak

er
y 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

0
 s

f 
o

f 
p

at
ro

n
 a

re
a 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

B
ar

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

B
ea

u
ty

 S
h

o
p

s/
B

ar
b

er
/A

n
im

al
 

G
ro

o
m

in
g 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
e

n
ce

 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
u

n
it

 p
e

r 
o

p
er

at
o

r 
ch

ai
r/

tu
b

 
$

3
1

.4
1

  
$

3
2

.9
8

  
$

3
4

.6
3

  
$

3
6

.3
6

  
$

3
8

.1
8

  
$

4
0

.0
9

  

B
&

B
 /

 B
o

ar
d

in
g 

H
o

u
se

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
/r

es
id

e
n

ce
 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

er
 g

u
es

t 
ro

o
m

 
$

3
1

.4
1

  
$

3
2

.9
8

  
$

3
4

.6
3

  
$

3
6

.3
6

  
$

3
8

.1
8

  
$

4
0

.0
9

  

C
h

u
rc

h
e

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
   

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 u
se

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
$

0
.0

0
  

$
0

.0
0

  
$

0
.0

0
  

$
0

.0
0

  
$

0
.0

0
  

$
0

.0
0

  

D
ay

 C
ar

e 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

/d
w

el
lin

g 
u

n
it

 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
q

u
ar

te
r 

u
n

it
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 5
 p

er
so

n
s 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
1

5
.7

0
  

$
1

6
.4

9
  

$
1

7
.3

1
  

$
1

8
.1

7
  

$
1

9
.0

8
  

$
2

0
.0

4
  

D
in

in
g 

Fa
ci

lit
y/

C
af

é/
B

ak
er

ie
s 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

D
o

ct
o

r'
s 

o
ff

ic
e,

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
lin

ic
, 

d
en

ti
st

  
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

D
ry

 C
le

an
e

rs
  

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

G
as

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 /

 A
u

to
 R

ep
ai

r 
Sh

o
p

 
2

 u
n

it
s 

p
er

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 
$

1
2

5
.6

1
  

$
1

3
1

.8
9

  
$

1
3

8
.4

9
  

$
1

4
5

.4
1

  
$

1
5

2
.6

8
  

$
1

6
0

.3
1

  

H
o

sp
it

al
/M

aj
o

r 
C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 b

ed
 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

H
o

te
l/

M
o

te
l 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

e
r 

gu
es

t 
ro

o
m

 w
/o

 c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
3

1
.4

1
  

$
3

2
.9

8
  

$
3

4
.6

3
  

$
3

6
.3

6
  

$
3

8
.1

8
  

$
4

0
.0

9
  

 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

 p
er

 g
u

es
t 

ro
o

m
 w

/c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
4

7
.1

0
  

$
4

9
.4

6
  

$
5

1
.9

3
  

$
5

4
.5

2
  

$
5

7
.2

5
  

$
6

0
.1

1
  

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

La
u

n
d

ri
e

s 
an

d
 b

at
h

 h
o

u
se

s 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

 p
er

 w
as

h
in

g 
m

ac
h

in
e

 
$

4
7

.1
0

  
$

4
9

.4
6

  
$

5
1

.9
3

  
$

5
4

.5
2

  
$

5
7

.2
5

  
$

6
0

.1
1

  

22



 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
0

1
4
–

2
2
 

P
a

g
e 

3
 o

f 
4
 

M
ea

ts
 o

r 
P

ro
d

u
ce

 R
et

ai
l S

to
re

s 
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

M
u

se
u

m
s 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 d
w

el
lin

g 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

O
ff

ic
e/

R
et

ai
l 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

P
o

w
er

h
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

R
es

id
e

n
ti

al
 (

n
o

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

ch
ar

ge
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
e-

b
as

e
d

 
o

ff
ic

e/
re

ta
il 

u
se

) 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 d

w
el

lin
g 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

R
es

t 
H

o
m

e/
Lo

n
g 

Te
rm

 C
ar

e 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

 b
ed

s 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

Sc
h

o
o

ls
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

 p
er

so
n

s 
in

 d
ai

ly
 a

tt
en

d
an

ce
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

st
af

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

Se
n

io
r 

C
it

iz
en

s 
(p

ri
m

ar
y 

re
si

d
en

ce
) 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 

$
3

1
.4

1
  

$
3

2
.9

8
  

$
3

4
.6

3
  

$
3

6
.3

6
  

$
3

8
.1

8
  

$
4

0
.0

9
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e,
 p

er
 m

o
n

th
 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r 

ra
te

 f
o

r 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 u

se
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g 

$
3

1
.4

1
  

$
3

2
.9

8
  

$
3

4
.6

3
  

$
3

6
.3

6
  

$
3

8
.1

8
  

$
4

0
.0

9
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e 
N

o
n

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
Fe

e
 

 
$

1
9

5
.0

5
  

$
2

0
4

.8
0

  
$

2
1

5
.0

4
  

$
2

2
5

.7
9

  
$

2
3

7
.0

8
  

$
2

4
8

.9
4

  

W
ar

eh
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

D
u

m
p

 F
ee

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  d
is

p
o

sa
l d

o
m

es
ti

c 
sl

u
d

ge
 

p
er

 g
al

lo
n

 
$

0
.3

2
  

$
0

.3
4

  
$

0
.3

5
  

$
0

.3
7

  
$

0
.3

9
  

$
0

.4
1

  

  d
is

p
o

sa
l s

ep
ti

c 
ta

n
k/

p
o

rt
ab

le
 

to
ile

t 
w

at
er

 
p

er
 g

al
lo

n
 

$
0

.2
3

  
$

0
.2

4
  

$
0

.2
5

  
$

0
.2

7
  

$
0

.2
8

  
$

0
.2

9
  

 

 O
u

ts
id

e
 C

it
y 

  
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 
  

  
 

 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

C
la

ss
 

B
as

is
 f

o
r 

C
h

ar
ge

 
FY

 2
0

1
3

-
1

4
 

FY
 2

0
1

4
-

1
5

 
FY

 2
0

1
5

-
1

6
 

FY
 2

0
1

6
-

1
7

 
FY

 2
0

1
7

-
1

8
 

FY
 2

0
1

8
-

1
9

 

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

 
o

n
 u

n
it

 p
er

 3
,5

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

fl
o

o
r 

ar
ea

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

B
ak

er
y 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

0
 s

f 
o

f 
p

at
ro

n
 a

re
a 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

B
ar

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

B
ea

u
ty

 S
h

o
p

s/
B

ar
b

er
/A

n
im

al
 

G
ro

o
m

in
g 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
e

n
ce

 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
u

n
it

 p
e

r 
o

p
er

at
o

r 
ch

ai
r/

tu
b

 
$

3
7

.6
4

  
$

3
9

.5
2

  
$

4
1

.5
0

  
$

4
3

.5
7

  
$

4
5

.7
5

  
$

4
8

.0
4

  

B
&

B
 /

 B
o

ar
d

in
g 

H
o

u
se

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
/r

es
id

e
n

ce
 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

er
 g

u
es

t 
ro

o
m

 
$

3
7

.6
4

  
$

3
9

.5
2

  
$

4
1

.5
0

  
$

4
3

.5
7

  
$

4
5

.7
5

  
$

4
8

.0
4

  

C
h

u
rc

h
e

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
   

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 u
se

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ay
 C

ar
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
/d

w
el

lin
g 

u
n

it
 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
q

u
ar

te
r 

u
n

it
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 5
 p

er
so

n
s 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
1

8
.8

3
  

$
1

9
.7

7
  

$
2

0
.7

6
  

$
2

1
.8

0
  

$
2

2
.8

9
  

$
2

4
.0

3
  

23



 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
0

1
4
–

2
2
 

P
a

g
e 

4
 o

f 
4

 

 D
in

in
g 

Fa
ci

lit
y/

C
af

é/
B

ak
er

ie
s 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

D
o

ct
o

r'
s 

o
ff

ic
e,

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
lin

ic
, 

d
en

ti
st

  
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

D
ry

 C
le

an
e

rs
  

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

G
as

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 /

 A
u

to
 R

ep
ai

r 
Sh

o
p

 
2

 u
n

it
s 

p
er

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 
$

1
5

0
.5

8
  

$
1

5
8

.1
1

  
$

1
6

6
.0

1
  

$
1

7
4

.3
2

  
$

1
8

3
.0

3
  

$
1

9
2

.1
8

  

H
o

sp
it

al
/M

aj
o

r 
C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 b

ed
 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

H
o

te
l/

M
o

te
l 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

e
r 

gu
es

t 
ro

o
m

 w
/o

 c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
3

7
.6

4
  

$
3

9
.5

2
  

$
4

1
.5

0
  

$
4

3
.5

7
  

$
4

5
.7

5
  

$
4

8
.0

4
  

 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

 p
er

 g
u

es
t 

ro
o

m
 w

/c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
5

6
.4

7
  

$
5

9
.2

9
  

$
6

2
.2

6
  

$
6

5
.3

7
  

$
6

8
.6

4
  

$
7

2
.0

7
  

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

La
u

n
d

ri
e

s 
an

d
 b

at
h

 h
o

u
se

s 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

er
 p

er
 w

as
h

in
g 

m
ac

h
in

e
 

$
5

6
.4

7
  

$
5

9
.2

9
  

$
6

2
.2

6
  

$
6

5
.3

7
  

$
6

8
.6

4
  

$
7

2
.0

7
  

M
ea

ts
 o

r 
P

ro
d

u
ce

 R
et

ai
l S

to
re

s 
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

M
u

se
u

m
s 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 d
w

el
lin

g 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

O
ff

ic
e/

R
et

ai
l 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

P
o

w
er

h
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

R
es

id
e

n
ti

al
 (

n
o

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

ch
ar

ge
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
e

-b
as

e
d

 
o

ff
ic

e/
re

ta
il 

u
se

) 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 d

w
el

lin
g 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

R
es

t 
H

o
m

e/
Lo

n
g 

Te
rm

 C
ar

e 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

 b
ed

s 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

Sc
h

o
o

ls
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

 p
er

so
n

s 
in

 d
ai

ly
 a

tt
en

d
an

ce
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

st
af

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

Se
n

io
r 

C
it

iz
en

s 
(p

ri
m

ar
y 

re
si

d
en

ce
) 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 

$
3

7
.6

4
  

$
3

9
.5

2
  

$
4

1
.5

0
  

$
4

3
.5

7
  

$
4

5
.7

5
  

$
4

8
.0

4
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e,
 p

er
 m

o
n

th
 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r 

ra
te

 f
o

r 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 u

se
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g 

$
3

7
.6

4
  

$
3

9
.5

2
  

$
4

1
.5

0
  

$
4

3
.5

7
  

$
4

5
.7

5
  

$
4

8
.0

4
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e 
N

o
n

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
Fe

e
 

 
$

1
9

5
.0

5
  

$
2

0
4

.8
0

  
$

2
1

5
.0

4
  

$
2

2
5

.7
9

  
$

2
3

7
.0

8
  

$
2

4
8

.9
4

  

W
ar

eh
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

D
u

m
p

 F
ee

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  d
is

p
o

sa
l d

o
m

es
ti

c 
sl

u
d

ge
 

p
er

 g
al

lo
n

 
$

0
.3

2
  

$
0

.3
4

  
$

0
.3

5
  

$
0

.3
7

  
$

0
.3

9
  

$
0

.4
1

  

  d
is

p
o

sa
l s

ep
ti

c 
ta

n
k/

p
o

rt
ab

le
 

to
ile

t 
w

at
er

 
p

er
 g

al
lo

n
 

$
0

.2
3

  
$

0
.2

4
  

$
0

.2
5

  
$

0
.2

7
  

$
0

.2
8

  
$

0
.2

9
  

 

24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

25



26



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

Staff looked at several options for replacement. The first was a coating liner. This had the benefit of not 

having to create a large opening in the building. The major problem with this is staff was not sure how 

structurally sound the existing tank is as well as how long it would be out of service. 

 

Staff looked at a bladder liner system that CH2MHill was familiar with. The quote arrived on Nov 19 

and had additional discussions with them about the process and condition of the existing tank. The liner 

system provides a much simpler and quicker work plan without having to relocate electrical and 

operation systems as well as totally eliminates the need to open the side of the building in order to 

remove the existing tank and install new tanks. Based on the concentration of the City’s disinfectant 

solution, up to 15 years or more life can be expected using a liner system, comparable to the same life 

span as the polyethylene tanks. 

 

After discussion and questions between staff and Stein Industries, staff concluded that the liner system 

will provide the dependability needed. Staff will still have to put together a temporary chlorination 

system, but for much shorter operation time. This shorter duration will reduce the amount of effort to 

monitor the temporary chlorination system by a significant amount. 

 

CH2MHill also provided a contact with Whitney Equipment Company. On August 19 and 20, 2013, 

they had a company technician in Kodiak and did a site inspection of the facility. They provided staff 

with a quote in late September. The quote included two tanks, equipment, and engineering support. The 

shortcoming of this system pertain to the additional work needed to gain access into the building and 

creating a temporary chlorination system that would operate for several weeks while all the other work 

is occurring to get the area ready for installation of the new tanks. This quote was quite a bit higher than 

the liner system plus an estimated additional cost equal to the quote. 

 

Based on staff follow up work, the liner system is recommended as the best and less expensive option. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Approve purchase of the liner to repair the existing tank. This would reduce the impact of having 

to open the building up, moving existing operation and control systems and based on solution 

concentration, we should see up to 15 years of life. This is the recommended option. 

2. Authorize the replacement of the existing fiberglass storage tank with two smaller polyethylene 

tanks and schedule 80 PVC plumbing as recommended in December. This option would do the 

job, however at a substantially higher installation cost considering all the extra work of opening 

the side of the building, moving electrical and operational controls, and much longer time 

operating the water system on a temporary chlorination system. Staff heavily considered these 

options and recommends using the liner system. 

3. Approve coating the interior of the existing tank. Staff has serious concern about the structural 

strength of the existing fiberglass tank in its current condition and do not recommend this option. 

27



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

4. Do nothing and retain existing equipment and system. Not replacing or reconditioning is not an 

option. This is a critical component of the water treatment system and must be upgraded. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Chlorine Tank Replacement Project No. 7030 has a current balance 

of $119,823.50. The account has adequate funding to cover the purchase of the liner for $24,220 as well 

as the estimated costs to prepare a temporary chlorination system.  

 

LEGAL: The City is required to meet federal and state standards for drinking water systems and must 

perform necessary maintenance or replacement to maintain required water quality. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council authorize the purchase and 

installation of the chlorine storage tank liner system per Stein Industries quote (Attachment A) in an 

amount not to exceed $30,000 with funds coming from Project No. 7030/11-08. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support staff’s recommendation to move forward with this 

purchase. We do not have flexibility in the maintenance or replacement of our regulated water system. 

The existing chlorine storage tank is in critical need of repair or replacement, and staff did their research 

on options available and selected a less expensive and more manageable alternative by installing the 

liner system rather than the original recommendation of replacing the existing tank with two smaller 

tanks. Therefore, I ask Council to authorize the purchase of this liner system. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A: Stein Industries proposal for complete liner system and installation 

 Attachment B: Whitney Company Quote 

 

 

 

 

 

Clerk’s Note: The motion to authorize the purchase of the replacement chlorine storage tanks, Project 

No. 7030/11-08, and the Whitney Equipment Company quote in an amount not to exceed $45,000, with 

funds coming from the Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 7030/11-08 and authorize the City 

Manager to execute the documents for the City is already on the floor. The following amendment is 

suggested. 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to amend the motion by striking storage tanks and inserting storage tank liner, striking 

Whitney Equipment Company quote and inserting Stein Industries proposal, and striking 

$45,000 and inserting $30,000. 

28



 
 
 
May 12, 2014 
 
 
 
Mr. Hap Heiburg 
Kodiak Wastewater Treatment Plant 
2853 Spruce Cape Rd. 
Kodiak, Alaska 99615 
 
 
 
Subject: Quote #Q1311-1R2; Chlorine tank liner. (Updated & corrected) 
 
 
 
Dear Mr. Heiburg, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to quote on this project for you.  I have reviewed the figures we first gathered in 
mid August and recalculated the travel expenses based on the work being done in the next 30 days or so.  
 
The tank is an existing FRP vessel, 8’ dia. with 2500 gal. capacity, flat bottom, dish top.  A 24” side manway, 
4” pump suction, 2” overflow, drain and fill lines will need to be lined.  The original Nexus veil lining of the 
tank, which provides the chemical resisitance for the tank, has been eroded away.  This also exposes the tank to 
wicking of the solution, via exposed and uncoated glass fibers, into the structural build portion of the vessel.  
Further deterioration could compromise the integrity of the tank.  The tank is located in an area of the building 
which only has pedestrian access.   
 
We propose to furnish a Witt Lining Systems 1/8” thick flexible PVC lining suitable for potable water exposure, 
which can be installed inside the tank.  The lining will be prefabricated to fit the tank at the factory using RF 
equipment.  This material and fabrication process is suitable for storage of up to 15% bleach concentration.  The 
lining is folded and inserted through one of the manway openings into the tank.  A polyethylene water pipe is 
inserted through a hem in the top of the liner to provide a rigid support ring.  The liner is then raised and 
secured in position via stainless steel cables and cable clamps protruding through holes drilled in the top of the 
tank at 12” intervals around the perimeter.  Sika-flex polyurethane caulk is used to reseal the holes with the 
cables protruding.  All flanged outlets below the top of the liner will be lined as well.  Any additional outlets 
required will be furnished using posi-flange compression fittings. 
 
Installation will be by personnel trained and approved as factory installers in field welding of the lining 
materials, appropriate methods of handling and lining support, leak detection and quality control, as well as 
OSHA safety requirements for working in confined spaces.  The lining will carry the manufacturer’s standard 
one year warranty against defects in materials and workmanship.  The installation is warranted for 2 years FOB 
Bryant, IN for tools and manpower.  For this project, as a cost cutting measure, we will make use of your in-
house confined space entry equipment and will require the support of one of your personnel as standby tank 
watch while we are working inside the vessel.  We may need the temporary assistance of another person to get 

29

pubdir
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT: A



the liner up the stairs and through the tank manway.  Only Stein industries personnel will enter the tank.  We 
anticipate being on site for 2-3 days to complete the installation. 
 
I am pleased to offer the lining and installation described above for $24,220.00, which includes all freight, 
transportation, and living expenses for the lining, tools, and personnel to Kodiak, AK.  This quote is valid for 30 
days.  Invoicing of 50% will be done upon receipt of order, due on receipt, balance upon completion, with terms 
of net 30 days.  Drawings will be furnished for approval once funds are received and lining fabrication can 
begin upon approval of the drawings.  Installation can be scheduled when the order is placed.  It is anticipated 
the lining can be installed within 3 -4 weeks of receipt of order. 
 
This product is custom fabricated, therefore cancellation of an order can result in substantial charges.  The 
attached Provisions for Work Performed on Site, and Terms and Conditions of Sale are to be considered part of 
this quote.  If you have further questions, please call.  We look forward to working with you! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Melvin Stein 
Stein Industries 
 
Attachments: Provisions for Work Performed on Site 
                      Terms and Conditions of Sale 
 

30



 

 
 
 
To: Hap  Heiberg      
Project: Kodiak WTP      
Quote Number: 19179      
Date: 9/25/2013       
 
Thank you for the business opportunity.  We are excited to serve you.  Our proposal follows: 
 

Tank System:  1550 Vertical Tanks 
Consisting of:   
Sodium Hypochlorite 
Storage 

2 1550 Gal Vertical 1.35 Specific Gravity Crosslinked 
Polyethylene Black with NSF Certification 

Lid/Manway 2 Cap 17" Buttress Thread Black Pe 
Fill 2 1" PVC Bulkhead Fitting W/Epdm Gasket 
Spare 2 1" PVC Bulkhead W/Epdm Gasket 
Pump Suction 2 B.O.S.S. Fitting 1" Assembly Pe/Pvc/Titan/Epdm 
Overflow 2 2" PVC Bulkhead Fitting W/Epdm Gasket 
Vent 2 U-Vent 3" PVC 
Reverse Float Level 
Gauge 

2 Level Gage Large Flt Type Pvc 

Restraint System  2 IBC-2009 Seismic Restraints 
 

System Subtotal:  $18,339.00 
Estimated Freight to 
Kodiak, AK: 

  
$8,750.00 

Estimated Freight to 
Seattle, WA: 
 
Service assistance 
Lot of misc. fittings and 
temporary tubing 

 
 
 

1 
1 

 
$2,214.00 (800 lbs. shipping weight) 
 
$3000 per trip (2 days on-site) 
$1500 

   
 
 
Whitney Equipment offers Poly Processing Company's reliable, robust tank systems for safe storage of 
harsh chemicals.  Our product line of cross-linked polyethylene storage tanks offers a margin of safety 
that meets or exceeds ASTM D 1998 standards. 
 
I will be contacting you soon to discuss this project and answer any questions you may have. Thank you 
for the opportunity.   
 
Lead-time is 15 working days or less upon receipt of an approved PO and signed approval drawing. 
 

Seattle	  Area 
21222	  30th	  Dr.	  SE	  #110 
Bothell,	  WA	  98021 
425-‐486-‐9499 

Portland	  Area 
7017	  NE	  Hwy.	  99	  #118	  
Vancouver,	  WA	  98665 

360-‐694-‐9175 

31

pubdir
Typewritten Text
$33,803.00

pubdir
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT: B



All sales are according to Poly Processing’s Terms and Conditions, available upon request and at 
http://www.polyprocessing.com/technical-resources/poly-processing-companys-terms-conditions/  
 
Warm regards, 
Dana Wehrman 
dwehrman@weci.com 
425-486-9499 
 
CC: Account Manager, Jason Morse jmorse@weci.com 503-310-9893 
  
 

32



33



Commonly known as bleach, sodium hypochlorite is used in a 
variety of applications, particularly for the disinfection of drinking 
water and wastewater. When it comes to storage of this chemical, 
three factors must be considered:

UV can degrade sodium hypochlorite, so special precautions •	
must be taken to reduce this effect.

Sodium hypochlorite typically contains transition metals such •	
as nickel, iron and copper, which can buildup in a storage tank 
creating off-gassing.

“Hypo” is a potent oxidizer, so all materials in the chemical’s •	
storage tank must be up to the task.

By addressing all three of these issues, this caustic chemical can 
be contained in a more secure and effective manner, with a tank 
system that meets NSF/ANSI Standard 61 for chemical storage. 

Sodium Hypochlorite. 
An aggressive oxidizer that presents a major storage challenge. 

www.polyprocessing.com

NaOCl
Sodium HypocHlorite

34



Poly’s OR-1000™ system is another key component of the Hypo 
System. OR-1000™ is the result of our exclusive rotomolding 
process, which creates a seamless bond between an inner 
surface of medium-density polyethylene and an outer surface of 
high-density crosslinked polyethylene. OR-1000™ allows four 
times the antioxidant strength of a normal polyethylene. In 
any application where OR-1000™ is used, all wetted surfaces – 
including covering the face of the IMFO® drain – are completely 
covered by the material, eliminating any opportunity for a 
chemical attack on the structural portion of the tank. 

Poly Processing’s Sodium Hypochlorite Storage Systems are 
specifically designed for containment of this challenging chemical. 
By using carbon black, white or gray compound XLPE resin, UV 
degradation of the chemical can be dramatically reduced. 
Mastic coatings and insulation are other ways to reduce UV’s 
effect on the chemical. 

To prevent the potential buildup of transition metals in the 
tank, Poly has developed the IMFO® system. This special 
design allows for full drainage of the tank, which can greatly 
increase the half-life of the chemical*.

The Poly Processing Hypo System

CHEMICAL
RESIN
TYPE

SPECIFIC GRAVITY 
RATING

FITTING
MATERIAL

GASKET
MATERIAL

BOLT
MATERIAL

Sodium Hypochlorite 9%–15% XLPE with OR-1000™ 1.9 PVC EPDM/Viton® Titanium

Sodium Hypochlorite 2%-9% XLPE with OR-1000™ 1.9 PVC EPDM/Viton® Titanium

Sodium Hypochlorite < 1% XLPE 1.35-1.9 PVC EPDM/Viton® Titanium
»» See our website for a complete Chemical Resistance Chart.

WWW.POLYPROCESSING.COM

NaOCl
SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

NOTE: To meet NSF-61 certification, use EPDM or Viton® GF.

*Natural tanks are available for indoor use.

35



Plumbing:
Requires flexible, Hypo-resistant 
connections [see pages 54-55] to 
allow for lateral and vertical tank 
contraction and expansion, and to 
reduce vibration stress

NOTE: Do NOT use stainless 
steel or Alloy C-276 due to nickel 
content reaction.

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

The above components are just a few of the many options offered 
by poly processing. See our website or talk to your poly processing 
representative to find out more.

High-density crosslinked polyethylene (XLPE) •	
outer surface ensures maximum corrosion 
protection through molecular bonding.

OR-1000™•	  molecularly bonds XLPE with an 
antioxidant inner surface that resists the heavily 
oxidizing nature of sodium hypochlorite.

Integrally Molded Flanged Outlet (IMFO®)•	  
constructed as part of tank ensures complete 
drainage. Non-IMFO® options also available

UV protection•	  for the chemical is achieved by 
using compounded black, white or gray resin or 
insulation coating to help maximize the half-life of 
the chemical for outdoor applications.

recommended System Components

Secondary containment: 
Recommended. 
Alternative: PPC secondary 
containment basin of XLPE,  
or SAFE-Tank® if concrete 
containment is not available.

Venting:
SAFE-Surge® manway 
cover is recommended on 
pneumatically loaded systems 
to support tank longevity.

Fittings:
IMFO® to prevent transition 
metal buildup

Tank Specifications

36



PLUMbIng TO THE Tank
Required use of•	  flexible connections with fittings on lower 
third of sidewall

Allows for lateral and vertical expansion and contraction of  »
the tank
Reduces pump and piping vibration stress on the tank »

Expansion joints must meet the following minimum requirements:•	
Axial Compression  » ≥ 1.5˝
Axial Extension  » ≥ 0.625˝
Lateral Deflection  » ≥ 0.750˝
Angular Deflection  » ≥ 14°
Torsional Rotation  » ≥ 4°

VEnTIng
Please refer to the venting chart on www.polyprocessing.com/
pdf/technical/Venting.pdf

FOUnDaTIOn anD RESTRaInTS

PPC IMFO® tank pad or smooth concrete, asphalt or steel •	
foundation designed to accommodate IMFO®, SAFE-Tank® 
or vertical tank
No restraint or ladder attachment bands circumscribing the •	
tank are allowed. Cable restraint systems must pass cables 
over the top of the tank.

TEMPERaTURE
Product should not exceed 100°F at delivery or during storage 
to reduce the decomposition of the chemical and maintain 
ASTM D1998 design parameters.

LID
SAFE-Surge® manway cover for pneumatically loaded tanks; 
bolted manway cover for all other applications

OPTIOnS
Restraint systems for wind and seismic, level gauges, ladders, 
heating pads, insulation, fume-tight manway cover, NSF-61 
certification and engineering stamp

Tank
IMFO® Vertical Flat bottom of XLPE with OR-1000™:

1,000–13,650 gallons•	
1.9 spg rating•	

NOTE: 230–1,000 gallons do not require OR-1000™.

non-IMFO® alternative*: 

Standard Vertical Flat bottom XLPE with OR-1000™:

1,000–13,650 gallons•	
1.9 spg rating•	

NOTE: 30–1,000 gallons do not require OR-1000™.

*Three-year warranty offered on Non-IMFO® alternatives.

SaFE-Tank® XLPE:

1,500–8,700 gallons•	
1.9 spg rating for primary tank with OR-1000™•	
Spg ratings for secondary tanks •	 ≥ 3,000 gallons may be equal 
to or 1 less spg than primary tank.
All other tank sizes must equal primary tank spg rating.•	

NOTE: 55–1,000 gallons do not require OR-1000™.
Black, white or gray color or insulation with mastic coating 
required in outdoor applications to minimize bleach degradation 
and maximize chemical half-life.

SECOnDaRY COnTaInMEnT
Recommend SaFE-Tank® secondary XLPE as shown above.
non-SaFE-Tank® alternatives:

PPC secondary containment basin•	
Other secondary containment suitable for sodium •	
hypochlorite, of adequate size for use

FITTIngS
Sidewall: Recommend 3˝ maximum B.O.S.S.® fitting
Dome: No restrictions

Technical Overview:
Sodium Hypochlorite Storage Tanks.

CAUTION! The life of a Sodium Hypochlorite Storage System is greatly 
affected by the quality of the chemical itself. Tank owners are cautioned 
to use high-quality sodium hypo with low iron, nickel and copper 
content, to avoid decomposition of the chemical and acceleration of the 
oxidization and degradation of the tank.

WWW.polyproCeSSINg.Com

CaLIFORnIa
8055 S. Ash St.

French Camp, CA 95231
Tel: 877.325.3142

LOUISIana
P. O. Box 4150

2201 Old Sterlington Rd.
Monroe, LA 71203
Tel: 866.590.6845

VIRgInIa
161 McGhee Rd.

Winchester, VA 22603
Tel: 866.590.6845

sales@polyprocessing.com

July 2010
37



Bolts: 316 stainless steel, titanium  
and C-276

Body: Polyethylene

Connections: socketed

Size: 1, 2 and 3-in.

Gaskets: EPDM, Viton®, Viton® GF

Options: flange adapter, siphon leg

After extensive development and testing, 
chemical tank manufacturer Poly Processing 
introduces the official release of the 
B.O.S.S.™, a new, simplified fitting that 
offers a superior margin of safety in design. 
With its streamlined one-piece structure, 
the B.O.S.S.™ (bolted one-piece sure seal) 
reduces seal points to a single gasket. 

This breakthrough product has undergone 
third-party engineering validation for its 
structural and mechanical properties. Its 
features include:

An innovative back-ring design that •	
reduces stress on the fitting, making 
it three times stronger than its plastic 
counterparts. 

Easy maintenance and troubleshooting, •	
since the pipe connection is extended 
beyond the sidewall of the tank. 

Easy installation, since the fitting comes •	
fully assembled and pressure tested.

To find out more about the B.O.S.S.™ or any 
of a number of other innovations in chemical 
storage, visit our website, or contact Poly 
Processing at 800.523.9871 (Louisiana) or 
877.325.3142 (California).

www.polyprocessing.com

Poly Processing Introduces the B.O.S.S.™ Fitting:
With a Bolted, One-Piece, Sure-Seal Design for Superior Leak Protection.

preSS releaSe

38



39



40



41



42



LI
M

IT
ED

 W
A

R
R

A
N

TY
 

Po
ly

 P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

C
om

pa
ny

 
 

 
Po

ly
 P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
C

om
pa

ny
 P

ro
du

ct
 

 

 
W

ar
ra

nt
y 

Pe
rio

d 
 

 C
R

O
SS

LI
N

K
ED

 P
O

LY
ET

H
YL

EN
E 

TA
N

K
S 

fo
r a

ll 
su

ita
bl

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 e

xc
ep

t t
ho

se
 li

st
ed

 b
el

ow
 

 

 
5 

yr
s 

 IM
FO


 T

A
N

K
S 

ST
O

R
IN

G
 S

O
D

IU
M

 H
YP

O
C

H
LO

R
IT

E 
9 

– 
15

 w
t%

 (r
ef

er
 to

 P
P

C
 P

os
iti

on
 S

ta
te

m
en

t) 
H

D
XL

PE
 w

/ O
R

-1
00

0
, 1

.9
 s

pg
 ra

tin
g 

 

 
5 

yr
s 

 N
O

N
-IM

FO


 T
A

N
K

S 
ST

O
R

IN
G

 S
O

D
IU

M
 H

YP
O

C
H

LO
R

IT
E 

9 
– 

15
 w

t%
 (r

ef
er

 to
 P

P
C

 P
os

iti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t) 

10
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 a
nd

 la
rg

er
: H

D
XL

PE
 w

/ O
R

-1
00

0
, 1

.9
 s

pg
 ra

tin
g 

Le
ss

 th
an

 1
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

: H
D

XL
PE

 1
.9

 s
pg

 ra
tin

g 
 

 
3 

yr
s 

 TA
N

K
S 

ST
O

R
IN

G
 S

U
LF

U
R

IC
 A

C
ID

 ≥
 8

0%
 C

O
N

C
EN

TR
A

TI
O

N
 (r

ef
er

 to
 P

P
C

 P
os

iti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t) 

SA
FE

-T
A

N
K

to

 8
70

0 
ga

llo
ns

: H
D

XL
P

E
 w

/ O
R

-1
00

0
, 2

.2
 s

pg
 ra

tin
g 

V
er

tic
al

 ta
nk

s 
10

00
 - 

66
00

 g
al

lo
ns

: H
D

X
LP

E
 w

/ O
R

-1
00

0
, 2

.2
 s

pg
 ra

tin
g 

V
er

tic
al

 ta
nk

s 
le

ss
 th

an
 1

00
0 

ga
llo

ns
: H

D
X

LP
E 

1.
9 

sp
g 

ra
tin

g 
 

 
3 

yr
s 

 TA
N

K
S 

ST
O

R
IN

G
 H

YD
R

O
C

H
LO

R
IC

 A
C

ID
 ≤

 3
7%

 C
O

N
C

EN
TR

A
TI

O
N

 (r
ef

er
 to

 P
PC

 P
os

iti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t) 

H
D

XL
PE

 w
/ O

R
-1

00
0

, 1
.9

 s
pg

 ra
tin

g 
 

 
5 

yr
s 

 TA
N

K
S 

ST
O

R
IN

G
 H

YD
R

O
C

H
LO

R
IC

 A
C

ID
 ≤

 3
7%

 C
O

N
C

EN
TR

A
TI

O
N

 (r
ef

er
 to

 P
PC

 P
os

iti
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t) 

H
D

XL
PE

 1
.9

 s
pg

 ra
tin

g 
 

 
3 

yr
s 

 LI
N

EA
R

 P
O

LY
ET

H
YL

EN
E 

TA
N

K
S 

fo
r a

ll 
su

ita
bl

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 th
os

e 
lis

te
d 

ab
ov

e 
 

 
3 

yr
s 

 P
ol

y 
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
C

om
pa

ny
’s

 w
ar

ra
nt

y 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f r
ep

ai
r 

or
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f d
ef

ec
tiv

e 
pr

od
uc

t. 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d/
or

 u
se

r 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 c
le

an
ed

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

t i
n 

qu
es

tio
n 

fo
r 

ev
al

ua
tio

n.
 

P
ro

du
ct

 d
is

po
sa

l o
r a

lte
rn

at
e 

us
e 

is
 th

e 
ow

ne
r a

nd
/o

r u
se

r’s
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y.

 W
ar

ra
nt

y 
be

gi
ns

 a
t d

at
e 

of
 s

hi
pm

en
t f

ro
m

 P
P

C
 p

la
nt

. P
ar

ts
 a

nd
 a

nc
ill

ar
y 

ite
m

s 
ar

e 
w

ar
ra

nt
ed

 fo
r n

in
et

y 
(9

0)
 d

ay
s.

 
 P

ol
y 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

C
om

pa
ny

’s
 li

ab
ili

ty
 is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 e

ith
er

 r
ep

ai
r 

or
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

of
 it

s 
pr

od
uc

t. 
B

y 
ac

ce
pt

in
g 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
du

ct
, 

ow
ne

r 
an

d/
or

 u
se

r 
w

ai
ve

s 
an

y 
cl

ai
m

 a
ga

in
st

 P
PC

 f
or

 in
ci

de
nt

al
 o

r 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ia
l d

am
ag

es
 a

s 
th

ey
 r

el
at

e 
to

 lo
st

 p
ro

fit
s 

or
 s

al
es

 o
r 

to
 in

ju
ry

 o
f p

er
so

ns
 o

r 
pr

op
er

ty
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 c

on
ta

in
m

en
t. 

O
w

ne
r 

an
d/

or
 u

se
r 

ac
ce

pt
s 

fu
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
co

nt
ai

nm
en

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
nd

 a
de

qu
at

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
to

re
d 

m
at

er
ia

l. 
 Th

is
 w

ar
ra

nt
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

nu
lli

fie
d 

if:
 

1.
 

P
ro

du
ct

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
us

ed
 in

 m
an

ne
r o

th
er

 th
an

 it
s 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 d

ec
la

re
d 

pu
rp

os
e 

or
 if

 P
P

C
 ta

nk
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

fo
llo

w
ed

. 
2.

 
P

ro
du

ct
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

in
st

al
le

d,
 u

se
d,

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

) 
al

l f
ed

er
al

, s
ta

te
, a

nd
 lo

ca
l l

aw
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
; b

) 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 in

du
st

ry
; c

) 
gu

id
el

in
es

 s
et

 fo
rth

 in
 th

e 
P

P
C

 In
st

al
la

tio
n 

M
an

ua
l a

nd
/o

r i
n 

P
P

C
 P

os
iti

on
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

3.
 

P
ro

du
ct

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
al

te
re

d 
or

 re
pa

ire
d 

by
 u

na
ut

ho
riz

ed
 p

er
so

nn
el

. 
4.

 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

de
fe

ct
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

ar
ra

nt
y 

pe
rio

d.
 

5.
 

In
vo

ic
e 

fo
r p

ro
du

ct
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

pa
id

. 
6.

 
P

ro
du

ct
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

su
bj

ec
te

d 
to

 m
is

us
e,

 n
eg

lig
en

ce
, f

ire
, a

cc
id

en
t, 

ac
t o

f w
ar

, o
r a

ct
 o

f G
od

. 
 Th

e 
lim

ite
d 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
de

sc
rib

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
is

 P
ol

y 
Pr

oc
es

si
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

’s
 s

ol
e 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 fi
na

l a
nd

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f t

he
 te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
w

ar
ra

nt
y.

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
/o

r u
se

r m
ay

 n
ot

 
re

ly
 o

n 
an

y 
or

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
r r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
. T

hi
s 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
is

 n
ei

th
er

 a
ss

ig
na

bl
e 

no
r t

ra
ns

fe
ra

bl
e.

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Is

su
ed

: S
ep

te
m

be
r 1

, 2
00

3 

43

jason
Rectangle



44



 

 MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 2 of 3 

Afognak completed the survey of the requested parcel in December 2013, and the City received a final 

appraisal report in early December. The appraisal identified the market value of the parcel at $95,000, or 

$6.34 per square foot for 15,000 square feet and recommended a lease rate of 8 percent of value. KCC 

18.12.110 states the minimum rental price would be 1/10
th

 of the current appraised value. 

 

The discrepancy in the survey identifying the lease area was discovered the day the ordinance and lease 

were introduced at the Council meeting on February 13. The Council agreed to continue the first reading 

of the ordinance until the discrepancy was resolved. City staff worked with Afognak to walk the site and 

identify the area to be leased, and Afognak completed a new survey (Attachment B) that indicated the 

lease area to be 17,727 square feet. City staff confirmed the land value of the larger portion of USS 4947 

remained the same.   

 

Therefore, at 10 percent of the value the lease reflects a rate of $930.67 per month for the duration of the 

five-year lease, which would become effective approximately 37 days from passage of the ordinance. 

The lease also provides for two successive five-year renewal options if both parties agree and the request 

is made in writing to the City. Staff believes the lease terms are reasonable and gives the City time to 

conduct a land use analysis and develop an updated plan for its Near Island properties to better address 

how to oversee development there as a wide variety of development and usage has occurred in recent 

years.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 1316 in the second reading, which is the staff recommendation, because it 

supports both Afognak and the City’s interests at least in the near-term. 

2. Delay or do not approve the ordinance, which is not recommended.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The lease, if approved, will provide the General Fund with $11,168 

per year in rents over the course of a five-year period.  

 

LEGAL: The City Attorney reviewed the request for staff and drafted the lease document attached. The 

lease must be authorized by ordinance to meet the requirements of Section V-17 of the City Charter and 

will not become effective for at least one month after final adoption of the ordinance. The lease rate is 

set per KCC 18.12.110, which states the minimum lease rate will be 1/10
th

 of the current appraised value 

of the property which is $112,389.  

 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION AND COMMENTS: I support Afognak’s request to 

lease the 17,727 sf parcel next to their property on Alimaq Drive. I believe it’s in the City’s best interest 

to enter this lease, because the City will retain ownership, the lease will provide revenue to the General 

Fund, and an updated land use study for Near Island can be prepared during the lease term. I believe the 

lease supports Afognak’s investment in Kodiak and protects their viewshed, although they would prefer 

purchase or a long-term lease.  

 

 

45



 

 MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. b. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1316 

Attachment B: Proposed lease between the City and Afognak 

Attachment C: MacSwain and Associates Summary of appraised value, dated Nov 25, 2013 

Attachment D: Letter of request from Afognak, dated March 21, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1316.  

46



Ordinance No. 1316 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1316 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING A LEASE TO AFOGNAK NATIVE CORPORATION OF A 17,727 SQUARE FOOT 

(0.407 ACRE) PORTION OF USS 4947 LOCATED ADJACENT TO TRACT D-1B 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak (“City”) owns a 17,727 square foot (0.407 acre) portion 

of USS 4947 on Near Island located adjacent to Tract D-1B USS 4947 (“Premises”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Afognak Native Corporation (“Afognak”), the owner of Tract D-1B, has 

requested to lease the Premises from the City to preserve the Premises as open space and protect 

the viewshed for Tract D-1B; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Premises is not required for any public pur-

pose, and that it is in the best interest of the City to authorize a lease of the Premises to Afognak. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

as follows: 

 

Section 1: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20, the 

Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the lease of the Premises to Afognak 

in the form now before this meeting (“Lease”), for a term of five years plus two five-

year renewal options, and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and di-

rected to execute and deliver the Lease on behalf of the City, in substantially the form 

and content now before this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions 

and deletions therein as shall to her seem necessary, desirable or appropriate, the exe-

cution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, 

modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said docu-

ment now before this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said 

document, the City Manager and City Clerk, and their respective designees, each 

hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to execute 

all documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of 

said document as executed. 

 

Section 2: The Lease authorized by this ordinance is subject to the requirements of City Charter 

Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with signatures are 

properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of this ordinance, 

this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions are finally found to 

be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal and sufficient, un-

til the ordinance is approved at an election by a majority of the qualified voters voting 

on the question. If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, this ordinance shall 

go into effect one month after its passage and publication. 

 

 

 

 

 

47

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1316 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

CITY CLERK 

 

First Reading:  Postponed February 13, 2014 

Continued First Reading: April 24, 2014  

Second Reading:    

Effective Date:     

48



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 1 of 11 

LEASE FOR CITY PROPERTY 

BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF KODIAK AND AFOGNAK NATIVE CORPORATION 
 

 This LEASE FOR REAL PROPERTY (the “Lease) is made and entered into and effective 

as of the ____ day of _________ 2014 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF 

KODIAK, an Alaska municipal corporation (“Lessor”), and AFOGNAK NATIVE 

CORPORATION, an Alaska Native corporation (“Lessee”). 

1. Premises.  Lessor, for and in consideration of the rents, covenants, and conditions 

hereinafter specified to be paid, performed, and observed by Lessee, hereby leases to Lessee, and 

Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the unimproved real property located in Kodiak, Alaska, more 

particularly described on Exhibit A and diagramed on Exhibit B, attached hereto, together with 

all rights, rights-of-way, easements, alleys, reversionary rights and privileges, and appurtenances 

now or hereafter belonging or appertaining thereto, pursuant to this Lease (the “Premises”).  

Lessor expressly reserves the right to grant easements or rights-of-way across the Premises. 

2. Use and Acceptance of Premises.   

2.1 Use.  Lessee may use and occupy the Premises solely for maintaining the 

unobstructed viewshed of the Near Island Channel and the City of Kodiak from Lessee’s 

headquarters building on adjacent property.  No structures shall be placed on the property.  The 

Premises shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written consent of Lessor, 

which Lessor may withhold in its sole discretion. Lessee shall keep the entire Premises in a 

clean, safe, sanitary, and orderly condition and in good maintenance, repair, and condition at all 

times. Lessee shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, rules, 

regulations, orders, and ordinances (regardless of their enactment date) affecting, in any manner 

or portion, the Premises, Lessee’s property, and/or Lessee’s operations. Lessee shall not use or 

permit any part of the Premises to be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purpose or perform, 

permit, or suffer any act or omission upon or about the Premises or improvements which would 

result in a nuisance or a violation of any applicable laws, ordinances, or regulations.  Lessee shall 

not cause or permit any waste, damage, or injury to the Premises and shall not vacate or abandon the 

Premises at any time during the Term. 

2.2 Acceptance.  Lessee has inspected the Premises and Lessee accepts the 

Premises “AS IS, WITH ALL FAULTS.”  Lessor makes no warranties, expressed or implied, 

concerning the title or condition of the Premises, including survey, access, utility availability, or 

suitability for use, including those uses authorized by this Lease.  Lessor shall have no liability or 

obligation with respect to the condition, maintenance, or use of the Premises or any improvements 

hereinafter placed on the Premises. 

3. Term.  

3.1 Initial Term.  The initial term of this Lease shall be for a period of five (5) 

years, beginning on the Effective Date and expiring at 11:59 pm, _________ ___, 2019 (the 

“Initial Term”). On that date the lease will terminate, unless renewed as provided in Section 3.2. 

49

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 2 of 11 

3.2 Renewal Term.  Lessee shall have the option to renew this Lease 

(“Renewal Option”) for two (2) successive five (5) year terms (each a “Renewal Term”) by 

giving Lessor written notice of its intent to commence a Renewal Term at least thirty (30) 

calendar days, but not more than sixty (60) calendar days, before the date the then current term 

would otherwise expire, provided that at the time of each renewal notice and the date of 

commencement of each Renewal Term, Lessee is in compliance with all Lease terms.  Failure of 

Lessee to exercise the option as to any Renewal Term shall terminate the option as to all 

succeeding Renewal Terms.  Unless otherwise required by the context, references herein to 

“Term” include both the Initial Term and any Renewal Term. 

4. Rent.  

4.1 General.  Lessee shall pay in advance to Lessor monthly rent (“Rent”), 

commencing on the Effective Date and due thereafter on the first day of each month during the 

Term.  Rent shall be paid at the address shown in Section 17 below, or such other place as Lessor 

may designate in writing from time to time.  All Rent shall be paid without prior demand or 

notice and without any deduction or offset whatsoever.  All Rent shall be paid in lawful currency 

of the United States of America.  Rent due for any partial month shall be prorated on the basis of 

the number of days included in the Lease Term. 

4.2 Rental Amount and Adjustments.  Rent for the first year of this Lease shall 

be Nine Hundred Thirty Dollars and Sixty Seven Cents ($930.67) per month.  Rent adjustments, 

including establishing Rent for any Renewal Term entered, shall occur as directed under Kodiak 

City Code 18.20.220 as amended from time to time.  

5. Additional Rent.  

5.1. Triple Net Lease.  This is a triple net Lease, and Lessee shall be 

responsible for all costs of operating the Premises.  Any payment called for in this Lease other 

than Rent shall be deemed Additional Rent and shall be due as set forth in this Lease, or in the 

absence of a contrary provision, within ten (10) days of invoice.  The failure to pay Additional 

Rent shall entitle Lessor to the same remedies as the failure to pay Rent. 

5.2. Property Taxes and Assessments. Beginning on the Effective Date Lessee 

agrees to promptly pay, as Additional Rent, to the public authorities charged with the collection 

thereof, as the same become due and payable, all taxes, assessments (general and special), 

permits, inspection, and license fees and other public charges, whether of a like or different 

nature, levied upon or assessed against the Premises and any buildings, structures, fixtures, or 

improvements now or hereafter located thereon, or arising in respect to the occupancy, use, or 

possession of the Premises, and which are assessed and are, or may become, a lien during the 

Lease Term; Lessee agrees to exhibit to Lessor, on demand, receipts evidencing payment of all 

taxes, assessments, and public charges so payable by Lessee.   

5.3. Other Taxes.  As Additional Rent, Lessee further agrees to pay any sales, 

use, gross receipts, or business revenues tax that may in the future be imposed by any public 

authority upon the rents or revenues payable to Lessor hereunder.  Lessor agrees and understands 

50



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 3 of 11 

that the payment of Rent to Lessor shall be net of any such tax that may be imposed upon gross 

rents or revenues, and those taxes shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor as Additional Rent. 

5.4. Utilities.  All costs for utilities and other services necessary for the operation 

of the Premises, improvements thereon, and Lessee’s activities thereon, including without 

limitation, water, sewer, garbage, and snow removal, shall be provided by Lessee at Lessee’s sole 

cost and expense.  Lessee shall be solely responsible, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, for 

necessary utility hook-ups and connection, including without limitation, those necessary for water 

and sewer. 

5.5. Payment by Lessor.  Lessor shall have the right to pay any taxes, 

assessments, levies, or other charges upon the Premises, or other charges payable by Lessee 

under the terms of this Lease, and to pay, cancel, and clear off all tax sales, liens, charges, and 

claims upon or against the Premises or any building or improvement that may be placed thereon, 

and redeem the Premises from the same, from time to time without being obligated to inquire as 

to the validity of the same.  Any sum so paid by Lessor shall become Additional Rent due and 

payable by Lessee on the next day after any such payment by Lessor. 

6. Quiet Enjoyment. Lessor hereby represents and warrants to Lessee that Lessee, 

upon paying the Rent, Additional Rent, and other charges provided for in this Lease as well as 

observing and keeping all of the Lease covenants and conditions required of Lessee, Lessee shall 

lawfully and quietly hold, occupy, and enjoy the Premises during the Term without hindrance or 

interference by Lessor or by any person or entity claiming a right, title, or interest in or to the 

Premises through Lessor. 

7. Insurance. As of the Effective Date, Lessee shall have obtained and shall maintain 

throughout the Term, public liability insurance coverage as required under this Lease. All 

coverage shall be with insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 

Alaska. All coverage shall be with carriers acceptable to Lessor. The required lines and limits of 

insurance shall not be less than (1) $1,000,000 per person, $3,000,000 in the aggregate per 

accident, and $2,000,000 property damage; or (2) amounts which the Lessor reasonably requires 

to adequately cover the risks involved.  Upon the commencement of the first Renewal Term and 

each Renewal Term thereafter, upon request of either party, Lessor and Lessee shall agree upon 

new limits for such insurance coverage, which new limits shall, at a minimum, reflect increases 

(but not decreases) to the cost of living during the Renewal Term.  Lessee shall procure and 

maintain property insurance on any buildings and improvements on the Premises in a minimum 

amount equal to the replacement value of such building and improvements, and Lessee shall 

name Lessor and Lessee as insureds on all insurance policies that Lessee is required to maintain 

under the provisions of this Section 8.  Lessee shall furnish copies of certificates evidencing 

insurance coverage to Lessor automatically, without demand of Lessor, within thirty (30) days of 

the Effective Date. 

8. Indemnification.  

8.1 General.  Lessee shall save, protect, hold harmless, indemnify, and defend 

Lessor, and Lessor’s officers, directors, employees, agents, and shareholders, of, from, and against 

any and all liability, damages, demands, penalties, fines, causes of action, losses, costs, or expenses, 

51



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 4 of 11 

including attorneys fees, arising from any act, omission, or negligence of Lessee or the officers, 

contractors, subcontractors, licensees, agents, servants, employees, sublessees, guests, invitees, 

visitors, customers, or trespassers of Lessee in or about the Premises or improvements located 

thereon, or arising from any accident, injury, or damages however and by whomever caused, to any 

person or property, including but not limited to damage to the Premises itself, improvements 

thereon, or injury to or death of persons, occurring in or about the Premises or improvements 

located thereon, or in any manner arising out of Lessee’s use and occupation of the Premises or 

improvements thereon, or as a result of the condition of the Premises or improvements thereon.   

8.2 Environmental.  Lessee shall abide by, and shall cause its employees, 

agents, customers, any contractors or subcontractors it employs, and any sublessees, and its and 

all of their invitees and guests, to abide by all applicable rules and regulations related to fire, 

safety, health, and environmental protection.  Lessee shall transport and dispose of any 

Hazardous Substances in accordance with all applicable laws.  Hazardous Substances may not be 

used or stored on the Premises without Lessor’s express written consent.  Without limiting the 

duty to indemnify as provided in Section 8.1 above, Lessee shall save, protect, defend, 

indemnify, and hold harmless Lessor from and against any and all demands, claims, causes of 

action (whether in the nature of an action for damages, indemnity, contribution, government cost 

recovery, or otherwise), lawsuits, settlements, actions, damages, fines, penalties, judgments, 

costs, and expenses (including without limitation costs of defense, settlement, and reasonable 

attorneys’ fees), charges, forfeitures, liens, liabilities, or loses of any nature and kind whatsoever 

that arise during or after the Lease Term from or in connection with the presence or suspected 

presence of Hazardous Substances in the soil, groundwater, or otherwise on, above, or in the 

Premises, or otherwise generating from the Premises, or operations or activities thereon, or from 

Lessee (or its employees, affiliates, parents, agents, contractors, subcontractors, sublessees, 

guests, invitees, customers, or assigns, and their respective employees, agents, contractors, 

subcontractors, or subusers), or from any alleged or actual violation of an Environmental Law.  

This indemnification includes, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any 

investigation of site conditions or any clean-up, remedial, removal, or restoration work.  For 

purposes of this Lease, the term “Hazardous Substance” means any flammables, explosives, 

radioactive materials, crude or refined petroleum, pollutants, contaminants, or any hazardous, 

toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material, including asbestos, defined as such in (or for 

purposes of) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (42 

U.S.C. Sec. 9601 et. seq.), any so-called “Superfund” or “Superlien” law, or any other 

Environmental Law, including, but not limited to, Alaska Statutes Title 46, Chapters .03, .08, and 

.09, as now or at any time hereafter in effect.  For purposes of this Lease, the term 

“Environmental Law” means any federal, state, or local laws, ordinances, codes, regulations, 

rules, orders, or decrees, relating to or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning the 

treatment, storage, use, or disposal of any Hazardous Substances. 

8.3 Survival. All of the foregoing indemnification, defense, and hold harmless 

obligations in Sections 8.1 and 8.2 above survive the expiration or early termination of this Lease. 

9. Inspection. Lessor and its authorized representatives and agents shall have the 

right, but not the obligation, to enter the Premises at any reasonable time to inspect the use and 

condition of the Premises; to serve, post, or keep posted any notices required or allowed under 

52



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 5 of 11 

the provisions of this Lease, including notices of non-responsibility for liens; and to do any act or 

action necessary for the safety or preservation of the Premises. 

10. Condemnation. If all of the Premises or such portion as may be required for the 

reasonable use of the Premises, are taken by eminent domain, this Lease shall automatically 

terminate as of the date Lessee is required to vacate the Premises, and all Rent shall be paid, which 

is due and owing through that date.  In the case of a taking of less than that portion of the Premises 

required for the reasonable use of the Premises, then this Lease shall continue in full force and 

effect, and the Rent shall be equitably reduced based upon the proportion of the square footage by 

which the Premises is reduced, such rent reduction to be effective as of the date possession of such 

portion is delivered to the condemning authority.  Lessor reserves all rights to just compensation 

and/or damage for any taking of the Premises, and Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor, and Lessee shall 

make no claim against Lessor, for damages arising out of the condemnation, provided, Lessee shall 

have the right to claim and recover from the condemning authority, to the extent permitted by law, 

compensation for any loss to which Lessee may be put for the improvements or for Lessee’s 

moving expenses to the extent such damages may be claimed and awarded separately from the 

damages and/or compensation awarded to Lessor. 

11. Assignment or Subletting. Except as provided below, Lessee shall not sublet, 

mortgage, pledge, or assign its rights under this Lease without the prior written consent of Lessor, 

which may be withheld in Lessor’s sole and absolute discretion.  Any purported sublease, mortgage, 

pledge, or assignment without Lessor’s written consent shall be null and void and of no force or 

effect.  Any permitted assignment or sublease will be subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Lease.   

12. Liens.  Lessee shall keep the Premises and any part thereof free from liens for labor 

or materials ordered or supplied upon the express or implied request of Lessee.  Should any lien be 

recorded or a lien be recorded by Lessee, Lessee shall forthwith and within ten (10) days of learning 

of the recording cause the same to be cancelled and discharged of record at Lessee’s sole cost and 

expense. 

13. Surrender of Premises.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of the Term, 

Lessee shall: quit and surrender the Premises to Lessor clean and in the condition existing on the 

Effective Date, ordinary wear and tear excepted; remove all of Lessee’s property; and, at Lessor’s 

option, remove any alteration, addition, and improvement made by Lessee, repairing all damages to 

the Premises caused by such removal.  Any improvements or installations that are required to be 

removed but are not shall be deemed to have been abandoned by Lessee and may be retained or 

disposed of by Lessor, as Lessor shall desire and in accordance with Kodiak City Code, but Lessee 

shall be responsible for the cost of restoring the Premises as well as all removal and disposal costs. 

14. Holding Over.  If Lessee fails to surrender the Premises at the expiration or earlier 

termination of this Lease, occupancy of the Premises shall be deemed to be that of a month-to-

month tenancy.  Lessee’s occupancy of the Premises during the holdover shall be subject to all 

terms and provisions of this Lease, except Rent shall be 150% of the then-current Rent.  No 

holdover by Lessee or payment by Lessee after the expiration or early termination of this Lease 

shall be construed to extend the Term or prevent Lessor from immediately recovering possession of 

the Premises by summary proceedings or otherwise.   

53



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 6 of 11 

15. Subsidence.  Lessor shall not be responsible for any washout, subsidence, evulsion, 

settling or reliction to the Premises, or for any injury caused thereby to Lessee’s or any other 

person’s property. Lessor is not obligated to replace, refill, or improve any part of the Premises 

during Lessee’s occupancy in the event of such washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling, or reliction.  

16. Default and Remedies.  

16.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute 

a default by Lessee: 

(a) If Lessee at any time during the Lease Term shall fail to make 

payment of any installment of Rent, Additional Rent, or of any other sum herein specified to be 

paid by Lessee within ten (10) days after such payment is due; or 

(b) If Lessee at any time during the Lease Tern shall fail to observe or 

perform any of Lessee’s other material covenants, agreements, or obligations hereunder, and if 

within forty five (45) days after Lessor has provided Lessee written notice specifying the failure 

or failures, Lessee has not commenced to correct the same and proceed diligently to correct the 

same. 

16.2 Remedies.  In the event Lessee is in default as defined in Section 16.1 

above, Lessor shall have the right at its sole election, then or at any time thereafter, and while 

such default, defaults, or events shall continue to avail itself of the following remedies: 

(a) Lessor may give Lessee notice of Lessor’s intention to terminate 

this Lease and all Lessee’s rights hereunder on a date specified in such notice, which date shall 

be at least thirty (30) days after the date Lessor provides notice.  On the date specified in the 

notice, the Lease Term and all rights granted Lessee hereunder shall come to an end as fully as if 

the Lease then expired by its own terms.  Upon such termination, Lessor shall also be entitled to 

sue for and recover all Rent, Additional Rent, and other sums accrued up to the time of such 

termination, and damages arising out of any breach on the part of Lessee, including damages for 

Rent not then accrued; and 

(b) Lessor may, upon written notice to Lessee, without terminating the 

Lease, immediately terminate Lessee’s right to possession of the Premises and retake possession 

of the same and eject all persons therefrom, and Lessor may then relet or attempt to relet the 

Premises for the benefit of Lessee for the remainder of the Term or for a longer or shorter period 

as Lessor may decide is appropriate; notwithstanding the termination of Lessee’s right to 

possession, Lessee shall nevertheless pay to Lessor on the due dates specified in this Lease all 

Rent, Additional Rent, and other sums required to be paid under this Lease together with the 

costs of reletting, less the proceeds of any reletting, and Lessee shall continue to perform all 

other obligations imposed on it under the Lease; and 

(c) Lessor may, whether or not it has terminated this Lease or retaken 

possession of the Premises, sue Lessee for and recover all Rent, Additional Rent, and other sums, 

including damages, at any time and from time to time accruing hereunder. 

 

54



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 7 of 11 

17. Notices.  Any and all notices and other communications under this Lease, must be in 

writing and will be deemed to have been duly provided when (a) delivered by hand, (b) sent by 

facsimile (with written confirmation of receipt), or (c) when deposited in a United States general or 

branch post office, enclosed in a registered or certified mail prepaid wrapper or envelope addressed 

as follows: 

  Lessor:  CITY OF KODIAK 

    710 Mill Bay Road 

    Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

    Attention:  City Manager 

    Facsimile: (907) 486-8600 

  Lessee:  AFOGNAK NATIVE CORPORATION 

    215 Mission Road, Suite 212 

    Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

    Attention: _____________ 

    Facsimile: (907) 486-2514    

Any party may change its address or facsimile number by giving notice in accordance with this 

Section. 

18. Miscellaneous. 

18.1 Entire Agreement.  This Lease contains the entire agreement between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and except as set forth herein, there are no other 

agreements, promises, representations, or covenants of any party with respect to the matters covered 

by this Lease.  This Lease may not be amended, modified, or terminated except by a written 

agreement signed by each party. 

18.2 Attorneys’ Fees, Costs, and Expenses.  In the event either party brings or 

commences legal proceedings to enforce any of the terms of this Lease, the prevailing party in such 

action shall receive from the other, in every action commenced, a reasonable sum for attorneys’ fees 

and costs to be fixed by the court in the same action. 

18.3 Rights and Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved 

to a party hereunder is intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy.  Every right and 

remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to any other right or remedy provided hereunder, or now 

or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

18.4 No Waiver.  The failure by Lessor or Lessee to insist upon the strict 

performance of any term hereof or to exercise any right, power, or remedy consequent upon a 

breach thereof, and the acceptance of Rent during the continuance of any such breach, shall not 

constitute a waiver by Lessor of any breach or of any term.  No waiver of any breach shall affect or 

alter this Lease, which shall continue in full force and effect, or the rights of Lessor or Lessee with 

respect to any other then-existing or subsequent breach.   

 

55



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 8 of 11 

18.5 Successors in Interest.  This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, and permitted sublessees and 

assigns. 

18.6 Late Payment. In the event that any Rent, Additional Rent, or other amount 

due under this Lease is not received by Lessor when due, a late fee of one and one-half percent 

(1.5%) per month of the principal amount due shall be due and payable until the full amount of 

Rent, Additional Rent, or other payment is received by Lessor. 

18.7 Applicable Law.  This Lease Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska. 

18.8 Authority.  Lessee covenants and acknowledges that it has the full, complete, 

and absolute authority to enter into this Lease; this Lease has been duly authorized by its governing 

body; this Lease is a binding and enforceable agreement of and against Lessee; and the person 

executing the Lease on Lessee’s behalf is duly and property authorized to do so. 

18.9 No Partnership, Joint Venture, Etc.  Nothing in this Lease shall be intended 

or deemed to create a partnership, joint venture, association, or other similar relationship between 

the parties hereto. 

18.10 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Lease does not create, and shall not be 

construed as creating, any rights or interests enforceable by any person not a party to this Lease. 

18.11 Severability.  If any provision of this Lease is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Lease shall 

remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated. 

18.12 No Brokers.  Each party represents that it has not dealt with a broker in 

connection with this Lease.  Each party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other 

party from claims of any person for brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions or similar payments 

based upon any agreement or understanding alleged to have been made by any such person in 

connection with this Lease. 

18.13 No Recording.  The parties agree that this Lease shall not be recorded as a 

title document with any governmental authority. 

18.14 Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

and delivered by facsimile or other electronic transmission, each of which when so executed 

shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall be deemed to be one and 

the same instrument.   

56



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 9 of 11 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Lease as of the Effective 

Date. 

     LESSEE: 

     AFOGNAK NATIVE CORPORATION 

 

 

            

     By: __________________________________ 

     Its: _________________________________ 

     LESSOR: 

     CITY OF KODIAK  

 

 

            

     By: __________________________________ 

     Its: ___________________________________ 

 

57



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 10 of 11 

 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 

A 17,727 square foot portion (0.407 acres) of USS 4947 on Near Island located adjacent to Tract 

D-1B USS 4947, depicted as the Lease Area in Exhibit B. 

 

 

 

 

58



City of Kodiak/Afognak Native Corporation Lease 

City Record No. 212089 

Page 11 of 11 

 

EXHIBIT B 

SURVEY OF LEASE AREA 

 

59



IMacSwain Associates LLC l 
4401 Business Park Blvd., Suite 22 
Anchorage, Alaska 99503 
Ph 907.561.1965 
Fax 907.561.1955 
s.macswain@macswain.com 

November 25, 2013 

Glenn Melvin P.E. City Engineer 
City of Kodiak 
2410 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

Re: Appraisal of 15,000 SF (0.34-Acres) of Commercial Land in Kodiak, Alaska 
300 Alimaq Drive (15,000 SF portion of USS 4947) 

Dear Mr. Melvin: 

We have prepared a Summary appraisal of the above-referenced land located in Kodiak, 
Alaska. The appraised land is a 15,000 square foot commercial lot on Near Island within 
the City of Kodiak. Per our instructions, we disregard the existing land lease and appraise 
the unencumbered fee simple value. We prepare this appraisal to comply the Uniform 
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USP AP). 

Based on the data, reasoning, and analyses contained in this report, we estimate the market 
value and annual market rent of the 15,000 square foot lot, as of November 8, 2013, is as 
follows. 

Market Value of 15,000 SF Lot: $95,000 

Market Rent of 15,000 SF Lot: $7 ,600/Y ear 

Your attention is directed to the Assumptions and Limiting Conditions of this report. We 
hope the appraisal report assists your evaluation of the property. If you have any questions 
regarding this report, please contact our office. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Steve MacSwain, MAI Trevor Lund 
State of Alaska Certificate No. 42 State of Alaska Certificate No. 705 

60

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



March 21, 2013 

Aimee Kn iaziowski, City Manager 

City of Kodiak 

710 Mill Bay Road, Room 220 

Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

~ 
HAR 2013 
·~ce iv F; r ! 

{) <:> ~ -

Afognak Native Corporation 
215 Mission Road, Suite 212 

Kodfak, Alaska 99615 
(907) 486-6014 +fax {907) 486-2514 

kar1@afognak.com 

Re: Near Island/Purchase and Lease Options for City-Owned Property 

Dear Ms. Kniaziowski: 

As you have requested, I write on behalf of Afognak Native Corporation to reaffirm and follow
up on what we have previously discussed regarding Near Island. Afognak is currently 
constructing its Kodiak headquarters building on Near Island on Tract D-1B, which Afognak 
owns. The City of Kodiak owns real property, approximately 15,000 square foot portion of USS 
4947, adjacent to Tract D-18 which is the only lot located between Afognak's property and the 
Near Island Channel. 

Afognak's Near Island headquarters will be important not only because it will be of significant 
architectural and artistic merit, but because it will have considerable cultural and economic 
impacts on the Afognak shareholders residing on Kodiak Island and the City of Kodiak itself. For 
these reasons, it is essential to Afognak that its headquarters' views of the Near Island Channel 
and the City be preserved. Afognak proposes to do so by either purchasing or leasing the 
portion of the City's Near Island property adjacent to Tract D-lB. 

Afognak has been on record with the City for many years as being interested in acquiring the 
City's property adjacent to Tract D-lB. In March of 2007, Jana Turvey of Afognak met with your 
predecessor as City Manager, Linda Freed, and made known Afognak's desire to acquire any 
part of Tract D-1 not used for a ferry terminal. Attached is an April 16, 2007, letter from Ms. 
Turvey to Ms. Freed confirming the discussion at that meeting. Later, on April 30, 2009, Ms. 
Turvey met with you and Ms. Freed to again discuss the City's land adjacent to Afognak's 
property on Near Island. Attached is Ms. Turvey's May 26, 2009, letter to you in which Afognak 
expressly stated its desire to have a "first option for purchase" of the City's adjacent land. 

Afognak's interest in the City's Near Island property is thus not a frivolous or "spur of the 
moment" desire. Instead, Afognak's long record of discussions with the City on this issue 
demonstrates Afognak's seriousness and desire to come to an accommodation for the benefit 
of both Afognak and the City. 

61

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment D



Therefore, by this letter and as we have discussed, Afognak again formally requests that it be 
given a right of first refusal to purchase the City's property adjacent to Tract D-18. We 
understand that the City of Kodiak has imposed a freeze on the disposal of its real property 
until it can review its procedures. However, we believe there is no reason why an agreement 
for a right of first refusal in the event of a sale for the Near Island property cannot be 
negotiated by Afognak and the City prior to the finalization of the City's land disposal 
procedures. 

In the alternative, and as we have also discussed, Afognak would be interested in a long-term 
lease with the City for the adjacent Near Island property. Afognak woufd also like to include a 
r;ght of first refusal to purchase the property as part of the lease. 

Please present Afognak's offers for the right of first refusal option and the lease option to the 
City Council for their consideration. 

Afognak appreciates your prior statements to me expressing an understanding of our objectives 
and the reasonableness of our requests. We would of course be pleased to discuss this further 
with you and the City Council, and to provide such additionat information you or the City 
Council need to review and consider the options presented in this letter. In the meantime, 
please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this matter. 

Enclosures as stated 

CC: Dick Hobbs, President/CEO 
Dean Clowers, EVP 

Thank you, 

Vy~ 
Karl Mclaughlin 
Sr. VP IT and Lands 

62



A
rc

G
IS

 -
K

od
ia

k 
Is

la
nd

 B
or

ou
gh

 G
IS

 W
eb

si
te

 
P

ag
e 

1
o

f1
 

D
u

E
Jn

r 
N
r
g
l
:
l
n
~
q
g
$
r
U
L
x
j
 k

ID
 N

ft
 h

e
vN

i.
 

Q
H

Z
 #

P 
D

S
#

 
V
IJ

 

D
e

ta
ils

 
A

dd
 

B
as

em
ap

 
I 

S
av

e 
S

h
a

re
 

P
ri

n
t 

M
ea

su
re

 
B

o
o

km
a

rk
s 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.a
rc

gi
s.

co
m

/h
om

e/
w

eb
m

ap
/v

ie
w

er
 .h

tm
l?

w
eb

m
ap

=
e5

eb
 7a

d9
68

f2
4a

01
bd

3l
2d

af
01

1e
38

d6
 

10
/2

9/
20

13
 

63



64



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. c. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

All new appropriations are authorized by an ordinance that amends the annual budget ordinance. An 

ordinance is required to move amounts between funds, departments and projects. An ordinance is 

required to accept or appropriate additional funds, move funds, add regular full- or part-time positions, 

or to grant unscheduled salary increases. The Supplemental No. 2 Appropriation is requesting the 

addition of $8,941,941 to the adopted budget bringing the total amended budget to $52,073,329 for 

FY2014.  

 

The Supplemental No. 2 Appropriation is requesting an increase in non-capital funds in the amount of 

$1,241,463 and an increase in capital funds in the amount of $7,700,478. Of the $1,241,463 increase for 

non-capital funds, $72,463 is for adjustments in the General Fund, $1,154,000 is a transfer from the 

Water Fund to the Water Capital Project fund for the Aleutian Homes Water & Sewer Replacement 

Project, Phase V, and $15,000 is for additional funds in the Cargo Fund to offset costs for the Horizon 

Lines negotiations. Capital projects increased overall as a result of the aggregated clean water loan for 

up to $6 million and grant revenue in the amount of $544,478 for project 7029, the Monashka 

pumphouse. Additionally, a transfer from the Water Fund in the amount of $1,154,000 to project 7026, 

the Aleutian Homes Water & Sewer Replacement Phase V is included in this amendment. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: All expense appropriations requested in Supplemental Appropriation 

No. 2 are funded by increased revenue sources, additional state and federal grant sources, and use of 

fund balances and transfers. The ordinance makes a number of changes in the FY2014 budget reflecting 

increased revenues and expenditures, new project and grant funding, and movement of funds to more 

accurately reflect current City operations. Details of funding sources and expenses are submitted in the 

attachments.  

 

LEGAL: The Kodiak City Charter and Kodiak City Code grant Council the authority to make 

appropriations and adopt and amend budgets as required.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1318 

following the public hearing at this meeting.  

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The City traditionally adopts one major budget amendment each 

fiscal year to make necessary adjustments to cover changes or additions to projects, to account for the 

receipt of additional revenues, and increased operating expenses. This second amendment is to budget 

for new revenues, expenses, and grant & loan funds we didn’t know about or anticipate when we 

presented the first FY2014 supplemental in January. The ordinance and attachments detail the sections 

of the City’s operating and capital budget that require changes. I recommend Council adopt Ordinance 

No. 1318 as presented and discussed. 

 

 

 

65



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item IV. c. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1318 

Attachment B: Backup descriptions containing details and summaries by each fund 

Attachment C: Backup line item detail to budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1318.  

66



Ordinance No. 1318 

Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1318 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ESTABLISH-

ING SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION NO. 2 TO THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR COMMENCING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JULY 2013 AND ENDING ON THE 

THIRTIETH DAY OF JUNE 2014 
 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, as follows: 

 

 

Section 1: The following estimated revenues and expenditures are hereby appropriated for 

the corporate purposes and objects of the City of Kodiak for fiscal year 2014. 

 

 

 

Amended 

Budget

Supplemental 

#1

Supplemental 

#2

Revised 

Budget

Anticipated Revenues:

Property Tax  $       773,500  $                  -    $           97,000  $         870,500 

Sales Tax      11,630,000                        -                        -        11,630,000 

Licenses and Permits             76,800               15,000                        -               91,800 

Intergovernmental        2,589,448             (40,809)                        -          2,548,639 

Charges for Services        1,633,193             297,241                        -          1,930,434 

Fines and Forfeitures             20,500                        -                        -               20,500 

Interest Income             45,000                        -                        -               45,000 

Rental Income           180,000                        -                        -             180,000 

Other Revenues             43,800                        -               50,000               93,800 

Interfund Charges           882,869                        -                        -             882,869 

Use of Fund Balance        1,156,232             864,775             (74,537)          1,946,470 

Transfers In                       -                        -                        -                         - 

Total Amended Revenues  $  19,031,342  $      1,136,207  $           72,463  $    20,240,012 

Planned Expenditures:

Legislative  $       302,660  $             2,000  $                  -    $         304,660 

Legal             50,000                        -                        -               50,000 

Executive           518,015               28,338                 2,000             548,353 

Emergency Preparedness             56,500                        -                        -               56,500 

City Clerk           454,300                 4,287                        -             458,587 

Finance        1,351,521                        -                        -          1,351,521 

Police        6,794,359               39,098               10,463          6,843,920 

Fire        1,851,093               93,500               50,000          1,994,593 

Public Works        2,331,959                        -                        -          2,331,959 

Engineering           255,849                        -                        -             255,849 

Parks & Recreation        1,359,945                        -               10,000          1,369,945 

Library           966,805               47,400                        -          1,014,205 

Non-Departmental           738,531                        -                        -             738,531 

Transfers        1,999,805             921,584                        -          2,921,389 

Total Amended Expenditures  $  19,031,342  $      1,136,207  $           72,463  $    20,240,012 

FY 2014 Supplemental Budget No. 2

GENERAL FUND

 

 

 

67

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1318 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 Amended 

Budget 

 Supplemental 

#1 

 Supplemental 

#2 

 Revised    

Budget 

Anticipated Revenues:

Tourism Development  $       142,860  $                  -    $                  -    $         142,860 

KFDA             60,050                        -                        -               60,050 

City Enhancement                       -                        -                        -                         - 

Total Amended Revenues  $       202,910  $                  -    $                  -    $         202,910 

Planned Expenditures:

Tourism Development  $       142,860  $                  -    $                  -    $         142,860 

KFDA             60,050                        -                        -               60,050 

City Enhancement                       -                        -                        -                         - 

Total Amended Expenditures  $       202,910  $                  -    $                  -    $         202,910 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

  

 

 Amended 

Budget 

 Supplemental 

#1 

 Supplemental 

#2 

 Revised    

Budget 

Anticipated Revenues:

$300.00 General Capital Projects  $       562,500  $           47,973  $             2,000  $         612,473 

$315.00 Vehicle Replacement Capital             72,305                        -                        -               72,305 

$301.00 Street Improvements           450,000           (365,000)                        -               85,000 

$302.00 Building Improvements                       -                        -                        -                         - 

$305.00 Water Capital Fund        3,450,000             505,000          7,698,478        11,653,478 

$306.00 Sewer Capital Fund                       -           (285,000)                        -            (285,000)

$307.00 Cargo Development Fund                       -             100,000                        -             100,000 

$308.00 Harbor Development                       -           (100,000)                        -            (100,000)

$309.00 Parks & Recreation Fund                       -               50,000                        -               50,000 

Total Amended Revenues  $    4,534,805  $         (47,027)  $      7,700,478  $    12,188,256 

Planned Expenditures:

$300.00 General Capital Projects  $       562,500  $           47,973  $             2,000  $         612,473 

$315.00 Vehicle Replacement Capital             72,305                        -                        -               72,305 

$301.00 Street Improvements           450,000           (365,000)                        -               85,000 

$302.00 Building Improvements                       -                        -                        -                         - 

$305.00 Water Capital Fund        3,450,000             505,000          7,698,478        11,653,478 

$306.00 Sewer Capital Fund                       -           (285,000)                        -            (285,000)

$307.00 Cargo Development Fund                       -             100,000                        -             100,000 

$308.00 Harbor Development                       -           (100,000)                        -            (100,000)

$309.00 Parks & Recreation Fund                       -               50,000                        -               50,000 

Total Amended Expenditures  $    4,534,805  $         (47,027)  $      7,700,478  $    12,188,256 

CAPITAL PROJECTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68



Ordinance No. 1318 

Page 3 of 3 

 Amended 

Budget 

 Supplemental 

#1 

 Supplemental 

#2 

 Revised    

Budget 

Anticipated Revenues:

Cargo Fund 500  $    1,052,675  $         453,000  $           15,000  $      1,520,675 

Harbor Fund 510        3,486,750                        -                        -          3,486,750 

Boat Yard/Lift 512        1,331,698                        -                        -          1,331,698 

Electric Fund 515           697,854                        -                        -             697,854 

Water Fund 550        4,421,088               15,000          1,154,000          5,590,088 

Sewer Fund 570        5,768,895                        -                        -          5,768,895 

Trident Basin Fund 580           381,120                        -                        -             381,120 

E-911 Services             74,570                        -                        -               74,570 

Total Amended Revenues  $  17,214,650  $         468,000  $      1,169,000  $    18,851,650 

Planned Expenditures:

 Cargo Fund 500  $    1,052,675  $         453,000  $           15,000  $      1,520,675 

Harbor Fund 510        3,486,750                        -                        -          3,486,750 

Boat Yard/Lift 512        1,331,698                        -                        -          1,331,698 

Electric Fund 515           697,854                        -                        -             697,854 

Water Fund 550        4,421,088               15,000          1,154,000          5,590,088 

Sewer Fund 570        5,768,895                        -                        -          5,768,895 

Trident Basin Fund 580           381,120                        -                        -             381,120 

E-911 Services             74,570                        -                        -               74,570 

Total Amended Expenditures  $  17,214,650  $         468,000  $      1,169,000  $    18,851,650 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

 

 Amended 

Budget 

 Supplemental 

#1 

 Supplemental 

#2 

 Revised    

Budget 

Anticipated Revenues:

Self Insurance Fund  $       590,501  $                  -    $                  -    $         590,501 

Total Amended Revenues  $       590,501  $                  -    $                  -    $         590,501 

Planned Expenditures:

Self Insurance Fund  $       590,501  $                  -    $                  -    $         590,501 

Total Amended Expenditures  $       590,501  $                  -    $                  -    $         590,501 

Total Revenues  $  41,574,208  $      1,557,180  $      8,941,941  $    52,073,329 

Total Expenditures  $  41,574,208  $      1,557,180  $      8,941,941  $    52,073,329 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

 

Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage as 

required by law. 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

CITY CLERK 

First Reading: April 24, 2014 

Second Reading:   

Effective Date:   

69



70

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

80



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

81



82



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Council Memo Page 2 of 5 

 

revenues are expected to remain static as expenses continue to increase. The City Council adopted 

FY2015 budget goals by resolution in February of this year (Attachment B), and staff used the goals to 

develop and evaluate the proposed operating budget. The proposed budget is consistent with the 

Council’s FY2015 budget goals.  

 

Combined Revenues and Expenses for All Funds 

The FY2015 budget projects combined revenues from all funds excluding capital projects to be 

$35,906,466, which is a decrease of 7 percent from FY2014’s combined revenues of $38,643,610. 

Revenues are forecasted based on the current fiscal year even though some sources may fluctuate 

slightly. Expenses for all City funds, excluding capital projects, is expected to also be $35,906,466, an 

overall decrease of 7 percent from FY2014. The largest increases were in benefit expense with the PERS 

on behalf rate increasing. Fewer transfers and capital equipment account for the largest decreases in 

expenses.  

 

Operating Budget 

The FY2015 operating budget is primarily a maintenance budget as it has been for at least the past six 

years. As directed, City staff developed a conservative budget. The City, like everyone in the 

community, continues to face rising costs, but the departments are careful to absorb cost increases 

whenever and wherever possible. As outlined in the City Council FY2015 goals, a review of all 

categories of General Fund expenditures was conducted to identify ways to decrease expenses. This 

resulted in a 2 percent decrease in General Fund expenses from FY2014.  

 

General Fund 

The General Fund provides funding for those City services that aren’t required to be accounted for 

differently, like the enterprise funds. The General Fund uses revenues from sources such as sales and 

property taxes to fund the City’s administrative functions such as tax collection and audits, billing, 

emergency preparedness, information technology, and management of all City functions. It also funds 

services such as, municipal recordkeeping functions, law enforcement, fire and ambulance, library and 

recreational services and facilities, and public works and engineering services.  

 

General Fund revenues for FY2015 are projected at $19,726,342 down by approximately 2 percent from 

FY2014 projections with the largest changes due to reductions in intergovernmental revenues, and 

miscellaneous revenues (primarily due to the EPA settlement received in FY2014). The reduction in 

revenues is offset by the expected reduction in expenses, also projected to be $19,726,342. These budget 

figures are consistent with Council’s FY2015 goal that the General Fund would be budgeted without a 

deficit, and that General Fund operating expenses (non-personnel) will be consistent with those of 

FY2014. 

 

 

 

83



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Council Memo Page 3 of 5 

 

Fund Balance 

The City’s General Fund balance is comprised of various revenue sources, large and small. Even with 

conservative budgeting, this fund no longer takes in more in revenues than it must spend for expenses to 

operate the General Fund departments and to provide the necessary services.  The FY2014 budget is 

projected to have $6.5 million remaining in the fund balance. The FY 15 budget is projected to have an 

estimated $5.4 million remaining in the fund balance after using the $1.1 million for expenses in the 

operating budget. The estimated FY2015 fund balance, if projections are correct, will be needed to offset 

expenses and provide the City with approximately 2.5 months of operating reserves. Of course there are 

many budget variables so this is only a projection and cannot be guaranteed so early in the budgeting 

process. The proposed FY2015 budget anticipates a smaller use of fund balance than the FY2014 budget 

because fewer transfers are being made to fund capital projects, and expenses were reduced as much as 

possible in all departments.  

 

Personnel 

Salaries, wages and benefits are the single largest expense in the City’s annual budget, totaling 41 

percent.  Salaries and wages for FY2015 are estimated to total $9.0 million or 26 percent of the City’s 

overall expenses. This is less than 1percent change from FY2014 citywide salaries and wages and 

reflects scheduled salary increases.  Employee benefit costs are projected at $7.5 million, 15 percent of 

the City’s overall expense budget, which is a 7 percent increase from FY2014 due to an increase in the 

PERS on behalf payments.  

 

The FY2015 budget reflects no increase in the number of City employees of 125.15 in both FY2014 and 

FY2015. The City’s work force for FY2015 remains at 120 regular full-time employees and 5.15 regular 

part-time positions working from 20-30 hours per week for a total of 125.15 FTEs.  

 

These changes to the FY2015 budget meet Council’s personnel goals.  The tracking of part-time 

personnel is a necessary step in meeting Council’s goal to complete an analysis of the need, costs, and 

hiring process for the City’s use of temporary or seasonal employees. 

 

Enterprise Funds 

The City has eight separate enterprise funds; the Harbor Department’s Cargo Terminal, Boat Harbor, 

Harbor Electric Utility, and the Boat Yard/Vessel Lift funds; the Water, Sewer, and Trident Basin funds 

managed by Public Works; and the E911 Fund. The FY2015 budgets for these funds reflect a balance of 

revenues to expenses.  

 

The Boat Yard/Vessel Lift enterprise fund reflects a 6 percent reduction in revenues for FY2015. The 

revenues are based on actual operations and projected vessel lifts scheduled for the coming year. Per 

Council’s FY2015 budget goal, the Boat Yard/Boat Lift Fund will reach a breakeven point by the year-

ending FY2016, including adequate revenues to meet debt payments. A marketing campaign for services 

will be refined to capture maximum revenues. 

84



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Council Memo Page 4 of 5 

 

 

The E911 Fund was established in FY2010 in preparation for the transfer of E911 extraterritorial 

authority from the Borough to the City. This transfer has not yet taken place, but the Borough staff has 

agreed to work toward the transfer of authority or find another way to fairly share in the expenses and 

responsibilities of providing the service to Kodiak.  

 

Enhancement Fund 

The FY2015 budget proposes no use of Enhancement Fund monies. Enhancement Fund monies have not 

been used since FY2013 so the fund balance can build up, per Council’s budget goals. The projected 

fund balance for the Enhancement Fund in FY2014 is estimated to be $3 million which is an increase of 

$1 million from the FY2013 estimate.  

 

Capital Projects 

The FY2015 budget recommends $10.6 million in capital project expenditures. This includes eight new 

capital projects in FY2015 ranging in size from $20,000 to $3,000,000. It also includes additional 

funding for established or ongoing capital projects such as, annual curb and sidewalk repairs, pavement 

repairs, snow dump, rate studies, Aleutian homes water and sewer replacement, and the Monashka 

pumphouse replacement. Costs for the projects will be covered through transfers, use of fund balances, 

interest earnings, as well as some state and federal grants.  Staff presented the capital projects in detail at 

the budget work session on May 10th. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 1319 in the first reading and move to second reading and public hearing at 

the next regular or special Council meeting. This is staff’s recommendation. 

2. Council may also amend Ordinance No.1319. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The City Council must make appropriations and adopt an annual 

budget. As presented, this budget retains ongoing service levels while meeting maintenance level 

budgetary criteria established by Council. The budget meets operational needs and estimates an adequate 

retention of fund balance in the General Fund. 

 

LEGAL: The Kodiak City Charter and Kodiak City Code grant Council the authority to make 

appropriations and adopt and amend budgets as required. Article V, Section 2 of the City Charter states 

the City Manager will prepare and present a proposed budget to the City Council in advance of the fiscal 

year which begins on July 1
st
 and ends on June 30th. Article V, Section 4 of the City Charter gives the 

City Council the authority to make appropriations for the next fiscal year and may approve or amend the 

budget. Appropriations must be made and the budget approved by a majority vote of the City Council no 

later than the third day before the beginning of the new fiscal year, and if the Council fails to approve 

the budget by that date, the budget as submitted shall go into effect and be considered adopted by the 

Council. 

85



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. a. Council Memo Page 5 of 5 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Ordinance No. 1319 in the first 

reading with advancement to second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council 

meeting.  

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: We have managed to provide Council with another lean budget 

and minimal staffing without affecting service provision, per Council’s FY2015 budget goals. The task 

becomes more challenging as costs continue to rise and other sources of governmental funding become 

more limited. We do expect to have a modest amount of projected revenues for FY2015 for use on 

capital project needs, many of which are critical.  

 

There may be at least one amendment proposed to increase funding to the three agencies that provide 

services to the City before the second reading of the budget because we rolled over the FY2014 budget 

amounts for the agencies into this budget much as we did for each City department. Council can let me 

know if a consensus is reached during the May 20, 2014, work session or before adoption of the 

ordinance in June.   

 

The preparation of this document and the presentations at the May 10, 2014, work session reflect a great 

deal of work by the City staff, including an assessment of operational and community needs necessary to 

create this annual financial plan. I want to thank our management team for their serious commitment to 

meeting Council’s goals and for their fiscal responsibility, not just in preparation of this draft budget, but 

on an ongoing basis.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A:  Ordinance No. 1319  

 Attachment B: Resolution No. 2014–08 FY2015 Council Budget Goals 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to pass Ordinance No. 1319 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public 

hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting. 

 

86



Ordinance No. 1319 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1319 

 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK LEVYING 

TAXES AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF 

THE CITY OF KODIAK FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING ON THE FIRST 

DAY OF JULY 2014 AND ENDING ON THE THIRTIETH DAY OF JUNE 2015 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak as follows: 

 

Section 1: A tax in the amount of 2.0 mills is hereby levied against all taxable real property 

within the City of Kodiak for the fiscal year commencing on the first day of July 

2014 and ending on the thirtieth day of June 2015. 

 

Section 2: The following sums of money are hereby appropriated for corporate purposes and 

objects of the City of Kodiak for the fiscal year commencing on the first day of 

July 2014 and ending on the thirtieth day of June 2015 to defray expenses and lia-

bilities of the City during the fiscal year. 

 

FY2015 BUDGET SUMMARY 

 

 

GENERAL FUND

 Anticipated 

Revenues 

Taxes  $             12,483,500 

Licenses & Permits                        90,100 

Intergovernmental Revenues                   3,128,847 

Charges for Services                   1,774,115 

Fines & Forfeitures                        15,500 

Interest                        45,000 

Rents & Royalties                      195,000 

Miscellaneous                        22,000 

Interfund Charges                      858,692 

Appropriation from Fund Balance                   1,113,588 

Operating Transfers In                               -   

Total Anticipated Revenues                 19,726,342 

 Planned 

Expenditures 

Legislative  $                  320,259 

Legal                        50,000 

Executive-Administration                      586,262 

Executive-Emergency Preparedness                        56,500 

City Clerk-Administration                      312,244 

City Clerk-Records Management                      160,921 

 

87

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1319 

Page 2 of 4 

GENERAL FUND Planned Expenditures (continued) 

Finance                   1,401,481 

Police                   6,916,782 

Fire                   2,148,335 

Public Works                   2,485,224 

Engineering                      315,090 

Parks & Recreation                   1,399,360 

Library                   1,010,833 

Non-Departmental                   2,563,051 

Total Planned Expenditures                 19,726,342 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

 Anticipated 

Revenues 

Tourism Fund  $                  170,500 

Kodiak Fisheries Development Association                        60,050 

City Enhancement Fund                               -   

Total Anticipated Revenues                      230,550 

 Planned 

Expenditures 

Tourism Fund  $                  170,500 

Kodiak Fisheries Development Association                           60,050 

City Enhancement Fund                               -   

Total Planned Expenditures                      230,550 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

 Anticipated 

Revenues 

General Capital  $                  251,684 

Street Improvements                   1,030,000 

Building Improvement Fund                        40,000 

Water Capital Fund                   5,964,774 

Sewer Capital Fund                               -   

Cargo Development Fund                               -   

Harbor Development Fund                   3,000,000 

Parks & Recreation Fund                      110,000 

Vehicle Replacement Fund                        85,357 

Total Anticipated Revenues                 10,481,815 

 

 Planned 

Expenditures 

General Capital  $                  251,684 

Street Improvements                   1,030,000 

Building Improvement Fund                        40,000 

Water Capital Fund                   5,964,774 

Sewer Capital Fund                               -   

Cargo Development Fund                               -   

 

 

88



Ordinance No. 1319 

Page 3 of 4 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND Planned Expenditures (continued) 

Harbor Development Fund                   3,000,000 

Parks & Recreation Fund                      110,000 

Vehicle Replacement Fund                        85,357 

Total Planned Expenditures                 10,481,815 

 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

 Anticipated 

Revenues 

Cargo Fund  $               1,104,301 

Harbor Fund                   4,592,832 

Boat Yard Lift                   1,252,103 

Harbor Electric Fund                      606,664 

Water Utility Fund                   2,982,668 

Sewer Utility Fund                   4,361,972 

Trident Basin Fund                      334,272 

E-911 Services                        78,462 

Total Anticipated Revenues                 15,313,274 

 
 Planned 

Expenditures 

Cargo Fund  $               1,104,301 

Harbor Fund                   4,592,832 

Boat Yard Lift                   1,252,103 

Harbor Electric Fund                      606,664 

Water Utility Fund                   2,982,668 

Sewer Utility Fund                   4,361,972 

Trident Basin Fund                      334,272 

E-911 Services                        78,462 

Total Planned Expenditures                 15,313,274 

 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

 Anticipated 

Revenues 

Self Insurance Fund  $                  636,300 

Total Anticipated Revenues                      636,300 

 Planned 

Expenditures 

Self Insurance Fund  $                  636,300 

Total Planned Expenditures                      636,300 

 

89



Ordinance No. 1319 

Page 4 of 4 

Grand Total Anticipated Revenues  $             46,388,281 

  Grand Total Planned Expenditures  $             46,388,281 

Non- Projects 35,906,466            

Non- Projects 35,906,466            

Projects 10,481,815            

Projects 10,481,815            

 

Section 3: All unexpended appropriation balances, with the exception of capital project 

fund appropriations, shall lapse to the appropriate fund as of June 30, 2015. 

 

Section 4: This ordinance shall go into effect July 1, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

CITY CLERK 

 

First Reading:   

Second Reading:   

Effective Date:  

90



CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK APPROVING 
THE CITY COUNCIL'S BUDGET GOALS FOR FY2015 

WHEREAS, budget guidelines help ensure that the City's budget is prepared in a manner 
consistent with City Council desires; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council discussed and selected the list of budget goals at their 
February 1, 2014, planning meeting; and 

WHEREAS, management will use the listed budget goals as guidelines when developing 
the FY2015 budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that the following budget goals will be used in the development of the City of Kodiak's FY2015 
budget: 

Revenue 
Revenues will continue to be estimated conservatively using an analytical and objective 
approach. 

One-time revenues will be used only for one-time expenditures. The City will avoid using 
temporary revenues or grants to fund routine City services or positions. 

Within resources available, the City will maintain capital assets and infrastructure at a 
level that is adequate to protect its investment, to minimize future replacement and 
maintenance costs, and to maintain existing service levels. 

Operating Expenses 
General Fund operating (non-personnel) expenses for FY2015 will be at a level con
sistent with FY2014. Required increases will be justified to the City Manager in writing 
and, if approved, presented by department heads to the City Council for final considera
tion during budget presentations. 

Review existing programs and services to assess how well budgeted performance indica
tors met goals and objectives. 

Required increases to departmental level operating (non-personnel) expenses in the Gen
eral Fund will be justified to the Manager in writing and, if approved, presented by de
partment heads to the City Council during budget presentations. 

Resolution No. 2014-08 
Page 1of3 

91

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



Charges for Fees and Services will be reviewed and updated annually to ensure quality 
service delivery and adequate revenues. 

City management will continue to examine ways or hold the line on expenditures without 
significant impact to level and quality of services provided to residents. 

Personnel Goals 
There will be no increase in the number of employee full-time equivalents (FTEs) of 
125.15, providing that revenues remain consistent with FY 2014, and there are no chang
es in operational needs. 

Sections of the PR&R will be reviewed and amended to implement the classification and 
compensation plan consistent with budgetary resources and improve practices that reflect 
recognized Human Resources standards. 

General Fund 
Council will review ways to increase revenues in the General Fund to help offset increas
es in operating expenses, meet infrastructure needs, and increase the fund balance. 

General Fund revenues will be forecast conservatively and take into consideration state 
funding policies such as, community revenue sharing, shared fisheries and other shared 
business taxes, pension costs and liabilities, and the required allocation of sales tax. 

A detailed review of all categories of General Fund expenditures will be conducted in 
FY2015 to identify ways to decrease expenses. 

The General Fund will be budgeted without a deficit through appropriations from the 
fund balance when/if necessary, and with a goal to maintain up to three months operating 
reserves. Council may appropriate additional funds for capital projects. 

Enterprise Funds 
The major enterprise funds will development long-term plans to include maintenance and 
repairs, needed facility replacement or expansion, and a schedule for rate reviews. 

Enterprise Funds will complete rate studies every five years and present them to the City 
Council for implementation. In FY2015, Harbor, Shipyard, and Sewer rate studies will be 
conducted. 

The Shipyard will reach a breakeven point (not including depreciation) by the year end
ing FY2016, including adequate revenues through charges for services to meet debt pay
ments and operational expenses without transfers from other funds. The business plan 
and marketing campaign for services will continue to be refined to capture maximum 
revenues. 

Ensure adequate revenues are available to continue to maintain and improve Harbor facil
ities that support fisheries and support sector services and activities. 

Resolution No. 2014.-08 
Page 2 of3 

92



Community Support 
The total amount available to fund non-profit requests will continue to follow the Council 
established level of funding which is based on 1 % of General Fund revenues. 

Capital 
The City Manager and management staff will develop and refine the City's formal five
year capital improvement plan (CIP) that identifies and ranks projects for capital and ma
jor maintenance projects. The City will utilize the planning document and develop poli
cies and procedures identifying criteria and steps for implementation. Once complete, the 
capital budget will link to, and flow from, the multi-year capital improvement plan. 

Debt Service 
The City will not incur new debt without appropriate analysis to: 

• Show impacts on rates or taxpayers, or 

• Analyze financial capacity for proposed capital projects, or 

• Determine if the debt is required for projects mandated by the state or federal gov
ernment, needed for economic development, environmental, aesthetic or quality of 
life, or health and safety improvements. 

Quality of Life 
The City will provide adequate services that meet the community needs, priorities, chal
lenges and opportunities with consideration given to the condition of the economy, the 
composition of the population, technology, legal or regulatory issues, intergovernmental 
issues, and physical or environmental issues. 

Economic Development 
The City will review and evaluate available information about trends in community condi
tions, the external factors affecting it, opportunities that may be available, and problems 
and issues to be addressed. 

ATTEST: 

Resolution No. 201~8 
Page 3 of3 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

Adopted: February 13, 2014 

93



94



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V.b. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

stations and a few smaller lift stations and 46.3 miles of sewer collection system.  The wastewater 

collection system has some very old lift stations and collection lines that need repair or replacement. The 

wastewater treatment plant accepts bio-solids from the USCG wastewater treatment plant for further 

treatment as well as waste stream form septic systems outside of the City’s wastewater collection 

system. 

The City’s system needs an active capital improvement program in both the water and sewer due to its 

size.  Regulations are constantly changing which, at times, require substantial capital projects such as the 

need to renew discharge permits and mixing zone permits.  The WWTP plant was upgraded in 1999.  

Within the next few years staff must begin a facility evaluation and plan to refurbish the WWTP.  It took 

almost seven years the last time the facility review was undertaken; construction didn’t begin until 

planning, design, and funding could be completed or acquired.   

The last time the City Council adopted a rate increase for the sewer was in 2011.  Only a single year rate 

increase was adopted for the sewer because staff was unsure of the impact the biosolid disposal solution 

would have on rates.  The solution to this problem has taken far more time and expense that we had 

anticipated, and work continues on design and permitting of a composting facility to be located at a 

piece of property adjacent to the current Borough landfill.  The initial costs fell beyond the $3 million 

available for construction so staff is working on alternatives to reduce this facility’s overall capital 

improvement cost. 

This current rate evaluation takes into account a $3 million capital project for composting as well as 

future utility replacements and upgrade needs.  It also prepares the way to begin evaluation of the 

WWTP facility and its future needs. 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2014–22, which identifies a five year plan to increase sewer rates to meet 

operational and capital improvement needs. 

2. Do not adopt the resolution. This is not recommended because the cost of operation and 

maintenance and utility replacement needs require the additional financial support. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The rate increases are required for enterprise funds to meet 

operational and maintenance expenditures as well as continuing to replace an aging infrastructure.  

Replacing utilities that are well beyond their expected service life is more cost effective than replacing 

them in an emergency situation. 

 

LEGAL:  The City must maintain its water and sewer systems to meet federal and state requirements.  

Periodic rate adjustments address the costs over time and reflect good planning and operating practices.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2014–22 accepting 

the proposed five years of rate increases for sewer. 

95



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V.b. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  It is important for the City to review all rates, but especially 

utility rates on a regular basis to ensure that revenues can support ongoing operations, maintenance, debt 

service, and infrastructure replacement needs. This reflects and supports one of the City Council’s 

FY2015 budget goals.  The City’s water and sewer infrastructure is extensive and requires constant 

maintenance and upgrades. Many system components are aging and require advanced planning for 

replacement or upgrades. The water and sewer utilities are enterprise funds and should pay for 

operations and capital replacement costs out of revenues. That’s why it’s important to maintain rates that 

can generate adequate revenues. As alternative sources of funding become harder to find, we must be as 

self-sufficient as possible, which means we have to rely more on users to help cover these costs. It is 

also important to note that granting and loaning agencies consider the importance of adequate rate 

structures when determining loan and grant eligibility.  

 

Although the CH2MHill study identified the need for rate increases over the next ten years, as has been 

our practice, we recommend implementing rate increases of five percent per year for the first five years, 

FY2015-FY2019, with a review at the end of that time to ensure rates and projections are adequate for 

the full ten year planning period.  Therefore, I support the recommendations of CH2MHill and staff that 

Council approve Resolution No. 2014–22 and authorize implementation of a sewer rate increase of five 

percent per year for a five year period from FY2015-FY2019 effective on July 1, 2014. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A:  Resolution No. 2014–22 

 Attachment B:   Sewer Rate Tech Memo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014–22. 

96



 

Resolution No. 2014–22 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2014–22 
     

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 

SECTION 14, UTILITIES (SEWER), OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES, CHARGES, AND 

TARIFFS 
 

 

WHEREAS, in 2014, the City contracted with CH2MHill to complete a review and to 

recommend an updated rate structure for the sewer system; and 

  

WHEREAS, the purpose of the update was to determine revenue requirements related to 

sewer system operation and maintenance and capital improvement needs for the next ten years; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the study shows existing sewer fees are not sufficient to fund operation and 

maintenance and capital improvements for the sewer system into the future; and 

  

 WHEREAS, at the May 20, 2014, work session the ten-year rate study was presented to 

the Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, at the May 22, 2014, regular meeting the Council held a public hearing on 

the proposed sewer rate increases. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that Section 14, Utilities (sewer) of the City’s Schedule of Fees, Charges and Tariffs, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference, is hereby amended. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the changes to the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and 

Tariffs herein shall be effected on July 1, 2014, unless subsequently amended by the City 

Council. 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

CITY OF KODIAK 

 MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

  

  

 CITY CLERK 

 
 

 

Adopted:  

 

 
 

97

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
0

1
4
–

2
2
 

P
a

g
e 

2
 o

f 
4

 

 C
ity

 o
f K

od
ia

k 
S

ew
er

 R
at

e 
S

tu
dy

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 S

ew
er

 R
at

es
, 

F
Y

20
14

/1
5 

– 
F

Y
 2

01
8/

19
 

  In
si

d
e 

C
it

y 
 

  
  

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
P

ro
je

ct
e

d
 

  
  

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
C

la
ss

 
B

as
is

 f
o

r 
C

h
ar

ge
 

FY
 2

0
1

3
-

1
4

 
FY

 2
0

1
4

-
1

5
 

FY
 2

0
1

5
-

1
6

 
FY

 2
0

1
6

-
1

7
 

FY
 2

0
1

7
-

1
8

 
FY

 2
0

1
8

-
1

9
 

Se
rv

ic
e

 C
h

ar
ge

 -
 In

si
d

e
 C

it
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
ar

tm
e

n
ts

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 d

w
el

lin
g 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

 
o

n
 u

n
it

 p
er

 3
,5

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

fl
o

o
r 

ar
ea

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

B
ak

er
y 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

0
 s

f 
o

f 
p

at
ro

n
 a

re
a 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

B
ar

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

B
ea

u
ty

 S
h

o
p

s/
B

ar
b

er
/A

n
im

al
 

G
ro

o
m

in
g 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
e

n
ce

 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
u

n
it

 p
e

r 
o

p
er

at
o

r 
ch

ai
r/

tu
b

 
$

3
1

.4
1

  
$

3
2

.9
8

  
$

3
4

.6
3

  
$

3
6

.3
6

  
$

3
8

.1
8

  
$

4
0

.0
9

  

B
&

B
 /

 B
o

ar
d

in
g 

H
o

u
se

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
/r

es
id

e
n

ce
 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

er
 g

u
es

t 
ro

o
m

 
$

3
1

.4
1

  
$

3
2

.9
8

  
$

3
4

.6
3

  
$

3
6

.3
6

  
$

3
8

.1
8

  
$

4
0

.0
9

  

C
h

u
rc

h
e

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
   

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 u
se

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
$

0
.0

0
  

$
0

.0
0

  
$

0
.0

0
  

$
0

.0
0

  
$

0
.0

0
  

$
0

.0
0

  

D
ay

 C
ar

e 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

/d
w

el
lin

g 
u

n
it

 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
q

u
ar

te
r 

u
n

it
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 5
 p

er
so

n
s 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
1

5
.7

0
  

$
1

6
.4

9
  

$
1

7
.3

1
  

$
1

8
.1

7
  

$
1

9
.0

8
  

$
2

0
.0

4
  

D
in

in
g 

Fa
ci

lit
y/

C
af

é/
B

ak
er

ie
s 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

D
o

ct
o

r'
s 

o
ff

ic
e,

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
lin

ic
, 

d
en

ti
st

  
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

D
ry

 C
le

an
e

rs
  

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

G
as

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 /

 A
u

to
 R

ep
ai

r 
Sh

o
p

 
2

 u
n

it
s 

p
er

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 
$

1
2

5
.6

1
  

$
1

3
1

.8
9

  
$

1
3

8
.4

9
  

$
1

4
5

.4
1

  
$

1
5

2
.6

8
  

$
1

6
0

.3
1

  

H
o

sp
it

al
/M

aj
o

r 
C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 b

ed
 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

H
o

te
l/

M
o

te
l 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

e
r 

gu
es

t 
ro

o
m

 w
/o

 c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
3

1
.4

1
  

$
3

2
.9

8
  

$
3

4
.6

3
  

$
3

6
.3

6
  

$
3

8
.1

8
  

$
4

0
.0

9
  

 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

 p
er

 g
u

es
t 

ro
o

m
 w

/c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
4

7
.1

0
  

$
4

9
.4

6
  

$
5

1
.9

3
  

$
5

4
.5

2
  

$
5

7
.2

5
  

$
6

0
.1

1
  

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

La
u

n
d

ri
e

s 
an

d
 b

at
h

 h
o

u
se

s 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

 p
er

 w
as

h
in

g 
m

ac
h

in
e

 
$

4
7

.1
0

  
$

4
9

.4
6

  
$

5
1

.9
3

  
$

5
4

.5
2

  
$

5
7

.2
5

  
$

6
0

.1
1

  

98



 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
0

1
4
–

2
2
 

P
a

g
e 

3
 o

f 
4
 

M
ea

ts
 o

r 
P

ro
d

u
ce

 R
et

ai
l S

to
re

s 
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

M
u

se
u

m
s 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 d
w

el
lin

g 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

O
ff

ic
e/

R
et

ai
l 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

P
o

w
er

h
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

R
es

id
e

n
ti

al
 (

n
o

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

ch
ar

ge
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
e-

b
as

e
d

 
o

ff
ic

e/
re

ta
il 

u
se

) 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 d

w
el

lin
g 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

R
es

t 
H

o
m

e/
Lo

n
g 

Te
rm

 C
ar

e 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

 b
ed

s 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

Sc
h

o
o

ls
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

 p
er

so
n

s 
in

 d
ai

ly
 a

tt
en

d
an

ce
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

st
af

f 
$

6
2

.8
1

  
$

6
5

.9
5

  
$

6
9

.2
5

  
$

7
2

.7
1

  
$

7
6

.3
5

  
$

8
0

.1
6

  

Se
n

io
r 

C
it

iz
en

s 
(p

ri
m

ar
y 

re
si

d
en

ce
) 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 

$
3

1
.4

1
  

$
3

2
.9

8
  

$
3

4
.6

3
  

$
3

6
.3

6
  

$
3

8
.1

8
  

$
4

0
.0

9
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e,
 p

er
 m

o
n

th
 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r 

ra
te

 f
o

r 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 u

se
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g 

$
3

1
.4

1
  

$
3

2
.9

8
  

$
3

4
.6

3
  

$
3

6
.3

6
  

$
3

8
.1

8
  

$
4

0
.0

9
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e 
N

o
n

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
Fe

e
 

 
$

1
9

5
.0

5
  

$
2

0
4

.8
0

  
$

2
1

5
.0

4
  

$
2

2
5

.7
9

  
$

2
3

7
.0

8
  

$
2

4
8

.9
4

  

W
ar

eh
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
6

2
.8

1
  

$
6

5
.9

5
  

$
6

9
.2

5
  

$
7

2
.7

1
  

$
7

6
.3

5
  

$
8

0
.1

6
  

D
u

m
p

 F
ee

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  d
is

p
o

sa
l d

o
m

es
ti

c 
sl

u
d

ge
 

p
er

 g
al

lo
n

 
$

0
.3

2
  

$
0

.3
4

  
$

0
.3

5
  

$
0

.3
7

  
$

0
.3

9
  

$
0

.4
1

  

  d
is

p
o

sa
l s

ep
ti

c 
ta

n
k/

p
o

rt
ab

le
 

to
ile

t 
w

at
er

 
p

er
 g

al
lo

n
 

$
0

.2
3

  
$

0
.2

4
  

$
0

.2
5

  
$

0
.2

7
  

$
0

.2
8

  
$

0
.2

9
  

 

 O
u

ts
id

e
 C

it
y 

  
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 
  

  
 

 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

C
la

ss
 

B
as

is
 f

o
r 

C
h

ar
ge

 
FY

 2
0

1
3

-
1

4
 

FY
 2

0
1

4
-

1
5

 
FY

 2
0

1
5

-
1

6
 

FY
 2

0
1

6
-

1
7

 
FY

 2
0

1
7

-
1

8
 

FY
 2

0
1

8
-

1
9

 

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

 
o

n
 u

n
it

 p
er

 3
,5

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

fl
o

o
r 

ar
ea

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

B
ak

er
y 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

0
 s

f 
o

f 
p

at
ro

n
 a

re
a 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

B
ar

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

B
ea

u
ty

 S
h

o
p

s/
B

ar
b

er
/A

n
im

al
 

G
ro

o
m

in
g 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
e

n
ce

 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
u

n
it

 p
e

r 
o

p
er

at
o

r 
ch

ai
r/

tu
b

 
$

3
7

.6
4

  
$

3
9

.5
2

  
$

4
1

.5
0

  
$

4
3

.5
7

  
$

4
5

.7
5

  
$

4
8

.0
4

  

B
&

B
 /

 B
o

ar
d

in
g 

H
o

u
se

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
/r

es
id

e
n

ce
 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

er
 g

u
es

t 
ro

o
m

 
$

3
7

.6
4

  
$

3
9

.5
2

  
$

4
1

.5
0

  
$

4
3

.5
7

  
$

4
5

.7
5

  
$

4
8

.0
4

  

C
h

u
rc

h
e

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 f

ac
ili

ty
   

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
o

n
e-

h
al

f 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 u
se

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ay
 C

ar
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
/d

w
el

lin
g 

u
n

it
 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

 
p

lu
s 

o
n

e-
q

u
ar

te
r 

u
n

it
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 5
 p

er
so

n
s 

o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
1

8
.8

3
  

$
1

9
.7

7
  

$
2

0
.7

6
  

$
2

1
.8

0
  

$
2

2
.8

9
  

$
2

4
.0

3
  

99



 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

2
0

1
4
–

2
2
 

P
a

g
e 

4
 o

f 
4

 

 D
in

in
g 

Fa
ci

lit
y/

C
af

é/
B

ak
er

ie
s 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

0
0

 s
f 

o
f 

p
at

ro
n

 a
re

a 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

D
o

ct
o

r'
s 

o
ff

ic
e,

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
lin

ic
, 

d
en

ti
st

  
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

D
ry

 C
le

an
e

rs
  

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

G
as

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 /

 A
u

to
 R

ep
ai

r 
Sh

o
p

 
2

 u
n

it
s 

p
er

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 
$

1
5

0
.5

8
  

$
1

5
8

.1
1

  
$

1
6

6
.0

1
  

$
1

7
4

.3
2

  
$

1
8

3
.0

3
  

$
1

9
2

.1
8

  

H
o

sp
it

al
/M

aj
o

r 
C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 b

ed
 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

H
o

te
l/

M
o

te
l 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 p

e
r 

gu
es

t 
ro

o
m

 w
/o

 c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
3

7
.6

4
  

$
3

9
.5

2
  

$
4

1
.5

0
  

$
4

3
.5

7
  

$
4

5
.7

5
  

$
4

8
.0

4
  

 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

 p
er

 g
u

es
t 

ro
o

m
 w

/c
o

o
ki

n
g 

$
5

6
.4

7
  

$
5

9
.2

9
  

$
6

2
.2

6
  

$
6

5
.3

7
  

$
6

8
.6

4
  

$
7

2
.0

7
  

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

La
u

n
d

ri
e

s 
an

d
 b

at
h

 h
o

u
se

s 
th

re
e-

q
u

ar
te

r 
u

n
it

er
 p

er
 w

as
h

in
g 

m
ac

h
in

e
 

$
5

6
.4

7
  

$
5

9
.2

9
  

$
6

2
.2

6
  

$
6

5
.3

7
  

$
6

8
.6

4
  

$
7

2
.0

7
  

M
ea

ts
 o

r 
P

ro
d

u
ce

 R
et

ai
l S

to
re

s 
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

M
u

se
u

m
s 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 d
w

el
lin

g 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

O
ff

ic
e/

R
et

ai
l 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 6
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

P
o

w
er

h
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

R
es

id
e

n
ti

al
 (

n
o

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

ch
ar

ge
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
e

-b
as

e
d

 
o

ff
ic

e/
re

ta
il 

u
se

) 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 d

w
el

lin
g 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

R
es

t 
H

o
m

e/
Lo

n
g 

Te
rm

 C
ar

e 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 2

 b
ed

s 
o

r 
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 t
h

er
eo

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

Sc
h

o
o

ls
 

o
n

e 
u

n
it

 p
er

 2
0

 p
er

so
n

s 
in

 d
ai

ly
 a

tt
en

d
an

ce
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

st
af

f 
$

7
5

.2
9

  
$

7
9

.0
5

  
$

8
3

.0
1

  
$

8
7

.1
6

  
$

9
1

.5
2

  
$

9
6

.0
9

  

Se
n

io
r 

C
it

iz
en

s 
(p

ri
m

ar
y 

re
si

d
en

ce
) 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

u
n

it
 

$
3

7
.6

4
  

$
3

9
.5

2
  

$
4

1
.5

0
  

$
4

3
.5

7
  

$
4

5
.7

5
  

$
4

8
.0

4
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e,
 p

er
 m

o
n

th
 

o
n

e-
h

al
f 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r 

ra
te

 f
o

r 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 u

se
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g 

$
3

7
.6

4
  

$
3

9
.5

2
  

$
4

1
.5

0
  

$
4

3
.5

7
  

$
4

5
.7

5
  

$
4

8
.0

4
  

V
ac

an
t 

R
at

e 
N

o
n

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
Fe

e
 

 
$

1
9

5
.0

5
  

$
2

0
4

.8
0

  
$

2
1

5
.0

4
  

$
2

2
5

.7
9

  
$

2
3

7
.0

8
  

$
2

4
8

.9
4

  

W
ar

eh
o

u
se

s 
o

n
e 

u
n

it
 p

er
 6

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 o
r 

fr
ac

ti
o

n
 t

h
er

eo
f 

$
7

5
.2

9
  

$
7

9
.0

5
  

$
8

3
.0

1
  

$
8

7
.1

6
  

$
9

1
.5

2
  

$
9

6
.0

9
  

D
u

m
p

 F
ee

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  d
is

p
o

sa
l d

o
m

es
ti

c 
sl

u
d

ge
 

p
er

 g
al

lo
n

 
$

0
.3

2
  

$
0

.3
4

  
$

0
.3

5
  

$
0

.3
7

  
$

0
.3

9
  

$
0

.4
1

  

  d
is

p
o

sa
l s

ep
ti

c 
ta

n
k/

p
o

rt
ab

le
 

to
ile

t 
w

at
er

 
p

er
 g

al
lo

n
 

$
0

.2
3

  
$

0
.2

4
  

$
0

.2
5

  
$

0
.2

7
  

$
0

.2
8

  
$

0
.2

9
  

 

100



T E C H N I C A L  M E M O R A N D U M    
 

City of Kodiak Sewer Rate Study –DRAFT Financial 
Plan  
PREPARED FOR: Mark Kozak/Director of Public Works, City of Kodiak 

PREPARED BY: 
 
REVIEWED BY: 

Kurt Playstead/CH2M HILL 

Dave Green/CH2M HILL 

DATE: May 8, 2014 

 

Overview 
In March, 2014 the City of Kodiak commissioned CH2M HILL to update its sewer rates. The purpose 
of this study is to determine if projected rate revenue requirements related to operation and 
maintenance and capital improvements will require additional rate increases in the future. Previous 
to this study, CH2M HILL completed a rate study in 2005 and the City conducted an in-house rate 
study in 1993.  CH2M HILL also completed a rate study in 1988. 

This technical memorandum presents a 10-year financial plan for the sewer system, as the first 
phase of the rate study. The memorandum begins with an introduction to the financial plan, 
including the planning assumptions. This is followed by a discussion of projected sewer system 
revenue requirements and revenues. The memorandum ends with a discussion of rate impacts, 
based on the current rate structure. 

Introduction 
This technical memorandum presents a financial analysis of the City’s sewer system. A 10-year 
financial plan was developed to analyze the impact on sewer rates of implementing the proposed 
capital improvement plan (CIP) and projected operating expenses associated with completing the 
plan. 

The building blocks of the financial plan are the projections of costs (both operations and 
maintenance, and capital) that the City will incur during the 10-year planning period, fiscal year 
2014/15 through fiscal year 2023/24, and the revenues, under existing rates, which the City expects 
to generate during the same period. The financial plan is based on a set of overall assumptions 
related to customer growth, inflation, and other factors, as well as the specific phasing of the City’s 
CIP.  

The following general assumptions were used in developing the plan: 

• Customer growth will occur at the following annual rates: 

 Residential Growth-Inside city:  0%  
 Residential Growth-Outside city:  0%  
 Commercial Growth-Inside city:  0%  

101

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 Commercial Growth-Outside city:  0% 
 Industrial Growth:  0% (flat) 

• Operation and maintenance costs – specific annual escalation factors used include: 

 Salaries and wages (all line items):  3.0% 
 Retirement contributions:  4.0%  
 Workmen’s compensation:  7.0%  
 Group insurance / insurance and bonding:  10.0%  
 Electricity (public utility service):  3.0%  
 Administrative, financial and public works services:  3.0%.  

• Capital costs will increase at an annual rate of 4% to account for inflation. 
• Sewer sale fee:  10% of annual sewer sales revenue 
• Interest earned on investments:  2.5% 

The draft financial plan for the sewer system is presented in Attachments 1 and 2, showing 
projected sources and uses of funds for the Sewer Utility Fund (#570) and the Sewer Improvement 
Fund (#306), and projected debt service coverage. Each component of the financial plan is discussed 
in more detail below. 

Revenue Requirements 
The costs in the plan that are to be funded from annual revenues are referred to as ‘revenue 
requirements’ for rate-making purposes. Total requirements are composed of: 

• Operations and maintenance (O&M) costs 

• Annual capital improvement projects funded by rates and reserves 

• Debt service expenditures 

• Transfers to other City funds for indirect and direct services provided to the utility 

In addition, annual requirements include operating contingencies equal to 20 percent of annual 
O&M costs. However, 100 percent of annual contingencies are assumed to be unspent and roll 
forward to subsequent year beginning balances. 

Revenue requirements were projected based on data provided by the City, including adopted 
budget for FY 2013/14 and a proposed CIP with annual details from FY2013/14 through FY2023/24. 
The City’s FY2013/14 budget for the Sewer Utility Fund is presented in Table 1. 

Operation and Maintenance Costs  
Operation and maintenance costs include all costs associated with operating and maintaining the 
wastewater system, including personnel and materials and services costs. Table 1 shows historical 
O&M costs from FY 2010/11 through FY 2012/13 and budgeted O&M costs for the wastewater 
system for FY2013/14.  The costs presented combine the collection system and treatment plant 
expenses. Total personnel and materials and services costs are approximately $2.8 million. 
Approximately 47 percent of this total is personnel related (salaries and wages, benefits, 
professional services). The City is in the process of modifying its biosolid management program 
which includes the construction and operation of a compost facility.  The facility is being built to 

102



handle the disposal of wastewater treatment plant biosolids, as the Kodiak Island Borough landfill 
has stopped accepting the product. The budget for FY 2013/14 reflects the changes in biosolid 
disposal operations.  

TABLE 1 
City of Kodiak 
Sewer Rate Analysis 
Historical and Budgeted O&M Costs 
 

  Actual Actual Actual Budget 
Item FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 

Salaries and Wages $564,501  $574,846  $558,581  $684,770  
Benefits $406,748  $491,588  $490,303  $568,100  
Professional Services $44,482  $24,684  $41,148  $91,502  
Support Good and Services $199,220  $189,853  $192,461  $290,780  
Public Utility Services $485,525  $570,786  $387,680  $615,000  
Bond Expense $25,756  $35,028  $30,528  $27,025  
Construction $0  $0  $0  $0  
Capital Outlay $980  $8,500  $39,167  $77,000  
Interfund Charges $467,088  $495,455  $529,691  $476,250  
Transfers $0  $0  $0  $0  
Total $2,194,300  $2,390,740  $2,269,558  $2,830,427  

Source:  City of Kodiak FY2014 Budget, Sewer Utility 
Fund 

As shown in Attachments 1 and 2, O&M costs (including personnel services and materials and 
services) are projected to increase to over $4.2 million in FY2022/23. 

Capital Costs 
Budgeted capital outlays for machinery and equipment totaled approximately $77,000 in FY2013/14 
(budgeted), as shown in Table 1. Approved capital projects totaled an additional $124,000 in that 
year. Approved capital expenditures included the Aleutian Homes Phase 5 project and the biosolid 
management project.  Discussions with city staff estimated that both of these projects would be 
designed by the end of FY 2013/14 with most of the construction costs being spent in FY 2014/15.   

Table 2 summarizes the capital improvement plan for the sewer system through FY 2023/24 in 2014 
dollars. A number of projects listed will have a water, sewer, and street improvement components.  
Only the sewer utility’s share of the costs is presented. 

The sewer CIP identifies approximately $32.0 million (in 2014 dollars) in capital improvements from 
FY 2014/15 through FY2023/24.  The projects are necessary to maintain the current level of service 
provided by existing facilities, comply with state and federal regulations, and provide capacity to 
meet the needs of projected growth. The two largest projects in the CIP include the construction of 
the compost facility ($3 million construction) and the upgrade to the wastewater treatment plant 
($16.5 million design and construction). Based on the anticipated project schedules and an 
estimated annual capital cost escalation rate of 4 percent, the total, inflation adjusted capital 
improvement plan for the wastewater system is $38.4 million through FY2023/24. 

103



As shown in Attachment 1, the projected capital improvements will be paid by a combination of 
current revenues, grants, and debt proceeds.  For this analysis, it is assumed that the City will 
receive grants to support approximately 50 percent of the sewer capital improvements in future 
years. Many projects on the CIP could be deferred in order to give the City more time to receive 
favorable financing.  For this analysis, it was assumed that the City would issue revenue bonds in FY 
2015/16, FY 2016/17, FY 2018/19, FY 2020/21, and FY 2021/22. Annual debt service increases from 
approximately $300,000 in FY 2013/14 to over $1.6 million in FY 2022/23, based on this borrowing 
schedule. Debt service payments are based on a 20-year term, 4.5 percent interest, 2.0 percent 
issuance costs, and a 10 percent reserve requirement. 

The City may be eligible for a combination of lower-interest loans and grants from state and federal 
agencies. However, because funds are limited, and to provide the City with an upper end estimate of 
rate impacts, we have assumed that the City would have to issue debt through the conventional 
bond market.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

104



TA
BL

E 
2 

Ci
ty 

of 
Ko

dia
k 

Se
we

r R
ate

 S
tud

y 
Ca

pit
al 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 (2

01
4$

) 
 P

ro
je

c
t 

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 

2
0
1
5
-1

6
 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
 

2
0
1
7
-1

8
 

2
0
1
8
-1

9
 

2
0
1
9
-2

0
 

2
0
2
1
-2

2
 

2
0
2
2
-2

3
 

2
0
2
3
-2

4
 

W
a
te

r 
&

S
e
w

e
r 

R
a
te

 S
tu

d
y
  

$
3
0
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

A
le

u
ti
a
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

H
 5

 T
h
o
rs

h
e
im

, 
O

a
k
 t
o
 M

a
p
le

 
S

e
g
m

e
n
t 
B

 &
 C

 
$
1
,6

2
0
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

B
io

-S
o
lid

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t 

$
3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

A
le

u
ti
a
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

H
 6

 B
ir
c
h
 S

t 
$
1
7
8
,0

4
0
 

$
1
,6

0
2
,3

6
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 P

H
 3

, 
C

e
n
te

r 
S

tr
e
e
t 

$
0
 

$
1
9
4
,4

0
0
 

$
1
,7

4
9
,6

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 P

H
 4

, 
M

e
c
c
a
 t
o
 C

e
n
te

r 
S

t.
  
O

n
 

M
a
ri
n
e
 W

a
y
 

$
0
 

$
1
8
4
,0

0
0
 

$
1
,6

5
6
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

A
le

u
ti
a
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

H
 7

 H
e
m

lo
c
k
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
2
2
7
,5

2
0
 

$
2
,0

4
7
,6

8
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

A
le

u
ti
a
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

H
 8

, 
C

a
ro

ly
n
 &

 W
ils

o
n
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
2
0
4
,0

0
0
 

$
1
,8

3
6
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

A
le

u
ti
a
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 P

H
 9

 H
ig

h
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 

H
ill

c
re

s
t 

a
n
d
 L

ig
h
tf

o
o
t 
A

v
e
. 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
9
5
3
,6

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

M
ill

 B
a
y
 R

o
a
d
 R

e
b
u
ild

 
$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 W

W
T

P
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
. 
  

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
6
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
6
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
3
0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

W
W

T
P

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
  

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
1
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

P
e
rm

it
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 

$
0
 

$
5
0
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

$
0
 

S
u

b
to

ta
l 

$
4
,8

2
8
,0

4
0
 

$
2
,0

3
0
,7

6
0
 

$
4
,9

5
9
,2

0
0
 

$
8
2
7
,5

2
0
 

$
2
,3

4
7
,6

8
0
 

$
1
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
2
0
4
,0

0
0
 

$
1
,8

3
6
,0

0
0
 

$
0
 

105



Revenues 
For this analysis, it was assumed the City would rely on a combination of sewer rates, grant funding, 
and debt financing to fund the projected system costs over the next 10 years. As shown in 
Attachment 2, sewer sales revenues – including rates inside the City and in the borough, and septic 
truck discharge fees – based on existing rates are projected to generate about $3.4 million in 
FY2013/14. This projection is based on the City’s existing rate schedule presented in Table 3. The 
City’s rate structure is a flat fee per month based on customer type. 

TABLE 3 
City of Kodiak 
Sewer Rate Study 
Existing Rate Structure  

Customer Type Basis for Charge 

Inside 
City 

($/mo) 

Outside 
City 

($/mo) 
Apartments, per unit one unit per dwelling $62.81 $75.29 
Auditorium on unit per 3,500 sf of floor area or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Bakery one unit per 200 sf of patron area or fraction 

thereof 
$62.81 $75.29 

Bar one unit per 200 sf of patron area or fraction 
thereof 

$62.81 $75.29 

Beauty Shops/Barber/Animal 
Grooming 

one unit per facility/residence $62.81 $75.29 

 one-half unit per operator chair/tub $31.41 $37.64 
B&B / Boarding House one unit per facility/residence $62.81 $75.29 
 plus one-half unit per guest room $31.41 $37.64 
Churches one unit per facility   $62.81 $75.29 
Construction one-half the regular rate for intended use of 

building 
  

Day Care Facilities one unit per business/dwelling unit $62.81 $75.29 
 plus one-quarter unit for each 5 persons or fraction 

thereof 
$15.70 $18.83 

Dining Facility/Café/Bakeries  one unit per 200 sf of patron area $62.81 $75.29 
Doctor's office, medical clinic, 
dentist  

one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 

Dry Cleaners  one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Gas Station / Auto Repair Shop 2 units per business $125.61 $150.58 
Hospital/Major Care Center  one unit per bed $62.81 $75.29 
Hotel/Motel one-half unit per guest room w/o cooking $31.41 $37.64 
 three-quarter unit per guest room w/cooking $47.10 $56.47 
Industrial one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Laundries and bath houses three-quarter unit per per washing machine $47.10 $56.47 
Meats or Produce Retail Stores  one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Museums one unit per dwelling $62.81 $75.29 
Office/Retail one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Powerhouses one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Residential (no additional charge 
for home-based office/retail use) 

one unit per dwelling $62.81 $75.29 

Rest Home/Long Term Care one unit per 2 beds or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 

106



Schools one unit per 20 persons in daily attendance, 
including staff 

$62.81 $75.29 

Senior Citizens (primary 
residence) 

one-half unit $31.41 $37.64 

Vacant Rate, per month one-half the regular rate for intended use of 
building 

$31.41 $37.64 

Vacant Rate Noncompliance Fee  $195.05 $195.05 
Warehouses one unit per 6 employees or fraction thereof $62.81 $75.29 
Dump Fee    
  disposal domestic sludge per gallon $0.32 $0.32 
  disposal septic tank/portable 
toilet water 

per gallon $0.23 $0.23 

 

Non-rate revenues, including revenue from interest income, miscellaneous charges, and 
intergovernmental sources, are projected at approximately $162,000 for the sewer system in 
FY2013/14.  For this analysis, it was assumed the intergovernmental sources such as PERS relief 
funds will not be available.  Non-rate revenues are projected to be about $120,000 by the end of the 
study period.  

Rate Impacts 
As of March 2014, the City’s has a combined $5.6 million in reserves between the utility fund and 
the capital improvement fund (see Attachment 1). The City anticipates current appropriations will 
significantly reduce available cash reserves by the end of the next fiscal year. The construction of the 
compost facility will require a large portion of existing reserves.   

As discussed previously, this analysis assumes that the City will use a combination of rate revenue, 
grants, and revenue bonds to pay for the projects listed in the CIP. The FY 2015/16 debt issue is 
estimated to total approximately $1.3 million, including project costs, reserve requirements, and 
issuance costs. The FY 2016/17, FY 2018/19, and the FY 2019/20 debt issuance are assumed to total 
approximately $2.8 million, $1.4 million, and $10.2 million, respectively. The large debt issuance in 
FY 2019/20 is to pay for the treatment plant upgrades.  To repay the debt, and to pay for the 
additional capital and operating expenses forecast over the study period, sewer rate increases will 
be required.  

Exhibit 1 presents the revenue requirements for the sewer utility over the analysis period.  Revenue 
requirements consist of operations and maintenance expenses (including transfers), debt service 
payments, and pay –as-you-go capital expenses.  As the exhibit illustrates, existing rate levels will 
not be sufficient to cover the revenue requirements associated with the planned capital 
expenditures presented in Table 2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



EXHIBIT 1 
City of Kodiak 
Sewer Rate Study 
Revenue Requirements 
 

 
 

 

For this analysis, rate increases are introduced every year beginning in FY2014/15. The current rates 
generate sufficient revenue to fund current O&M and debt service costs, as well as an annual 
transfer to capital projects of about $160,000.  However, as the proposed CIP averages about $3.8 
million (inflation-adjusted) per year over the study period, significant additional rate increases are 
required to fund the projects.  The rate increases have been structured with increases above 
inflationary adjustment initially in FY2014/15 and FY 2015/16 that taper down to inflationary 
increases for three years.  A larger rate increase is required in FY 2019/20 to account for the 
projected wastewater treatment plant upgrade.  Table 4 presents the projected annual rate 
increases need to meet the City’s revenue requirements.  The estimated inside City monthly 
residential rate is also included. 

 

 

 

108



TABLE 4 
City of Kodiak 
Sewer Rate Study 
Projected Annual Increases and Inside City Residential Rate 
 

Fiscal Year % Increase 
Residential Rate 

($/mo.) 

FY 2014-15 5.00% $65.95 

FY 2015-16 5.00% $69.25 

FY 2016-17 5.00% $72.71 

FY 2017-18 5.00% $76.35 

FY 2018-19 5.00% $80.16 

FY 2019-20 10.00% $88.18 

FY 2020-21 5.00% $92.59 

FY 2021-22 5.00% $97.22 

FY 2022-23 3.00% $100.13 

FY 2023-24 3.00% $103.14 

 

Attachment 2 shows the estimated total annual rate revenue, based on the proposed rate increases 
and forecast revenue under existing rates. These rate increases have been structured to allow the 
City to generate adequate revenue to meet the proposed CIP and projected annual O&M costs, as 
well as maintain minimum fund balances and debt service coverage. Debt service coverage is the 
amount of revenue that a utility must generate annually in excess of its operation, maintenance, 
and debt service requirements. This additional revenue is required by bond buyers as a condition of 
issuing revenue bonds; it provides the bond buyers a measure of security regarding debt repayment 
by the utility. Failure to generate the required revenues could put the utility in technical default on 
the bonds, which adversely affects current and future bond ratings and interest costs. 

Debt service coverage requirements generally require net revenues (system income and revenue 
less operation and maintenance expenses) to be at least 1.25 times the average annual principal and 
interest requirements of all outstanding bonds. Attachment 2 shows the projected debt service 
coverage based on the projected operating revenues and O&M expenses over the study period. In 
each year, debt service coverage meets the assumed minimum coverage typically required by bond 
covenants. This is largely because rates have been set to generate sufficient revenues to cover a 
significant amount of capital costs. The additional revenue generated for capital projects counts 
towards meeting the coverage requirements.  

Table 5 presents the forecast wastewater rates for each customer class, based on the City’s existing 
rate structure and the forecast rate increases presented in Attachment 2 for FY 2014/15 through FY 
2018/19. The existing monthly rate per unit is $62.81 for inside City residential customers.  Based on 
the forecast rate increases, the inside-city rate per residential unit increases to $80.16 in FY2018/19. 
For outside-city residential customers, the monthly rate increases to $96.09 in FY 2018/19. 

109



It should be noted that changes to timing of particular projects listed in the CIP and/or the ability of 
the City to obtain alternative sources of funding could impact the rate increases projected in this 
analysis.  Alternative rate increase strategies could be explored to smooth increases over the entire 
planning period or achieve other objectives. 

 

Conclusion 
Based on the sewer system rate update findings summarized in the previous sections and the data 
and assumptions developed for the study, the following recommendations are presented for the 
City’s consideration: 

• Implement first 5 years of rate increases presented in Table 5 (FY 2014/15 through FY 
2018/19) 

• Review and update capital improvement plan on a regular basis and adjust schedule and 
cost estimates to reflect current project timing and cost conditions. Depending on the final 
cost and funding strategy for the WWTP upgrade, it may be necessary to update sewer rates 
when the project is better defined and costs have been estimated based on a preliminary 
design. 

• Review financial plan regularly to ensure actual revenue and expenditures are tracking with 
the projections developed in this rate update.  The City should review the financial plan 
annually and make appropriate adjustments for changes in operations, capital spending, and 
customer account composition.  Rates should be adjusted accordingly.

110



TA
BL

E 
5 

Ci
ty 

of 
Ko

dia
k 

Se
we

r R
ate

 S
tud

y 
Ex

ist
ing

 an
d 

Pr
oje

cte
d 

Se
we

r R
at

es
, In

sid
e C

ity
 F

Y2
01

4/1
5 –

 F
Y 

20
18

/19
 

  
  

Ex
is

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
  

  

Cu
st

om
er

 C
la

ss
 

Ba
si

s f
or

 C
ha

rg
e 

FY
 2

01
3-

14
 

FY
 2

01
4-

15
 

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

FY
 2

01
6-

17
 

FY
 2

01
7-

18
 

FY
 2

01
8-

19
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ch
ar

ge
 - 

In
si

de
 C

ity
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r d
w

el
lin

g 
$6

2.
81

  
$6

5.
95

  
$6

9.
25

  
$7

2.
71

  
$7

6.
35

  
$8

0.
16

  
Au

di
to

riu
m

 
on

 u
ni

t p
er

 3
,5

00
 sf

 o
f f

lo
or

 a
re

a 
or

 fr
ac

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Ba
ke

ry
 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 2

00
 sf

 o
f p

at
ro

n 
ar

ea
 o

r f
ra

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$6

2.
81

  
$6

5.
95

  
$6

9.
25

  
$7

2.
71

  
$7

6.
35

  
$8

0.
16

  
Ba

r 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 2
00

 sf
 o

f p
at

ro
n 

ar
ea

 o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Be
au

ty
 S

ho
ps

/B
ar

be
r/

An
im

al
 

Gr
oo

m
in

g 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
en

ce
 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

 
on

e-
ha

lf 
un

it 
pe

r o
pe

ra
to

r c
ha

ir/
tu

b 
$3

1.
41

  
$3

2.
98

  
$3

4.
63

  
$3

6.
36

  
$3

8.
18

  
$4

0.
09

  
B&

B 
/ B

oa
rd

in
g 

Ho
us

e 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
en

ce
 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

 
pl

us
 o

ne
-h

al
f u

ni
t p

er
 g

ue
st

 ro
om

 
$3

1.
41

  
$3

2.
98

  
$3

4.
63

  
$3

6.
36

  
$3

8.
18

  
$4

0.
09

  
Ch

ur
ch

es
 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r f

ac
ili

ty
   

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

on
e-

ha
lf 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r r

at
e 

fo
r i

nt
en

de
d 

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

$0
.0

0 
 

$0
.0

0 
 

$0
.0

0 
 

$0
.0

0 
 

$0
.0

0 
 

$0
.0

0 
 

Da
y 

Ca
re

 F
ac

ili
te

s 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r b
us

in
es

s/
dw

el
lin

g 
un

it 
$6

2.
81

  
$6

5.
95

  
$6

9.
25

  
$7

2.
71

  
$7

6.
35

  
$8

0.
16

  

 
pl

us
 o

ne
-q

ua
rt

er
 u

ni
t f

or
 e

ac
h 

5 
pe

rs
on

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$1
5.

70
  

$1
6.

49
  

$1
7.

31
  

$1
8.

17
  

$1
9.

08
  

$2
0.

04
  

Di
ni

ng
 F

ac
ili

ty
/C

af
é/

Ba
ke

rie
s  

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 2

00
 sf

 o
f p

at
ro

n 
ar

ea
 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Do
ct

or
's 

of
fic

e,
 m

ed
ic

al
 c

lin
ic

, 
de

nt
ist

  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Dr
y 

Cl
ea

ne
rs

  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Ga
s S

ta
tio

n 
/ A

ut
o 

Re
pa

ir 
Sh

op
 

2 
un

its
 p

er
 b

us
in

es
s 

$1
25

.6
1 

 
$1

31
.8

9 
 

$1
38

.4
9 

 
$1

45
.4

1 
 

$1
52

.6
8 

 
$1

60
.3

1 
 

Ho
sp

ita
l/M

aj
or

 C
ar

e 
Ce

nt
er

  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r b
ed

 
$6

2.
81

  
$6

5.
95

  
$6

9.
25

  
$7

2.
71

  
$7

6.
35

  
$8

0.
16

  
Ho

te
l/M

ot
el

 
on

e-
ha

lf 
un

it 
pe

r g
ue

st
 ro

om
 w

/o
 c

oo
ki

ng
 

$3
1.

41
  

$3
2.

98
  

$3
4.

63
  

$3
6.

36
  

$3
8.

18
  

$4
0.

09
  

 
th

re
e-

qu
ar

te
r u

ni
t p

er
 g

ue
st

 ro
om

 w
/c

oo
ki

ng
 

$4
7.

10
  

$4
9.

46
  

$5
1.

93
  

$5
4.

52
  

$5
7.

25
  

$6
0.

11
  

In
du

st
ria

l 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

La
un

dr
ie

s a
nd

 b
at

h 
ho

us
es

 
th

re
e-

qu
ar

te
r u

ni
te

r p
er

 w
as

hi
ng

 m
ac

hi
ne

 
$4

7.
10

  
$4

9.
46

  
$5

1.
93

  
$5

4.
52

  
$5

7.
25

  
$6

0.
11

  

M
ea

ts
 o

r P
ro

du
ce

 R
et

ai
l S

to
re

s  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

M
us

eu
m

s 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r d
w

el
lin

g 
$6

2.
81

  
$6

5.
95

  
$6

9.
25

  
$7

2.
71

  
$7

6.
35

  
$8

0.
16

  

111



O
ffi

ce
/R

et
ai

l 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Po
w

er
ho

us
es

 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Re
sid

en
tia

l (
no

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

ch
ar

ge
 fo

r h
om

e-
ba

se
d 

of
fic

e/
re

ta
il 

us
e)

 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r d
w

el
lin

g 
$6

2.
81

  
$6

5.
95

  
$6

9.
25

  
$7

2.
71

  
$7

6.
35

  
$8

0.
16

  
Re

st
 H

om
e/

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
 C

ar
e 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 2

 b
ed

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Sc
ho

ol
s 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 2

0 
pe

rs
on

s i
n 

da
ily

 a
tt

en
da

nc
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
st

af
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Se
ni

or
 C

iti
ze

ns
 (p

rim
ar

y 
re

sid
en

ce
) 

on
e-

ha
lf 

un
it 

$3
1.

41
  

$3
2.

98
  

$3
4.

63
  

$3
6.

36
  

$3
8.

18
  

$4
0.

09
  

Va
ca

nt
 R

at
e,

 p
er

 m
on

th
 

on
e-

ha
lf 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r r

at
e 

fo
r i

nt
en

de
d 

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

$3
1.

41
  

$3
2.

98
  

$3
4.

63
  

$3
6.

36
  

$3
8.

18
  

$4
0.

09
  

Va
ca

nt
 R

at
e 

N
on

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Fe
e 

 
$1

95
.0

5 
 

$2
04

.8
0 

 
$2

15
.0

4 
 

$2
25

.7
9 

 
$2

37
.0

8 
 

$2
48

.9
4 

 
W

ar
eh

ou
se

s 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$6
2.

81
  

$6
5.

95
  

$6
9.

25
  

$7
2.

71
  

$7
6.

35
  

$8
0.

16
  

Du
m

p 
Fe

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  d
isp

os
al

 d
om

es
tic

 sl
ud

ge
 

pe
r g

al
lo

n 
$0

.3
2 

 
$0

.3
4 

 
$0

.3
5 

 
$0

.3
7 

 
$0

.3
9 

 
$0

.4
1 

 
  d

isp
os

al
 se

pt
ic

 ta
nk

/p
or

ta
bl

e 
to

ile
t w

at
er

 
pe

r g
al

lo
n 

$0
.2

3 
 

$0
.2

4 
 

$0
.2

5 
 

$0
.2

7 
 

$0
.2

8 
 

$0
.2

9 
 

  Se
rv

ic
e 

Ch
ar

ge
 - 

O
ut

si
de

 C
ity

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r d

w
el

lin
g 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

Au
di

to
riu

m
 

on
 u

ni
t p

er
 3

,5
00

 sf
 o

f f
lo

or
 a

re
a 

or
 fr

ac
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Ba

ke
ry

 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 2
00

 sf
 o

f p
at

ro
n 

ar
ea

 o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

Ba
r 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 2

00
 sf

 o
f p

at
ro

n 
ar

ea
 o

r f
ra

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  

Be
au

ty
 S

ho
ps

/B
ar

be
r/

An
im

al
 

Gr
oo

m
in

g 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
en

ce
 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

 
on

e-
ha

lf 
un

it 
pe

r o
pe

ra
to

r c
ha

ir/
tu

b 
$3

7.
64

  
$3

9.
52

  
$4

1.
50

  
$4

3.
57

  
$4

5.
75

  
$4

8.
04

  
B&

B 
/ B

oa
rd

in
g 

Ho
us

e 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r f
ac

ili
ty

/r
es

id
en

ce
 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

 
pl

us
 o

ne
-h

al
f u

ni
t p

er
 g

ue
st

 ro
om

 
$3

7.
64

  
$3

9.
52

  
$4

1.
50

  
$4

3.
57

  
$4

5.
75

  
$4

8.
04

  
Ch

ur
ch

es
 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r f

ac
ili

ty
   

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

on
e-

ha
lf 

th
e 

re
gu

la
r r

at
e 

fo
r i

nt
en

de
d 

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Da
y 

Ca
re

 F
ac

ili
te

s 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r b
us

in
es

s/
dw

el
lin

g 
un

it 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  

 
pl

us
 o

ne
-q

ua
rt

er
 u

ni
t f

or
 e

ac
h 

5 
pe

rs
on

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$1
8.

83
  

$1
9.

77
  

$2
0.

76
  

$2
1.

80
  

$2
2.

89
  

$2
4.

03
  

Di
ni

ng
 F

ac
ili

ty
/C

af
é/

Ba
ke

rie
s  

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 2

00
 sf

 o
f p

at
ro

n 
ar

ea
 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

112



Do
ct

or
's 

of
fic

e,
 m

ed
ic

al
 c

lin
ic

, 
de

nt
ist

  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

Dr
y 

Cl
ea

ne
rs

  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

Ga
s S

ta
tio

n 
/ A

ut
o 

Re
pa

ir 
Sh

op
 

2 
un

its
 p

er
 b

us
in

es
s 

$1
50

.5
8 

 
$1

58
.1

1 
 

$1
66

.0
1 

 
$1

74
.3

2 
 

$1
83

.0
3 

 
$1

92
.1

8 
 

Ho
sp

ita
l/M

aj
or

 C
ar

e 
Ce

nt
er

  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r b
ed

 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Ho

te
l/M

ot
el

 
on

e-
ha

lf 
un

it 
pe

r g
ue

st
 ro

om
 w

/o
 c

oo
ki

ng
 

$3
7.

64
  

$3
9.

52
  

$4
1.

50
  

$4
3.

57
  

$4
5.

75
  

$4
8.

04
  

 
th

re
e-

qu
ar

te
r u

ni
t p

er
 g

ue
st

 ro
om

 w
/c

oo
ki

ng
 

$5
6.

47
  

$5
9.

29
  

$6
2.

26
  

$6
5.

37
  

$6
8.

64
  

$7
2.

07
  

In
du

st
ria

l 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

La
un

dr
ie

s a
nd

 b
at

h 
ho

us
es

 
th

re
e-

qu
ar

te
r u

ni
te

r p
er

 w
as

hi
ng

 m
ac

hi
ne

 
$5

6.
47

  
$5

9.
29

  
$6

2.
26

  
$6

5.
37

  
$6

8.
64

  
$7

2.
07

  

M
ea

ts
 o

r P
ro

du
ce

 R
et

ai
l S

to
re

s  
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 6
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
r f

ra
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

M
us

eu
m

s 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r d
w

el
lin

g 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
O

ffi
ce

/R
et

ai
l 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 6

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s o

r f
ra

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Po

w
er

ho
us

es
 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 6

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s o

r f
ra

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Re

sid
en

tia
l (

no
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
ch

ar
ge

 fo
r h

om
e-

ba
se

d 
of

fic
e/

re
ta

il 
us

e)
 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r d

w
el

lin
g 

$7
5.

29
  

$7
9.

05
  

$8
3.

01
  

$8
7.

16
  

$9
1.

52
  

$9
6.

09
  

Re
st

 H
om

e/
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

 C
ar

e 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 2
 b

ed
s o

r f
ra

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Sc

ho
ol

s 
on

e 
un

it 
pe

r 2
0 

pe
rs

on
s i

n 
da

ily
 a

tt
en

da
nc

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
af

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Se

ni
or

 C
iti

ze
ns

 (p
rim

ar
y 

re
sid

en
ce

) 
on

e-
ha

lf 
un

it 
$3

7.
64

  
$3

9.
52

  
$4

1.
50

  
$4

3.
57

  
$4

5.
75

  
$4

8.
04

  
Va

ca
nt

 R
at

e,
 p

er
 m

on
th

 
on

e-
ha

lf 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r r
at

e 
fo

r i
nt

en
de

d 
us

e 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
$3

7.
64

  
$3

9.
52

  
$4

1.
50

  
$4

3.
57

  
$4

5.
75

  
$4

8.
04

  
Va

ca
nt

 R
at

e 
N

on
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
Fe

e 
 

$1
95

.0
5 

 
$2

04
.8

0 
 

$2
15

.0
4 

 
$2

25
.7

9 
 

$2
37

.0
8 

 
$2

48
.9

4 
 

W
ar

eh
ou

se
s 

on
e 

un
it 

pe
r 6

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s o

r f
ra

ct
io

n 
th

er
eo

f 
$7

5.
29

  
$7

9.
05

  
$8

3.
01

  
$8

7.
16

  
$9

1.
52

  
$9

6.
09

  
Du

m
p 

Fe
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  d

isp
os

al
 d

om
es

tic
 sl

ud
ge

 
pe

r g
al

lo
n 

$0
.3

2 
 

$0
.3

4 
 

$0
.3

5 
 

$0
.3

7 
 

$0
.3

9 
 

$0
.4

1 
 

  d
isp

os
al

 se
pt

ic
 ta

nk
/p

or
ta

bl
e 

to
ile

t w
at

er
 

pe
r g

al
lo

n 
$0

.2
3 

 
$0

.2
4 

 
$0

.2
5 

 
$0

.2
7 

 
$0

.2
8 

 
$0

.2
9 

 

113



                 

 

AT
TA

CH
ME

NT
S 

114



AT
TA

CH
ME

NT
 1 

Ci
ty 

of 
Ko

dia
k 

Se
we

r R
ate

 S
tud

y 
So

ur
ce

s a
nd

 U
se

s o
f F

un
ds

 
  

 
  

Bu
dg

et
 

  
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

Ite
m

 
FY

 2
01

3-
14

 
FY

 2
01

4-
15

 
FY

 2
01

5-
16

 
FY

 2
01

6-
17

 
FY

 2
01

7-
18

 
FY

 2
01

8-
19

 
FY

 2
01

9-
20

 
FY

 2
02

0-
21

 
FY

 2
02

1-
22

 
FY

 2
02

2-
23

 
FY

 2
02

3-
24

 
Se

w
er

 U
til

ity
 F

un
d 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
So

ur
ce

s o
f F

un
ds

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ba

la
nc

e 
($

56
1,

96
9)

 
   

   
 

(1
44

,9
80

) 
   

   
   

22
5,

94
9 

 
   

   
   

34
6,

70
1 

 
   

   
   

63
8,

22
1 

 
   

   
   

64
6,

02
3 

 
   

   
   

   
79

6,
11

9 
 

   
  

1,
82

7,
02

5 
 

   
  

1,
83

5,
75

6 
 

   
  

1,
84

4,
83

0 
 

   
  

1,
85

4,
26

4 
 

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  

   
PE

RS
 R

el
ie

f 
   

   
   

   
77

,7
44

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
St

at
e 

Re
ve

nu
e 

Sh
ar

in
g 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ch
ar

ge
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

   
Se

w
er

 S
vc

 C
hg

 - 
Ci

ty
 

   
  

2,
22

9,
26

0 
 

   
  

2,
38

5,
30

8 
 

   
  

2,
45

7,
75

9 
 

   
  

2,
58

0,
64

7 
 

   
  2

,7
09

,6
79

  
   

  
2,

84
5,

16
3 

 
   

   
  

3,
12

9,
68

0 
 

   
  

3,
28

6,
16

4 
 

   
  

3,
45

0,
47

2 
 

   
  

3,
55

3,
98

6 
 

   
  

3,
66

0,
60

6 
 

   
Se

w
er

 S
vc

 C
hg

 - 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
   

  
1,

15
7,

63
0 

 
   

  
1,

23
8,

66
4 

 
   

  
1,

27
6,

28
7 

 
   

  
1,

34
0,

10
1 

 
   

  1
,4

07
,1

07
  

   
  

1,
47

7,
46

2 
 

   
   

  
1,

62
5,

20
8 

 
   

  
1,

70
6,

46
8 

 
   

  
1,

79
1,

79
2 

 
   

  
1,

84
5,

54
6 

 
   

  
1,

90
0,

91
2 

 

   
Se

w
er

 S
vc

 - 
Ho

ok
up

s 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
30

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

30
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
30

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

30
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
30

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

30
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

30
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
30

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

30
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
30

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
6,

30
0 

 

   
Se

pt
ic

 T
an

k 
Di

sc
ha

rg
e 

   
   

   
   

42
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

42
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

42
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

42
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

42
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

42
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

   
42

,8
00

  
   

   
   

   
42

,8
00

  
   

   
   

   
42

,8
00

  
   

   
   

   
42

,8
00

  
   

   
   

   
42

,8
00

  

  L
ab

 T
es

tin
g 

Fe
e 

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
  

   
   

   
   

25
,7

50
  

   
   

   
   

26
,5

23
  

   
   

   
   

27
,3

18
  

   
   

   
   

28
,1

38
  

   
   

   
   

28
,9

82
  

   
   

   
   

   
29

,8
51

  
   

   
   

   
30

,7
47

  
   

   
   

   
31

,6
69

  
   

   
   

   
32

,6
19

  
   

   
   

   
33

,5
98

  

  S
ub

to
ta

l -
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

e 
 

   
  

3,
46

0,
99

0 
 

   
  

3,
69

8,
82

2 
 

   
  

3,
80

9,
66

9 
 

   
  

3,
99

7,
16

7 
 

   
  4

,1
94

,0
24

  
   

  
4,

40
0,

70
7 

 
   

   
  

4,
83

3,
83

9 
 

   
  

5,
07

2,
47

9 
 

   
  

5,
32

3,
03

3 
 

   
  

5,
48

1,
25

1 
 

   
  

5,
64

4,
21

6 
 

In
te

re
st

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  I
nt

er
es

t O
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
5,

64
9 

 
   

   
   

   
   

8,
66

8 
 

   
   

   
   

15
,9

56
  

   
   

   
   

16
,1

51
  

   
   

   
   

   
19

,9
03

  
   

   
   

   
45

,6
76

  
   

   
   

   
45

,8
94

  
   

   
   

   
46

,1
21

  
   

   
   

   
46

,3
57

  

  U
nr

ea
liz

ed
 G

ai
n/

Lo
ss

-In
v 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

  S
ub

to
ta

l -
 In

te
re

st
  

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

5,
64

9 
 

   
   

   
   

   
8,

66
8 

 
   

   
   

   
15

,9
56

  
   

   
   

   
16

,1
51

  
   

   
   

   
   

19
,9

03
  

   
   

   
   

45
,6

76
  

   
   

   
   

45
,8

94
  

   
   

   
   

46
,1

21
  

   
   

   
   

46
,3

57
  

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  

115



Bo
nd

 P
ro

ce
ed

s (
Fu

nd
ed

 R
es

er
ve

) 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

11
3,

50
0 

 
   

   
   

28
4,

00
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
14

2,
00

0 
 

   
   

  
1,

02
2,

50
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
Tr

an
sf

er
s I

n 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Tr
an

sf
er

 fr
om

 S
ew

er
 Im

p.
 F

un
d 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

To
ta

l S
ou

rc
es

 o
f F

un
ds

 
   

  
2,

98
6,

76
5 

 
   

  
3,

55
3,

84
2 

 
   

  
4,

15
4,

76
7 

 
   

  
4,

63
6,

53
5 

 
   

  4
,8

48
,2

01
  

   
  

5,
20

4,
88

0 
 

   
   

  
6,

67
2,

36
1 

 
   

  
6,

94
5,

17
9 

 
   

  
7,

20
4,

68
3 

 
   

  
7,

37
2,

20
1 

 
   

  
7,

54
4,

83
6 

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

U
se

s o
f F

un
ds

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Sa
la

rie
s A

nd
 W

ag
es

 
$6

84
,7

70
  

$6
51

,0
00

  
$6

70
,5

30
  

$6
90

,6
46

  
$7

11
,3

65
  

$7
32

,7
06

  
$7

54
,6

87
  

$7
77

,3
28

  
$8

00
,6

48
  

$8
24

,6
67

  
$8

49
,4

07
  

Be
ne

fit
s 

   
   

   
56

8,
10

0 
 

   
   

   
54

5,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
56

1,
34

0 
 

   
   

   
57

8,
19

6 
 

   
   

   
59

5,
58

5 
 

   
   

   
61

3,
52

4 
 

   
   

   
   

63
2,

03
0 

 
   

   
   

65
1,

12
2 

 
   

   
   

67
0,

81
8 

 
   

   
   

69
1,

13
8 

 
   

   
   

71
2,

10
1 

 

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
   

   
   

91
,5

02
  

   
   

   
   

90
,0

00
  

   
   

   
   

92
,7

00
  

   
   

   
   

95
,4

81
  

   
   

   
   

98
,3

45
  

   
   

   
10

1,
29

6 
 

   
   

   
   

10
4,

33
5 

 
   

   
   

10
7,

46
5 

 
   

   
   

11
0,

68
9 

 
   

   
   

11
4,

00
9 

 
   

   
   

11
7,

43
0 

 

Su
pp

or
t G

oo
ds

 &
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
   

   
29

0,
78

0 
 

   
   

   
30

6,
70

0 
 

   
   

   
31

9,
75

1 
 

   
   

   
33

3,
57

9 
 

   
   

   
34

8,
24

4 
 

   
   

   
36

3,
81

6 
 

   
   

   
   

38
0,

36
7 

 
   

   
   

39
7,

97
9 

 
   

   
   

41
6,

73
9 

 
   

   
   

43
6,

74
3 

 
   

   
   

45
8,

09
9 

 

Pu
bl

ic
 U

til
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

 
   

   
   

61
5,

00
0 

 
   

   
   

61
0,

00
0 

 
   

   
   

65
2,

80
0 

 
   

   
   

69
9,

33
4 

 
   

   
   

74
9,

95
9 

 
   

   
   

80
5,

06
7 

 
   

   
   

   
86

5,
09

0 
 

   
   

   
93

0,
50

0 
 

   
  

1,
00

1,
81

8 
 

   
  

1,
07

9,
61

6 
 

   
  

1,
16

4,
52

3 
 

Bo
nd

 E
xp

en
se

 
   

   
   

   
27

,0
25

  
   

   
   

   
29

,0
00

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
un

us
ed

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ca
pi

ta
l O

ut
la

y 
   

   
   

   
77

,0
00

  
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

  
   

   
   

   
45

,4
50

  
   

   
   

   
46

,8
14

  
   

   
   

   
48

,2
18

  
   

   
   

   
49

,6
64

  
   

   
   

   
   

51
,1

54
  

   
   

   
   

52
,6

89
  

   
   

   
   

54
,2

70
  

   
   

   
   

55
,8

98
  

   
   

   
   

57
,5

75
  

In
te

rf
un

d 
Ch

ar
ge

s 
   

   
   

47
6,

25
0 

 
   

   
   

48
9,

00
0 

 
   

   
   

51
6,

57
5 

 
   

   
   

53
9,

54
0 

 
   

   
   

56
3,

56
8 

 
   

   
   

58
8,

70
8 

 
   

   
   

   
63

6,
62

8 
 

   
   

   
66

5,
23

6 
 

   
   

   
69

5,
17

9 
 

   
   

   
71

6,
03

4 
 

   
   

   
73

7,
51

5 
 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
 T

o 
Se

w
er

 C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

26
5,

87
5 

 
   

   
   

60
3,

97
5 

 
   

   
   

51
6,

98
8 

 
   

   
   

47
9,

99
2 

 
   

   
   

49
2,

49
7 

 
   

   
   

   
31

1,
95

1 
 

   
   

   
   

24
,9

81
  

   
   

   
10

7,
57

0 
 

   
   

   
   

97
,7

08
  

   
   

   
   

81
,9

85
  

   
 T

o 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Fu
nd

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

 
30

1,
31

8 
30

1,
31

8 
34

4,
94

5 
49

7,
73

7 
60

6,
90

1 
66

1,
48

3 
1,

10
9,

09
4 

1,
50

2,
12

3 
1,

50
2,

12
3 

1,
50

2,
12

3 
1,

50
2,

12
3 

En
di

ng
 F

un
d 

Ba
la

nc
e 

   
   

 
(1

44
,9

80
) 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(0

) 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
Co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
22

5,
94

9 
 

   
   

   
23

3,
20

1 
 

   
   

   
24

0,
72

1 
 

   
   

   
24

8,
52

3 
 

   
   

   
25

6,
61

9 
 

   
   

   
   

26
5,

02
5 

 
   

   
   

27
3,

75
6 

 
   

   
   

28
2,

83
0 

 
   

   
   

29
2,

26
4 

 
   

   
   

30
2,

07
7 

 

   
Re

se
rv

es
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
11

3,
50

0 
 

   
   

   
39

7,
50

0 
 

   
   

   
39

7,
50

0 
 

   
   

   
53

9,
50

0 
 

   
   

  
1,

56
2,

00
0 

 
   

  
1,

56
2,

00
0 

 
   

  
1,

56
2,

00
0 

 
   

  
1,

56
2,

00
0 

 
   

  
1,

56
2,

00
0 

 

To
ta

l U
se

s o
f F

un
ds

 
$2

,9
86

,7
65

  
$3

,5
53

,8
42

  
$4

,1
54

,7
67

  
$4

,6
36

,5
35

  
$4

,8
48

,2
01

  
$5

,2
04

,8
80

  
$6

,6
72

,3
61

  
$6

,9
45

,1
79

  
$7

,2
04

,6
83

  
$7

,3
72

,2
01

  
$7

,5
44

,8
36

  
      

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

116



  
Bu

dg
et

 
  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ite

m
 

FY
 2

01
3-

14
 

FY
 2

01
4-

15
 

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

FY
 2

01
6-

17
 

FY
 2

01
7-

18
 

FY
 2

01
8-

19
 

FY
 2

01
9-

20
 

FY
 2

02
0-

21
 

FY
 2

02
1-

22
 

FY
 2

02
2-

23
 

FY
 2

02
3-

24
 

Se
w

er
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t F
un

d 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

So
ur

ce
s o

f F
un

ds
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e 

$6
,1

55
,3

05
  

$5
,8

13
,9

94
  

$1
,4

19
,2

68
  

$2
,3

30
,2

18
  

$2
,9

73
,1

83
  

$2
,9

33
,9

37
  

$3
,6

80
,6

59
  

$4
,5

54
,8

21
  

$4
,8

67
,5

51
  

$3
,0

47
,4

99
  

$3
,7

23
,2

54
  

St
at

e 
Gr

an
ts

 
  

$0
  

$1
,0

00
,0

00
  

$2
,5

00
,0

00
  

$0
  

$1
,2

50
,0

00
  

$9
,0

00
,0

00
  

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

Se
w

er
 U

til
ity

 S
al

es
 (1

0%
 o

f s
al

es
) 

   
   

   
33

8,
68

9 
 

   
   

   
36

2,
39

7 
 

   
   

   
37

3,
40

5 
 

   
   

   
39

2,
07

5 
 

   
   

   
41

1,
67

9 
 

   
   

   
43

2,
26

3 
 

   
   

   
   

47
5,

48
9 

 
   

   
   

49
9,

26
3 

 
   

   
   

52
4,

22
6 

 
   

   
   

53
9,

95
3 

 
   

   
   

55
6,

15
2 

 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

72
,6

75
  

   
   

   
   

17
,7

41
  

   
   

   
   

29
,1

28
  

   
   

   
   

37
,1

65
  

   
   

   
   

36
,6

74
  

   
   

   
   

   
46

,0
08

  
   

   
   

   
56

,9
35

  
   

   
   

   
60

,8
44

  
   

   
   

   
38

,0
94

  
   

   
   

   
46

,5
41

  

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 fr
om

 L
oa

n 
(P

ro
je

ct
s &

 Is
su

an
ce

) 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

  
1,

13
5,

00
0 

 
   

  
2,

84
0,

00
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
  

1,
42

0,
00

0 
 

   
  

10
,2

25
,0

00
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

Tr
an

sf
er

s F
ro

m
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

   
Se

w
er

 U
til

ity
 F

un
d 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

26
5,

87
5 

 
   

   
   

60
3,

97
5 

 
   

   
   

51
6,

98
8 

 
   

   
   

47
9,

99
2 

 
   

   
   

49
2,

49
7 

 
   

   
   

   
31

1,
95

1 
 

   
   

   
   

24
,9

81
  

   
   

   
10

7,
57

0 
 

   
   

   
   

97
,7

08
  

   
   

   
   

81
,9

85
  

To
ta

l S
ou

rc
es

 o
f F

un
ds

 
$6

,4
93

,9
94

  
$6

,5
14

,9
41

  
$4

,5
49

,3
88

  
$8

,6
08

,4
09

  
$3

,9
02

,0
19

  
$6

,5
65

,3
71

  
$2

3,
73

9,
10

7 
 

$5
,1

36
,0

01
  

$5
,5

60
,1

92
  

$3
,7

23
,2

54
  

$4
,4

07
,9

32
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

U
se

s o
f F

un
ds

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
$6

80
,0

00
  

$5
,0

21
,1

62
  

$2
,1

96
,4

70
  

$5
,5

78
,4

26
  

$9
68

,0
81

  
$2

,8
56

,3
12

  
$1

8,
97

9,
78

5 
 

$2
68

,4
50

  
$2

,5
12

,6
93

  
$0

  
$0

  

De
bt

 Is
su

an
ce

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
22

,7
00

  
   

   
   

   
56

,8
00

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

28
,4

00
  

   
   

   
   

20
4,

50
0 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
En

di
ng

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

e 
$5

,8
13

,9
94

  
$1

,4
93

,7
79

  
$2

,3
30

,2
18

  
$2

,9
73

,1
83

  
$2

,9
33

,9
37

  
$3

,6
80

,6
59

  
$4

,5
54

,8
21

  
$4

,8
67

,5
51

  
$3

,0
47

,4
99

  
$3

,7
23

,2
54

  
$4

,4
07

,9
32

  

To
ta

l U
se

s o
f F

un
ds

 
$6

,4
93

,9
94

  
$6

,5
14

,9
41

  
$4

,5
49

,3
88

  
$8

,6
08

,4
09

  
$3

,9
02

,0
19

  
$6

,5
65

,3
71

  
$2

3,
73

9,
10

7 
 

$5
,1

36
,0

01
  

$5
,5

60
,1

92
  

$3
,7

23
,2

54
  

$4
,4

07
,9

32
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

117



AT
TA

CH
ME

NT
 2 

Ci
ty 

of 
Ko

dia
k 

Se
we

r R
ate

 S
tud

y 
Se

we
r S

ys
tem

 F
ina

nc
ial

 P
lan

 
   

  
  

  
Bu

dg
et

 
Bu

dg
et

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

  
  

  
  

FY
 2

01
3-

14
 

FY
 2

01
4-

15
 

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

FY
 2

01
6-

17
 

FY
 2

01
7-

18
 

FY
 2

01
8-

19
 

FY
 2

01
9-

20
 

FY
 2

02
0-

21
 

FY
 2

02
1-

22
 

FY
 2

02
2-

23
 

FY
 2

02
3-

24
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

Ba
la

nc
e 

(C
om

bi
ne

d)
 

  
$5

,5
93

,3
36

  
$5

,6
69

,0
14

  
$1

,6
45

,2
17

  
$2

,6
76

,9
19

  
$3

,6
11

,4
04

  
$3

,5
79

,9
60

  
$4

,4
76

,7
78

  
$6

,3
81

,8
46

  
$6

,7
03

,3
07

  
$4

,8
92

,3
29

  
$5

,5
77

,5
18

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

G
ro

ss
 S

al
es

 R
ev

en
ue

 (e
xi

st
in

g 
ra

te
s)

 
  

   
  

3,
38

6,
89

0 
 

   
  

3,
38

6,
89

0 
 

   
  

3,
38

6,
89

0 
 

   
  

3,
38

6,
89

0 
 

   
  

3,
38

6,
89

0 
 

   
  

3,
38

6,
89

0 
 

   
   

  
3,

38
6,

89
0 

 
   

  
3,

38
6,

89
0 

 
   

  
3,

38
6,

89
0 

 
   

  
3,

38
6,

89
0 

 
   

  
3,

38
6,

89
0 

 
Ad

di
tio

na
l R

ev
en

ue
 fr

om
 R

at
e 

In
cr

ea
se

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ye
ar

 
Pe

rc
en

t 
%

 o
f I

ni
tia

l 
FY

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

FY
 2

01
4-

15
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
   

   
   

16
9,

34
5 

 
   

   
   

16
9,

34
5 

 
   

   
   

16
9,

34
5 

 
   

   
   

16
9,

34
5 

 
   

   
   

16
9,

34
5 

 
   

   
   

   
16

9,
34

5 
 

   
   

   
16

9,
34

5 
 

   
   

   
16

9,
34

5 
 

   
   

   
16

9,
34

5 
 

   
   

   
16

9,
34

5 
 

FY
 2

01
5-

16
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

   
   

   
17

7,
81

2 
 

   
   

   
17

7,
81

2 
 

   
   

   
17

7,
81

2 
 

   
   

   
17

7,
81

2 
 

   
   

   
   

17
7,

81
2 

 
   

   
   

17
7,

81
2 

 
   

   
   

17
7,

81
2 

 
   

   
   

17
7,

81
2 

 
   

   
   

17
7,

81
2 

 

FY
 2

01
6-

17
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
   

   
   

18
6,

70
2 

 
   

   
   

18
6,

70
2 

 
   

   
   

18
6,

70
2 

 
   

   
   

   
18

6,
70

2 
 

   
   

   
18

6,
70

2 
 

   
   

   
18

6,
70

2 
 

   
   

   
18

6,
70

2 
 

   
   

   
18

6,
70

2 
 

FY
 2

01
7-

18
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

   
   

   
19

6,
03

7 
 

   
   

   
19

6,
03

7 
 

   
   

   
   

19
6,

03
7 

 
   

   
   

19
6,

03
7 

 
   

   
   

19
6,

03
7 

 
   

   
   

19
6,

03
7 

 
   

   
   

19
6,

03
7 

 

FY
 2

01
8-

19
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

   
   

20
5,

83
9 

 
   

   
   

   
20

5,
83

9 
 

   
   

   
20

5,
83

9 
 

   
   

   
20

5,
83

9 
 

   
   

   
20

5,
83

9 
 

   
   

   
20

5,
83

9 
 

FY
 2

01
9-

20
 

10
.0

0%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
   

   
   

43
2,

26
3 

 
   

   
   

43
2,

26
3 

 
   

   
   

43
2,

26
3 

 
   

   
   

43
2,

26
3 

 
   

   
   

43
2,

26
3 

 

FY
 2

02
0-

21
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

   
   

23
7,

74
4 

 
   

   
   

23
7,

74
4 

 
   

   
   

23
7,

74
4 

 
   

   
   

23
7,

74
4 

 

FY
 2

02
1-

22
 

5.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
   

   
24

9,
63

2 
 

   
   

   
24

9,
63

2 
 

   
   

   
24

9,
63

2 
 

FY
 2

02
2-

23
 

3.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

   
   

15
7,

26
8 

 
   

   
   

15
7,

26
8 

 

FY
 2

02
3-

24
 

3.
00

%
 

10
0%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
   

   
16

1,
98

6 
 

Re
ve

nu
e 

fr
om

 R
at

e 
In

cr
ea

se
 

  
$0

  
$1

69
,3

45
  

$3
47

,1
56

  
$5

33
,8

59
  

$7
29

,8
96

  
$9

35
,7

35
  

$1
,3

67
,9

98
  

$1
,6

05
,7

42
  

$1
,8

55
,3

74
  

$2
,0

12
,6

42
  

$2
,1

74
,6

28
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
G

ro
ss

 S
al

es
 R

ev
en

ue
 

  
  

$3
,3

86
,8

90
  

$3
,5

56
,2

35
  

$3
,7

34
,0

46
  

$3
,9

20
,7

49
  

$4
,1

16
,7

86
  

$4
,3

22
,6

25
  

$4
,7

54
,8

88
  

$4
,9

92
,6

32
  

$5
,2

42
,2

64
  

$5
,3

99
,5

32
  

$5
,5

61
,5

18
  

10
%

 S
ew

er
 S

al
es

 (t
o 

Se
w

er
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t F
un

d)
 

$3
38

,6
89

  
$3

55
,6

23
  

$3
73

,4
05

  
$3

92
,0

75
  

$4
11

,6
79

  
$4

32
,2

63
  

$4
75

,4
89

  
$4

99
,2

63
  

$5
24

,2
26

  
$5

39
,9

53
  

$5
56

,1
52

  
N

et
 S

al
es

 R
ev

en
ue

 (U
til

ity
 F

un
d)

 
  

$3
,0

48
,2

01
  

$3
,2

00
,6

11
  

$3
,3

60
,6

42
  

$3
,5

28
,6

74
  

$3
,7

05
,1

07
  

$3
,8

90
,3

63
  

$4
,2

79
,3

99
  

$4
,4

93
,3

69
  

$4
,7

18
,0

37
  

$4
,8

59
,5

79
  

$5
,0

05
,3

66
  

  
  

  
  

-5
.6

%
 

5.
0%

 
5.

0%
 

5.
0%

 
5.

0%
 

5.
0%

 
10

.0
%

 
5.

0%
 

5.
0%

 
3.

0%
 

3.
0%

 

118



O
th

er
 F

ee
s a

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
 

  
  

   
   

   
   

74
,1

00
  

   
   

   
   

74
,8

50
  

   
   

   
   

75
,6

23
  

   
   

   
   

76
,4

18
  

   
   

   
   

77
,2

38
  

   
   

   
   

78
,0

82
  

   
   

   
   

   
78

,9
51

  
   

   
   

   
79

,8
47

  
   

   
   

   
80

,7
69

  
   

   
   

   
81

,7
19

  
   

   
   

   
82

,6
98

  

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  

In
te

re
st

 
  

  
  

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
  

   
   

   
   

72
,6

75
  

   
   

   
   

23
,3

90
  

   
   

   
   

37
,7

95
  

   
   

   
   

53
,1

20
  

   
   

   
   

52
,8

25
  

   
   

   
   

   
65

,9
11

  
   

   
   

10
2,

61
1 

 
   

   
   

10
6,

73
8 

 
   

   
   

   
84

,2
14

  
   

   
   

   
92

,8
97

  
To

ta
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 
  

$3
,4

70
,9

90
  

$3
,7

03
,7

59
  

$3
,8

33
,0

58
  

$4
,0

34
,9

62
  

$4
,2

47
,1

44
  

$4
,4

53
,5

32
  

$4
,8

99
,7

50
  

$5
,1

75
,0

90
  

$5
,4

29
,7

71
  

$5
,5

65
,4

66
  

$5
,7

37
,1

13
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
O

&
M

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

  
  

$2
,4

80
,4

27
  

$2
,4

10
,7

00
  

$2
,4

85
,7

41
  

$2
,5

91
,5

14
  

$2
,7

03
,6

06
  

$2
,8

22
,5

19
  

$2
,9

48
,8

03
  

$3
,0

83
,0

55
  

$3
,2

25
,9

33
  

$3
,3

78
,1

53
  

$3
,5

40
,4

98
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
De

bt
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
Ex

ist
in

g 
  

  
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
$3

01
,3

18
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
$3

01
,3

18
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
$3

01
,3

18
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
$3

01
,3

18
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
$3

01
,3

18
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
   

N
ew

  
  

  
  

$0
  

$0
  

$4
3,

62
7 

 
$1

96
,4

19
  

$3
05

,5
83

  
$3

60
,1

65
  

$8
07

,7
76

  
$1

,2
00

,8
05

  
$1

,2
00

,8
05

  
$1

,2
00

,8
05

  
$1

,2
00

,8
05

  
To

ta
l D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 

  
  

$3
01

,3
18

  
$3

01
,3

18
  

$3
44

,9
45

  
$4

97
,7

37
  

$6
06

,9
01

  
$6

61
,4

83
  

$1
,1

09
,0

94
  

$1
,5

02
,1

23
  

$1
,5

02
,1

23
  

$1
,5

02
,1

23
  

$1
,5

02
,1

23
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
De

bt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ov
er

ag
e 

  
  

3.
29

  
4.

29
  

3.
91

  
2.

90
  

2.
54

  
2.

47
  

1.
76

  
1.

39
  

1.
47

  
1.

46
  

1.
46

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

O
th

er
 S

ou
rc

es
 o

f F
un

ds
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

  T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 F

ro
m

 O
th

er
 F

un
ds

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

   
  D

eb
t P

ro
ce

ed
s 

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
  

1,
24

8,
50

0 
 

   
  

3,
12

4,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

  
1,

56
2,

00
0 

 
   

  
11

,2
47

,5
00

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  

   
  M

isc
el

la
ne

ou
s 

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
  G

ra
nt

s 
  

  
  

$0
  

$0
  

$1
,0

00
,0

00
  

$2
,5

00
,0

00
  

$0
  

$1
,2

50
,0

00
  

$9
,0

00
,0

00
  

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

   
 S

ub
to

ta
l O

th
er

 F
un

ds
 

  
  

$0
  

$0
  

$2
,2

48
,5

00
  

$5
,6

24
,0

00
  

$0
  

$2
,8

12
,0

00
  

$2
0,

24
7,

50
0 

 
$0

  
$0

  
$0

  
$0

  
O

th
er

 U
se

s o
f F

un
ds

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
  

  
   

   
   

68
0,

00
0 

 
   

  
5,

02
1,

16
2 

 
   

  
2,

19
6,

47
0 

 
   

  
5,

57
8,

42
6 

 
   

   
   

96
8,

08
1 

 
   

  
2,

85
6,

31
2 

 
   

  
18

,9
79

,7
85

  
   

   
   

26
8,

45
0 

 
   

  
2,

51
2,

69
3 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  

   
 D

eb
t I

ss
ua

nc
e 

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

22
,7

00
  

   
   

   
   

56
,8

00
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
28

,4
00

  
   

   
   

   
20

4,
50

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
 T

ra
ns

fe
r t

o 
O

th
er

 F
un

ds
 

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
 S

ub
to

ta
l O

th
er

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
  

$6
80

,0
00

  
$5

,0
21

,1
62

  
$2

,2
19

,1
70

  
$5

,6
35

,2
26

  
$9

68
,0

81
  

$2
,8

84
,7

12
  

$1
9,

18
4,

28
5 

 
$2

68
,4

50
  

$2
,5

12
,6

93
  

$0
  

$0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
En

di
ng

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ba

la
nc

e 
  

$5
,6

02
,5

81
  

$1
,6

39
,5

93
  

$2
,6

76
,9

19
  

$3
,6

11
,4

04
  

$3
,5

79
,9

60
  

$4
,4

76
,7

78
  

$6
,3

81
,8

46
  

$6
,7

03
,3

07
  

$4
,8

92
,3

29
  

$5
,5

77
,5

18
  

$6
,2

72
,0

09
  

   
  U

nr
es

er
ve

d 
  

  
$5

,6
02

,5
81

  
$1

,4
13

,6
44

  
$2

,3
30

,2
18

  
$2

,9
73

,1
83

  
$2

,9
33

,9
37

  
$3

,6
80

,6
59

  
$4

,5
54

,8
21

  
$4

,8
67

,5
51

  
$3

,0
47

,4
99

  
$3

,7
23

,2
54

  
$4

,4
07

,9
32

  

   
  R

es
er

ve
d 

(C
on

tin
ge

nc
y)

 
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-  
  

   
   

   
22

5,
94

9 
 

   
   

   
34

6,
70

1 
 

   
   

   
63

8,
22

1 
 

   
   

   
64

6,
02

3 
 

   
   

   
79

6,
11

9 
 

   
   

  
1,

82
7,

02
5 

 
   

  
1,

83
5,

75
6 

 
   

  
1,

84
4,

83
0 

 
   

  
1,

85
4,

26
4 

 
   

  
1,

86
4,

07
7 

 

 

119



120



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 2 of 4 

 

 April 2014, Council adopted Resolution No. 2014–21(SUB) authorizing an additional not to 

exceed $3.5 million from the ADWF loan program. 

 April 2014, Council authorized award of Bid Package A, plus the pumps and motors in the 

amount of $1,190,671 to ASRC SKW Eskimos. 

 April 2014, Council approved Amendment No. 4 to the CH2MHill design contract for 

construction management services in the amount of $194,000. This was only a partial award of 

the full amount of this contract as well. 

 May 2014, Council approved FY2014 Supplemental Budget Amendment No. 2, which approved 

additional loan funds needed to complete funding for the project. 

 

DISCUSSION: The Monashka reservoir and pumphouse are the primary water sources for the City of 

Kodiak. Annually almost all of the community’s water comes from Monashka, roughly 1.89 billion 

gallons of water a year. The Pillar Creek system is rarely used and serves primarily as a backup system 

to Monashka. However Pillar Creek is critical to the City in order to continue to operate under filtration 

avoidance criteria set by federal regulation. 

 

The City completed a feasibility study on the upgrade or replacement of the Monashka pumphouse 

facility in December of 2012. It showed that because of structural issues with the facility it would be 

more cost effective to build a new pumphouse than to rebuild the existing facility. These deficiencies 

required the City to evaluate potential locations for a new pumphouse building. The final feasibility 

work was completed in October 2013. This work determined the location and pumping system for the 

new pumphouse facility. Council approved the Design contract with CH2MHill in October 2013 and the 

project was advertised to bid in March 2014. 

 

The project bids were opened on April 11, 2014, and two bids were received from ASRC SKW Eskimos 

and MKB. Both bids were substantially higher than the engineers estimate. 

 

Staff and CH2MHill discussed options such as negotiating with the bidders or rebidding the project. 

After reviewing the options it was decided not to try to rebid the project because there is no assurance 

that a rebid would result in lower costs.  

 

Once Council approves the FY2014 Supplemental Budget Amendment No. 2, there will be adequate 

project funds to cover construction, construction management and engineering support as well as an 

appropriate contingency. Council approved Resolution No. 2014–10 approving the borrowing of an 

aggregate amount of $2.5 million and Resolution No. 2014–21 (SUB) approved the borrowing of an 

aggregate amount from the ADWF loan of an addition $3.5 million. The FY2015 AMMG will not be 

available until early July 2014 and cannot be budgeted as part of the project until that time.  

 

Bid package A was awarded at the April 24 Council meeting which kept the project on the critical path 

to complete the first water shut down during the limited window of time allowed by the bidding 

121



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 3 of 4 

 

documents plus purchase long lead pumps and motors. Staff now recommends Council authorize the 

award of construction bid package B minus pumps, motors and diesel motor for the emergency pump 

that were included in award of bid package A. 

 

On May 2, 2014 the Loan Amendment for $3.5 million was received by the City. These additional loan 

funds are included in FY2014 Supplemental Amendment No. 2. This increase in the budget allows the 

City to award bid package B minus the additional items that were included with the award of the first 

construction bid award. When the City receives official notice of award for the AMMG in early July, the 

grant funds, which are retroactive 120 days from the beginning of July, will be used. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Staff recommends Council approve the award of bid package B minus the equipment that was 

included in award of bid package A to ASRC SKW to keep the project moving forward. 

2. Do not authorize bid package B at this time which is definitely not recommended since any delay 

significantly affects the schedule of construction later in the construction season. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: With the critical nature of this facility we cannot risk delaying or not 

replacing the pump house at this time. The City cannot support water systems demands without 

Monashka fully operational at all times. 

 

FY 2011 City Funds $225,000  

FY 2012 No Funds Added   

FY 2013 City Funds $425,000  

FY 2013 AMMG  $420,000 Accepted Dec 2012 

FY 2014 State Legislative grant $500,000 Accepted September 

2013 by City Council 

FY 2014 Alaska Drinking Water 

Loan 

$2,500,000 Resolution 2014–10 

authorized the loan in 

Feb. 2014 

FY 2014 AMMG 1,465,534 Accepted by Council in 

March 2014. 

FY 2014 Alaska Drinking Water 

Loan 

$3,500,000 Resolution 2014–21 

(SUB) authorized 

additional loan in April 

2014. 

FY 2015  AMMG  $2,495,452  Expect award in July 

2014. 

 

LEGAL: N/A 

 

122



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 4 of 4 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize the bid award of bid package B 

to ASRC SKW Eskimos for the construction of the new Monashka pumphouse project in the amount of 

$4,465,329 with funds coming from Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 11-05/7029. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The bids we received were higher than anticipated and we had to 

align the bids and bid awards with the availability of the AMMG and loan to adequately fund 

construction. Staff was able to identify ways to acquire the funds and keep this critical project moving 

forward. I support staff’s recommendation and request Council to authorize the bid award of the second 

construction bid package to ASRC SKW Eskimos as described in the memo.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Bid Tab for New Monashka Pumphouse 

Attachment B: State of Alaska Loan Amendment No. 1, ADWF#503161, dated May 2, 2014 

Attachment C: State of Alaska AMMG FY2015 Funding Notice (SB119), dated May 2, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to authorize the bid award of Bid Package B for the construction of the Monashka 

pumphouse to ASRC SKW Eskimos in the amount of $4,465,329 with funds coming from Water 

Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 11-05/7029 and authorize the City Manager to execute 

the documents on behalf of the City. 

  

123



CITY OF KODIAK 

BID TABULATION 
 

Monashka Pump House Facility PN11-05/7029 Page 1 

 

Project Name: Monashka Pump House Facility Project Number: 11-05/7029 

 

Date: April 11, 2014  Addendum No. Date Issued 

Time: 2:00 p.m.  1 3/12/14 

Date of Invitation: March 11, 2014  2 3/19/14 

Opened By: Aimée Kniaziowski  3 3/31/14 

   4 4/4/14 

 

BIDDER  BASE BID ADDITIVE ALTERNATES 

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE $ 4,330,000.00 1. $  

    2. $  

   3. $  

   4. $  

      

MKB Constructors $ 5,995,000.00 1. $  

 Addendums Acknowledged  Pkg A - $1,000,000.00 

Pkg B - $4,915,000.00 

2. $  

 Bid Bond & Business License  3. $  

 Contractors Certificate   4. $  

       

ASRC SKW Eskimos, Inc. $ 5,656,000.00 1. $  

 Addendums Acknowledged  Pkg A - $   500,000.00 

Pkg B - $5,076,000.00 

2. $  

 Bid Bond & Business License  3. $  

 Contractors Certificate   4. $  

       

 $  1. $  

 Addendums Acknowledged   2. $  

 Bid Bond & Business License  3. $  

 Contractors Certificate   4. $  

       

 $  1. $  

 Addendums Acknowledged   2. $  

 Bid Bond & Business License  3. $  

 Contractors Certificate   4. $  

       

 $  1. $  

 Addendums Acknowledged   2. $  

 Bid Bond & Business License  3. $  

 Contractors Certificate   4. $  

       
 

124

pubdir
Typewritten Text
Attachment A:  New Monashka Pump House Bid Tab



125

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



126



127



128



129



130

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



131



132



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

underground drainage, catch basins, remove and reset fencing.  Retaining walls will be removed and 

replaced as needed to accommodate wider sidewalks and utility connections outside the right-of-way. 

 

The City received two bids on March 24, 2014.  Brechan Enterprise and Central Environmental were the 

bidders.  Brechan was the low bidder at $3,784,295.50. 

Because the AMMG will not be available until July 2014 and before the FY2014 Supplemental No. 2 

was passed, there was a shortfall of funds remaining in the Phase V project budget. In order to get the 

project started staff approached Brechan about awarding the project in two parts. Staff proposed to 

award most of the project except for curb, gutter, sidewalks, paving, topsoil and seeding as well as the 

block retaining walls.  All of these items come much later in the project work, and by breaking the 

award into two separate awards, the project will remain on schedule for construction beginning early 

May.  This arrangement was agreeable with Brechan and was brought to Council at the April 24, 2014 

meeting. 

Council approved awarding a portion of the project bid to Brechan in the amount of $2,994,895.50 at the 

April 24, 2014, regular meeting. The remaining bid amount of $789,400 and an additional contingency 

amounting to roughly 10 percent of construction for a total of $1,154,000 are included in the FY2014 

Supplemental Appropriation No. 2 to allow awarding the remaining work via a change order to their 

original contract. 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Authorize Change Order No. 1 to Brechan for $789,400.  This approval will award the full 

project bid amount of $3,784,295.50.  Staff believes this alternative best utilizes project funding 

and maximize the amount of construction that can be accomplished this season.  This is the 

recommended option. 

2. Do not authorize Change Order No. 1 at this time.  This delay would prevent the completion of a 

large amount of the project this construction season.  This alternative is not recommended 

because of the need to utilize as much of this construction season as possible. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  The completion of the Aleutian Homes Water & Sewer project, 

Phase V, Segment B including Construction Engineering Services and a 10 percent contingency totals 

$4,517,000.  The current project budget including the funds requested in FY2014 Supplemental 

Appropriation No. 2 will be $7,046,000.  This project budget includes funds expended on Phase V, 

Segment A.  Staff is recommending Council approve Change Order No. 1 of the Aleutian Homes Phase 

V, Segment B in the amount of $789,400.  FY2014 Supplemental Appropriations No. 2 reflects a 

requested amendment for an additional $1,154,000 from the Water Fund fund balance to complete the 

construction award of $789,400 and provide a 10 percent contingency. Once the AMMG is available 

this July the FY2014 amended appropriations of $1,154,000 will be replaced by grant funds. 

133



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. d. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

Upon completion, the project will reduce utility and road maintenance costs, reduce the risk to public 

health by correcting noncompliant sewer and water separation distances, and better the water service 

through the increase in the size of the water main.   

LEGAL: N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize Change Order No. 1 for 

Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement Phase V Segment B to Brechan Enterprises Inc. in the 

amount of $789,400, with funds coming from the Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 10-

03/7026. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  This project is important to move forward.  Once Council 

appropriates the full amount appropriated by passing Supplemental No. 2, I support staff’s 

recommendation to authorize the change order that will allow Brechan full funding to complete the 

project.  I recommend Council authorize the change order as outlined in the memo.  

 

   

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A:  Bid Tab 

Attachment B:  Change Order No. 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:   

Move to authorize Change Order No. 1 for the Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Replacement 

Phase V Segment B, to Brechan Enterprises Inc. in the amount of $789,400, with funds coming 

from the Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No.10-03/7026, and authorize the City 

Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City.  

 

134



135

pubdir
Typewritten Text
Attachment A:  Bid Tab

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



136

pubdir
Polygon

pubdir
Polygon

pubdir
Polygon



137



138

pubdir
Polygon

pubdir
Polygon

pubdir
Typewritten Text
$789,400 in deductions



CITY OF KODIAK 

CHANGE ORDER 

Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Phase V-Segment B PN 10-03/7026  Page 1 of 2 

 CHANGE ORDER NO.:  1 

 DATE:  May 22, 2014 

NAME OF PROJECT: Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Phase V-Segment B  

PROJECT NO.: 10-03/7026  

CONTRACTOR: Brechan Enterprises Inc.  

The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

1. Add remaining work in original bid as follows: 

Item 

No. 
Description of Items Unit Qty 

Unit Bid 

Price 
Bid Amount 

302(1) Curb and Gutter (Various Types) LF 2,920  $ 50.00   $ 146,000.00  

304(2) Concrete Stairs LS 1  $ 15,000.00   $ 15,000.00  

305(1) PCC Curb Ramp SY 40  $ 350.00   $ 14,000.00  

402(1) 
Asphalt Concrete Pavement, Type 

IIB 
TN 1,140  $ 300.00   $ 342,000.00  

402(4) 
Asphalt Concrete Sidewalk, Type 

IIIB 
LF 2,900  $ 60.00   $ 174,000.00  

810(1) Seeding 1,000 SF 10  $ 300.00   $ 3,000.00  

811(1) Topsoil 1,000 SF 10  $ 2,000.00   $ 20,000.00  

819(1) Modular Block Retaining Wall SF 1,160  $ 65.00   $ 75,400.00  

 

139

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



CITY OF KODIAK 

CHANGE ORDER 

Aleutian Homes Water and Sewer Phase V-Segment B PN 10-03/7026  Page 2 of 2 

Justification:  Fulfill the project bid amount of $3,784,295.50.  This best utilizes project funding 

and maximize the amount of construction that can be accomplished this season. 

Original CONTRACT PRICE:  $2,994,895.50 

The CONTRACT PRICE from prior CHANGE ORDERS:  $0.00 

The CONTRACT PRICE due to this CHANGE ORDER will increase:  $789,400.00 

The new CONTRACT PRICE including this CHANGE ORDER:  $3,784,295.50 

 

Requested by City Engineer  

Approved by Department 

Head 

 

Ordered by City Manager  

Accepted by Contractor  

 

140



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

141



142



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 2 of 5 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  Because this project is dealing with the heart of the community’s entire drinking water 

system, several steps in the process are critical to avoid water shortages or outages that would affect the 

City’s ability to provide water.  Now that the project is being awarded for construction one of the more 

difficult phases of this project is beginning.  Construction of this facility requires the contractor to keep 

the existing pumphouse operational for most of the project duration. The new pumphouse will be 

constructed very close to the existing building that will remain in operation. This will present a 

challenge to the contractor and will require full support by the on-site construction manager. 

ADEC regulations require that all water or sewer construction projects be monitored by a licensed 

engineer.  The engineer is responsible for certifying that the project was constructed per the ADEC 

approved plans.  Any deviations from the plans must be approved by a licensed engineer certifying that 

it meets water regulation construction standards.  The project will also require extensive ongoing 

coordination with Alaska Dept. of Environment Conservation (ADEC) in order to be issued a Certificate 

to Operate at the completion of the job.   

 

Without the assistance of a highly skilled engineering team, the likelihood of this project meeting all the 

regulatory requirements, being issued a Certificate to Operate at completion, and meeting all of the 

requirements of both the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and ADEC funding, is highly 

unlikely.  Because of the technical nature of this project from the very beginning, staff recognized this 

project must have an experienced management and engineering team to be completed successfully. 

 

Complexity of the Project 

The existing plan set for this project is made up of one set of approved-to-construct stamped drawings 

containing 68 pages and two volumes of contract documents containing specifications and requirements.  

The majority of this work is complex and coordination and timing is critical throughout the entire 

project. 

 

The project requires several connections be made to the existing underground piping that delivers 

untreated water to the City system.  The timing of these connections is extremely critical in that the first 

one will require the City to shut off the water supply from Monashka for 4 to 6 days. During this time 

the community will rely on the Pillar Reservoir. The construction contract restricts the contractor to a 

critical 6-day (total) window to make the connections.  In order for this kind of work to occur, detailed 

plans and construction schedules are necessary and good management of the project is critical to the 

project. 

 

Technical Needs of the City 

The following items are a brief outline of the technical steps that this project needs while at the same 

time, continuing to operate the existing water pump house and maintain full compliance of water system 

regulations. 

143



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 3 of 5 

 

1) Assistance in preparation of all contract documents 

2) Pre-Construction Meeting 

3) Respond to contractors Request For Information (RFI) 

4) Engineer review of all submittals 

5) Prepare change orders and make recommendations on change orders 

6) Technical assistance on specialty items such as Variable Frequency Drives (VFD’s) equipment 

and SCADA control/operation system 

7) Review pay request and recommend acceptance or modifications 

8) Assistance with grant and loan funding requirements 

9) Assistance with ADEC and EPA response for information on grant and loan reimbursement 

request 

10) Programming of Control System and SCADA development 

11) Software submittal and review of Electronic Operating System for pumps and water monitoring 

equipment, system testing, system start up, and Operator Control Manual 

12) Facility start-up, on-site experts for start-up of pump system, *system training for operators 

13) Conduct special inspections, periodic on-site project oversight, and final inspection 

14) Prepare and support City’s application for Certificate to Operate from ADEC with assistance for 

full water treatment credit 

15) Prepare and sign record drawings, submit to ADEC and provide City originals for project records 

16) Prepare Operators Manuals for the entire Treatment Facility 

17) Provide engineering and technical assistance during the warranty period 

18) Project management; will coordinate and oversee the entire construction project 

19) Provide assistance when needed, as well as provide Council project updates, if requested 

20) Assist with project close out; this will bring all documentation together for filing and completion 

of paper work. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Authorize Amendment No. 5 to the existing professional services contract with CH2MHill for 

Construction Management of Bid Package B in the amount of $834,000.  Staff believes this 

alternative will best protect the City’s investment in this project and is recommended. 

2. Do not authorize the contract amendment to award Construction Management to CH2MHill for 

this project.  This alternative is not recommended because of the risk that materials and 

workmanship would not meet the City’s requirements for quality construction and low long term 

maintenance costs.  Furthermore, without professional oversight, ADEC will not grant a 

certificate to operate the new pumphouse. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Staff has been actively working on funding for the replacement of 

the Monashka pumphouse since the feasibility study was undertaken in 2010.  The following table is a 

breakdown of funds expended, in place, approved, or pending. 

FY 2011 City Funds $225,000  

144



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 4 of 5 

 

FY 2012 No Funds Added   

FY 2013 City Funds $425,000  

FY 2013 AMMG  $420,000 Accepted Dec 2012 

FY 2014 State Legislative grant $500,000 Accepted September 

2013 by City Council 

FY 2014 AMMG 1,465,534 Accepted by Council in 

March 2014.  This was 

the last remaining 

transfer from the UV 

project. 

FY 2014 Alaska Drinking Water 

Loan 

$2,500,000 Resolution No. 2014–10 

authorized the loan in 

Feb. 2014. Based on 

project estimates and 

other funding initially  

applied for $2.5 million 

FY 2014 Alaska Drinking Water 

Loan 

$3,500,000 Resolution No. 2014–21 

(SUB) authorized 

additional loan amount 

of $3.5 m for total not 

to exceed $6m in April 

2014 due to high cost of 

project.   

FY 2015  AMMG Questionnaire $2,495,452 *  Expect award in July 

2014. 

* This project is going to receive an FY 2015 AMMG in the amount of $2,495,452 in July of this year.   

LEGAL: N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council authorize Amendment No. 5 to the 

professional service contract with CH2MHill for construction management services during construction 

of package B of the Monashka Pumphouse Project in the amount of $834,000 with funds coming from 

Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No.11-05/7029. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  This project demands a great deal of attention to complete the 

work while providing an adequate water supply to the community during construction.  CH2MHill will 

provide the City with important construction management services through this construction phase.  

Their services will help mitigate risk and meet regulatory requirements.  Therefore I support staff’s 

recommendation that Council authorize Amendment No. 5 to the CH2MHill contract to provide 

construction management services for this phase of construction as outlined above. 

145



 

MAY 22, 2014 

Agenda Item V. e. Memo Page 5 of 5 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: CH2MHill cover letter, dated April 14, 2014 

Attachment B: CH2MHill Proposed Phased Scope of Work for the Monashka Pumphouse 

              Project 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:   

Move to authorize Amendment No. 5 to the professional services contract with CH2MHill for 

construction management services for the new Monashka pumphouse in the amount of $834,000, 

with funds coming from Water Capital Improvement Fund, Project No. 11-05/7029, and 

authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City. 

146



147

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



ATTACHMENT A 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 1 OF 11 

Scope of Work 
For 

City of Kodiak Monashka Pump House Construction Phase Engineering 
Services by CH2M HILL   

Introduction 
CH2M HILL, the project designer, will provide construction phase services for the City of 
Kodiak’s (City’s) new Monashka pump house construction project.  CH2M HILL will provide 
the part-time Resident Project Representative, as defined in the Bidding Requirements and 
Contract Document, issued March, 2014, and the project’s non-resident construction phase 
services and as requested by the City. 

The task descriptions and budgets shown in this scope of work identify the expected focus and 
level of effort.  However, for Tasks to be reimbursed on a time and expenses basis, both 
CH2M HILL and City acknowledge that the task budgets cannot be accurately predicted at this 
time. They are dependent on the construction progress activities, total project duration, 
Construction Contractor experience with this type of facility, the Construction Contractor’s 
subcontractors and his various requests for information and clarifications, change orders, 
number of submittal and resubmittals, construction difficulties, and amount of rejected and 
defective Work.   

Proposed task budgets are estimates based on predicted levels of effort.  Tasks 1 to 10 with 
specific scopes of work will be reimbursed on a Lump Sum (LS) basis.  LS tasks total $61,000 for 
the initial scope of services.  An additional $178,000 for lump sum tasks will be added to CH2M 
HILL’s contract on or before the Construction Agreement Change Order for Bid Package B is 
awarded to the Construction Contractor.  Task budgets are provided on pages 9 and 10 of this 
Scope of Work. 

Tasks 11 to 21 with less definitive scopes of work will be reimbursed on a Time and Expense 
(T&E) basis.  T&E task budgets may be exceeded for some tasks while other tasks may be under 
spent, provided the total budget is not exceeded. T&E tasks total $133,000 for the initial scope of 
services.  An additional $656,000 in T&E tasks will be added to CH2M HILL’s contract on or 
before the Construction Agreement Change Order for Bid Package B is awarded to the 
Construction Contactor.  Task budgets are provided on pages 9 and 10 of this Scope of Work. 

The total budget for the proposed Scope of Work is $194,000 for the initial professional engineer 
services contract.  It is anticipated a contract amendment will be provided to CH2M HILL in the 
amount of $834,000 on or before the Construction Agreement Change Order for Bid Phase B 
services is awarded to the Construction Contractor.  With the amendment, CH2M HILL’s 
contract amount will total $1,028,000. 

If additional services are required by City, or if construction duration is extended beyond the 
expected eleven (11) month Construction Contract duration, CH2M HILL’s construction phase 
budget may be modified by contract amendment before CH2M HILL will be expected to 
perform additional or extended services. 

148

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 2 OF 11 

Assumptions 
This scope of work is based on a set of assumptions used to define the work and is the basis for 
CH2M HILL’s construction phase service budget.  Major assumptions are listed below; 
additional assumptions are noted in individual activity descriptions.  City will provide 
manpower for some activities necessary to achieve the Project’s construction phase objectives.  
These activities and services are identified in section titled City Furnished Services below. 

1. CH2M HILL’s role will be to serve as a technical resource to provide assistance as scoped 
and budgeted herein and requested by City. 

2. The budget for this Work is based, in part, on an eleven (11) month construction duration 
from the pre-construction conference and issuance of Construction Contractor Notice-To-
Proceed to final Contractor payment and our completion of Record Drawings.  

3. The presence or duties of CH2M HILL's personnel at a construction site, whether as onsite 
representatives or otherwise, do not make CH2M HILL or CH2M HILL's personnel in any 
way responsible for those duties that belong to the City and/or the construction contractors 
or other entities, and do not relieve the construction contractors or any other entity of their 
obligations, duties, and responsibilities, including, but not limited to, all construction 
methods, means, techniques, sequences, and procedures necessary for coordinating and 
completing all portions of the construction work in accordance with the construction 
Contract Documents and any health or safety precautions required by such construction 
work.  CH2M HILL and CH2M HILL’s personnel have no authority to exercise any control 
over any construction contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their 
work or any health or safety precautions and have no duty for inspecting, noting, observing, 
correcting, or reporting on health or safety deficiencies of the construction contractor(s) or 
other entity or any other persons at the site except CH2M HILL's own personnel.  The 
presence of CH2M HILL's personnel at a construction site is for the purpose of providing to 
the City a greater degree of confidence that the completed construction work will conform 
generally to the construction documents and that the integrity of the design concept as 
reflected in the construction documents has been implemented and preserved by the 
construction contractor(s). CH2M HILL neither guarantees the performance of the 
construction contractor(s) nor assumes responsibility for construction contractor's failure to 
perform work in accordance with the construction documents. 

City Furnished Services 
The following services and activities will be provided or performed by City. 

1. City will manage all aspects of Contract award, grant and loan applications, processing, and 
administration, and coordination with all governing bodies for the construction project.  
City shall manage, coordinate, and undertake all aspects of Owner defined activities as 
presented in Division 1 and elsewhere in the Bidding Requirements and Contract 
Documents for the construction project, except as indicated otherwise elsewhere in this 
scope of work, within the limitations of the budget.  City will be responsible for final 
approval of all change orders, claims, dispute resolution, pay requests and similar items 
based on input from CH2M HILL.  (CH2M HILL has no scope of work under Bidding 
Requirements and Contract Documents Article 15 and 16 items related to Construction 
Contractor Suspension of Work and Termination and Dispute Resolution.) 

149



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 3 OF 11 

2. City will pay any and all permit, printing, inspection, testing, and other construction related 
fees, fines, or assessments. 

Task 1. Project Startup – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will prepare a Work Plan for use by CH2M HILL’s construction services team that 
will address:  Project definition, project resources, project procedures, project controls, project 
progress measures, schedules, billing, records management, closeout procedures, activity 
budgets, quality management, and City information and involvement.  The Work Plan, which 
will be distributed internally, will also provide procedures for dealing with changes that may 
arise during the course of executing this Work.  Additionally, a meeting will be held with key 
internal project staff to describe the project, establish objectives, and initiate project activities. 

Task 2. Prepare Conformed Contract Documents – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will modify the bid phase documents based on addenda issued during the 
project’s bidding phase.  The result will be a conformed set of contract documents for use by the 
Owner, Construction Contractor, and Engineer during the project. 

Task 3.  Facilitate Preconstruction Meeting – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will attend the Preconstruction Meeting at City’s office.  City shall schedule the 
meeting.  CH2M HILL will facilitate the meeting and distribute meeting minutes after the 
meeting.  CH2M HILL’s Project Manager, Design Manager, and Resident Project 
Representative, will attend the meeting.  The purpose of the meeting is to establish and discuss 
administrative procedures related to the construction contract, the Contractor’s project 
schedule, and related procedures. 

Task 4. Control System Programming and SCADA Development – LS Task 
2.1 Perform Control System Programming 
 CH2M HILL will program the PLC systems associated with this work. CH2M HILL will 

also configure the operator interface and the SCADA computer system to be located at the 
pump house. The control system will be programmed to provide the control system 
functionality illustrated on the design drawings and described in the Specifications.  

 During the software development process, CH2M HILL will provide City with review 
submittals of PLC program and operator interface graphic displays at the 50 and 90 percent 
completion stages.  

2.2 System Testing 
 A control system software test will be conducted at the office of CH2M HILL to certify 

proper operation of the control system programming prior to field installation and startup. 
The PLC, operator interface and SCADA computer will be staged in the CH2M HILL 
programming lab during the testing. City staff is encouraged to attend and witness this 
testing.  

2.3 System Startup 
 CH2M HILL will provide field testing, startup and training services for the PLC and 

operator interface units after installation. All process control functions will be tested and 
demonstrated to City for certification of proper operation. The testing will be documented 
on testing forms that will be signed by CH2M HILL and City staff. 

150



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 4 OF 11 

2.4 Documentation 
 An Operator control manual will be prepared to document the programs and functions of 

the new pumping facility. The manual will include the following information: 

 All programs in hardcopy and electronic format (All programs will be fully annotated 
with descriptive comments as allowed by the programming software) 

 Written narratives of control system functionality 
 Operator interface screen printouts with description of control functions available per 

screen 
 Completed and signed off control system testing forms 

Task 5. Assist City of Kodiak with Facility Startup Services – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will assist City during startup of the pumping facility.  The budget for this 
assistance is based on the involvement of three (3)) CH2M HILL staff for two (2) pre-startup 
meetings and two (2) continuous, 12-hour days of performance testing (exclusive of travel time).  
These staff will include CH2M HILL’s Instrumentation and Control Engineer, and process 
engineer, and project representative. 

Task 6. Prepare Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) 
Submittals for Approval – LS Task 

This task is to provide support to City in submitting and receiving the Temporary Certificate to 
Operate and the Final Certificate to Operate from ADEC.  Support from CH2M HILL may 
include preparation of the applications and additional supporting material and response to 
questions and comments from ADEC.   

Task 7. Prepare Record Drawings – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will modify construction drawings based on the marked-up drawing set by the 
Construction Contractor to prepare the project Record Drawings. Construction drawings are to 
be regularly updated by the Construction Contractor and reviewed monthly by CH2M HILL’s 
Project Representative, however, since Record Drawings are prepared, in part, on the basis of 
information provided by others, they may  not always represent the exact location, type of 
various components, or exact manner in which the project is finally constructed.  CH2M HILL 
is not responsible for any errors or omissions in the information from others that is 
incorporated into the Record Drawings.  

CH2M HILL will furnish two (2) draft hardcopy sets of the Record Drawings to City for 
review.  CH2M HILL will further modify the Record Drawings, if necessary, based on City’s 
review. 

CH2M HILL will furnish electronic files of final Record Drawings, a single, full-size (22” x 34”) 
paper hardcopy to city, and two (2) half-size (11” x 17”) paper hardcopies.  Electronic files 
furnished by CH2M HILL are for City’s convenience only.  Drawing files are in Microstation.  
Drawings can be converted to AutoCAD, but cannot be guaranteed to have correct level 
assignments, etc. 

CH2M HILL will submit Record Drawings to ADEC for review and approval. 

151



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 5 OF 11 

Task 8. Prepare Operators’ Manual – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will prepare an Operators’ Manual for the complete facility.  The equipment 
O&M Manuals will be compiled by the Construction Contractor.  The plant Operators’ Manual 
will address the SCADA system controls, computer screens, facility operating philosophies, 
and coordination between the various facility systems.  The manual will be available 
electronically and in hard copy.  The electronic format can be used in the future in an on-line 
Manual if desired.   

Task 9. Project Management – LS Task 
CH2M HILL will coordinate the activities of the project team and oversee activities and 
methodologies to maintain consistency and execute the project in accordance with the internal 
Work Plan. 

CH2M HILL will include updates on deliverables, budget, and schedule as part of the monthly 
status reports that accompany each monthly invoice.   

CH2M HILL will attend up to four (4) supplemental meetings held in City’s office.  The Project 
Manager and PR will attend meetings to discuss project status, project issues, facilitate 
decisions, obtain information, or address other project-related needs. 

Task 10. Project Closeout – LS Task 
This budget will be retained for project closeout and final archiving and documentation of the 
project.  Project records will be hard-backed and stored for future retrieval if needed. 

Task 11.  Provide Part-Time Resident Project Representative – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will provide the part-time Resident Project Representative (RPR).  The RPR will 
assist Engineer and City to provide a more extensive observation of the Work.  The RPR will 
have the following responsibilities: 

 Review and monitor Progress Schedule, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values 
by Contractor; 

 Conduct or attend  construction meetings; 

 Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor; 

 Receive any field submittals; 

 Review the Work, reject defective Work, inspect and arrange testing to determine if 
Work is in accordance with Contract Documents; 

 Interpret Contract Documents when clarification and interpretations are needed; 

 Consider and evaluate Contractor suggestions for modifications to Drawings or 
Specifications and provide recommendations to Engineer; 

 Maintain project records; 

 Furnish necessary reports to Engineer on progress of the Work and of the Contractor’s 
compliance with the Progress Schedule and other relevant documents; 

 Review Contractor’s partial payment requests and forward payment recommendation to 
Engineer; 

152



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 6 OF 11 

 Confirm that Contractor provides the required certificates, O&M manuals, Record 
Drawings, and site records; 

 Conduct inspections necessary to establish list of items required prior to Substantial 
Completion; 

 Conduct final inspections to determine any incomplete or defective Work and make 
recommendation to Engineer. 

The RPR will travel from Anchorage to Kodiak an average of once per week for an average two 
day visit to facilitate executing the duties listed above. Forty (40) trips are budgeted.  Trips to 
Kodiak will occur only during times of significant construction activity at the project site. 

Task 12. Review Contractor Submittals – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will have the primary review responsibility for Construction Contractor submitted 
administrative and technical shop drawings.  CH2M HILL will review technical shop drawings 
on behalf of City, and provide recommendation on other shop drawings to City for response.   

The Construction Contractor shall furnish CH2M HILL with five copies of action submittals and 
two copies of informational submittals.  When review is complete, CH2M HILL will keep one 
(1) copy and return two (2) to City and two (2) to the Construction Contractor with comments.  
Alternatively, the Contractor may choose to electronically submit some or all of shop drawings 
directly to CH2M HILL.  Drawings submitted electronically to CH2M HILL will be printed for 
review.  A memo summarizing comments will be transmitted electronically back to City and the 
Construction Contractor.  Both City and the Construction Contractor will be responsible for 
printing the appropriate number of copies for their records.   

This task includes budget for a document sharing program to be used for electronically 
transmitting and tracking shop drawings.   

The budget for this task is an allowance based on administration and review (and re-review as 
necessary) of the expected shop drawings.   

Task 13. Negotiate and Prepare Change Orders – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will negotiate and prepare, if necessary and if requested by City, the technical 
content of any necessary change orders.  CH2M HILL’s preparation of change orders will 
include time necessary to evaluate and develop whatever alternative solutions or alternatives 
that may be appropriate for consideration by City.  The technical content will be transmitted 
electronically to City for City staff to format the content as desired.  In the case of change orders 
that require drawings, pdf (electronic) copies of drawings will be transmitted to City.  The 
budget for preparation of change orders is an allowance to be expended as necessary and as 
directed.  If additional assistance, beyond the limited permitted by the allowance, is required by 
City, the scope and budget of this contract will be amended. 

Task 14. Attend Progress Meetings – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will facilitate on-site construction progress meetings and distribute meeting notes. 
The total number of progress meetings assumed is twenty (24) for the project representative and 
up to six (4) for the Design Manager.  Whenever special progress or other construction meetings 
are needed, CH2M HILL’s RPR will set up and conduct those meetings and the Project Manager 
will attend as needed. 

153



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 7 OF 11 

Task 15. Technical Site Visits – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will visit the construction site and attend meetings, as requested and directed by 
City, to provide miscellaneous technical support and assistance when deemed necessary by the 
Resident Project Representative or the City.  The budget for this task is based on sixteen (16) 
trips from Anchorage to Kodiak and ten (10) trips from Seattle to Kodiak.  If additional trips are 
required, or extended time is needed on site for each trip, additional funds may be required 
before the project can be completed. 

Task 16. Respond to Contractor Requests for Information  – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will respond to requests for information by the Construction Contractor and 
clarify contract requirements, as necessary and as directed by City.  These requests for 
information (RFIs) and contract clarifications (CIs) will be assigned a number and recorded by 
CH2M HILL. CH2M HILL will transmit the RFIs and CIs to City and the Construction 
Contractor for dissemination to applicable parties.  The budget for this task is an allowance of 
CH2M HILL staff time.  

Task 17. Review Contractor Payment Requests – T&E Task 
CH2M HILL will review each partial payment request and provide recommendations directly 
to city regarding Construction Contractor progress payments.  Resident Project Representative 
will meet monthly with Construction Contractor at the site to review.  Work completed and 
materials stored on-site and incorporated into the work will be reviewed prior to each month’s 
partial payment request being submitted to CH2M HILL.  If CH2M HILL has any exceptions to 
the requested amount on any partial payment request, CH2M HILL will process the request at a 
reduced recommended payment amount and an exceptions report will be issued to City. 

Task 18. Conduct Milestone and Final Inspections – T&E Task 
The CH2M HILL Project Manager, RPR, and project engineer(s) will attend inspections for 
Substantial Completion of the pump house and for the Final Inspection.  CH2M HILL will 
prepare the punchlist based on the facility walk-through and assist with Construction 
Contractor coordination to complete the outstanding tasks. CH2M HILL’s Project 
Representative will provide follow up inspections to confirm that the punchlist items have been 
completed.  

Task 19. Provide Warranty Period Assistance – T&E Task 
This task allows CH2M HILL to provide support during the warranty period.  This task may 
be used to answer questions, prepare additional operating guidelines, look at optimization 
alternatives, visit the site to assist in trouble shooting, coordinate activities of the equipment 
vendors and Contractors, or as otherwise requested by City. 

Task 20. Independent Soil, Concrete, and other Testing – T&E Task 
This task allows CH2M HILL to retain the services of a local testing firm for needed 
independent project testing.  The Contractor will be paying for most independent testing as 
part of his lump sum bid amount, but this task will allow for any needed supplemental testing. 

Task 21. Allowance for Undeveloped Scope – T&E Task 
This task will allow CH2M HILL to provide additional or extended City requested services. 

154



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 8 OF 11 

Proposed Project Budget – To Be Awarded in Two Phases 
Due to Construction funding limitations, the City intends to award the Construction Contract in 
two phases, with an initial award by Agreement between the City and Construction Contractor 
and at a later date the remainder of the Work by Change Order as follows: 

1)  Initial Construction Contract Award:  Bid Package A plus certain long-lead equipment items, 
namely the 4 large capacity pumps, and the 3 electrical and one diesel drive sets.  The estimated 
amount of this Agreement will be $1,500,000, or about 27% of the total bid amount. 

2)  By Change Order to the Construction Agreement:  Bid Package B, minus the long-lead 
equipment items included with Bid Package A, in the amount of approximately $4,100,000. 

Therefore, the proposed engineering services project budget is divided into two parts to align 
with the planned phased approach for the Agreement and Change Order to the Contractor.  

It is anticipated that CH2M HILL will be awarded the initial portion of engineering services 
tasks at approximately the same time the Construction Agreement is executed with the 
Contractor.  It is also anticipated that the remaining portion of engineering services will be 
awarded to CH2M HILL, as a contract amendment, on or before the time the Construction 
Agreement with the Contractor is modified by Change Order for the Bid Package B. 

The task budgets for the described scopes of work are presented in the table below.  For T&E 
tasks CH2M HILL labor will be billed at CH2M HILL standard labor rates in effect for the year 
the work is performed and all expenses will be billed at 1.10 actual cost.  CH2M HILL’s billing 
rates change January 1 each year.   

Budgets for T&E tasks can be adjusted between tasks without specific City approval, provided 
the total T&E budget is not exceeded. 

155



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 9 OF 11 

INITIAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT:  TASKS TO BE 
PROVIDED BY CH2M HILL FOR BID PACKAGE A AND CERTAIN 
LONG-LEAD EQUIPMENT ITEMS 

Task Description  (LS = Lump Sum   T&E = Time and Expense) Budget 

1 Project Startup – LS Amount $17,000  

2 Prepare Conformed Contract Documents – LS Task $ 5,000  

3 Facilitate Preconstruction Meeting – LS Task $19,000 

4 Control System Programming and SCADA Development – LS Task $0  

5 Assist with Facility Startup Services – LS Task $0 

6 Prepare ADEC Submittals for Approval – LS Task $0 

7 Prepare Record Drawings – LS Task $0  

8 Prepare Operators’ Manual – LS Task $0  

9 Project Management/Accounting/Contracts – LS Task $20,000  

10 Project Closeout – LS Task $0 

 LUMP SUM SUBTOTAL TASKS 1 - 10 $61,000 

11 Part Time Resident Project Representative – T&E Task $60,000  

12 Review Contractor Submittals – T&E Task $20,000  

13 Negotiate and Prepare Change Orders – T&E Task $5,000  

14 Attend Progress Meetings – T&E Task $3,000  

15 Technical Site Visits – T&E Task $9,000  

16 Respond to RFI’s – T&E Task $8,000  

17 Review Pay Requests – T&E Task $4,000  

18 Milestone and Final Inspections – T&E Task $0  

19 Warranty and Post Construction Services – T&E Task $0  

20 Independent Testing – T&E Task $4,000  

21 Allowance for Undeveloped Scope $20,000 

                     TIME AND EXPENSE SUBTOTAL TASKS 11 – 21 $133,000 

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $194,000 

 

156



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 10 OF 11 

FUTURE CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR ENGINEERING 
SERVICES:  TASKS TO BE PROVIDED BY CH2M HILL FOR BID 
PACKAGE B 
Task Description  (LS = Lump Sum   T&E = Time and Expense) Budget 

1 Project Startup – LS Amount $0  

2 Prepare Conformed Contract Documents – LS Task $0  

3 Facilitate Preconstruction Meeting – LS Task $0 

4 Control System Programming and SCADA Development – LS Task $30,000  

5 Assist with Facility Startup Services – LS Task $36,000  

6 Prepare ADEC Submittals for Approval – LS Task $6,000  

7 Prepare Record Drawings – LS Task $17,000  

8 Prepare Operators’ Manual – LS Task $24,000  

9 Project Management/Accounting/Contracts – LS Task $57,000  

10 Project Closeout – LS Task $8,000  

 LUMP SUM SUBTOTAL TASKS 1 - 10 $178,000 

11 Part Time Resident Project Representative – T&E Task $254,000  

12 Review Contractor Submittals – T&E Task $74,000  

13 Negotiate and Prepare Change Orders – T&E Task $20,000  

14 Attend Progress Meetings – T&E Task $10,000  

15 Technical Site Visits – T&E Task $82,000  

16 Respond to RFI’s – T&E Task $80,000  

17 Review Pay Requests – T&E Task $20,000  

18 Milestone and Final Inspections – T&E Task $45,000  

19 Warranty and Post Construction Services – T&E Task $25,000  

20 Independent Testing – T&E Task $16,000  

21 Allowance for Undeveloped Scope $30,000 

                     TIME AND EXPENSE SUBTOTAL TASKS 11 – 21 $656,000 

TOTAL CONTRACT AMENDMENT AMOUNT $834,000 

TOTAL INITIAL CONTRACT AMOUNT PLUS 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT AMOUNT 

$1,028,000 

 

157



CITY OF KODIAK MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE CH2M HILL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

MONASHKA PUMP HOUSE SDC PROPOSAL APRIL 2014 11 OF 11 

 

Proposed Project Team 
CH2M HILL’s team is proposed to consist of the following key staff: 

Floyd Damron – Project Manager 

Bud Alto – Design Manager 

Bud Alto/Darin Marin  -   Part-Time Resident Project Representative 

Darin Edwards – Process Mechanical Engineer 

Steve Bakken – Control Programming/SCADA/Operator’s Manual 

Design Discipline Leads for construction phase support for submittals, RFIs, and technical site 
visits 

Susan Kennedy – Project Assistant 

Lora Brown – Project Accountant 

158


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of the April 21, 2014, Special and April 24, 2014, Regular Council Meeting	
	PERSONS TO BE HEARD
	a.	Proclamation: Declaring Emergency Medical Services Week
	Attachment A

	b.	Proclamation: Declaring Older Americans Month
	Attachment A

	c.	Public Hearing on Resolution No. 2014–22, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Sewer), of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs
	Attachment A


	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	a.	Authorization of Purchase of Replacement Chlorine Storage Tanks Tank Liner, Project No. 7030/11-08
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	b.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1316, Authorizing a Lease to Afognak Native Corporation of a 17,727 Square Foot (0.407 Acre) Portion of USS 4947 Located Adjacent to Tract D-1B
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D

	c.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1318, Establishing Supplemental Appropriation No. 2 to the Budget for the Fiscal Year Commencing on the First Day of July 2013 and Ending on the Thirtieth Day of June 2014
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C


	NEW BUSINESS
	a.	First Reading, Ordinance No. 1319, Levying Taxes and Appropriating Funds for the Expenses and Liabilities of the City of Kodiak for the Fiscal Year Commencing on the First Day of July 2014 and Ending on the Thirtieth Day of June 2015
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	b. Resolution No. 2014–22, Amending Section 14, Utilities (Sewer), of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	c.	Authorization of Bid Award of Bid Package B for the Construction of the New Monashka Pumphouse, Project No. 11-05/7092
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	d.	Authorization of Change Order No. 1 for Aleutian Homes Phase 5, Segment B, Project No. 10-03/7026
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	e.	Authorization of Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services Contract for Construction Management Services for the New Monashka Pumphouse, Project No. 11-05/7092
	Attachment A
	Attachment B





